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{ promotions within our Bank. Tricia H. Echols,

l formerly Vice President of Central Lending, has

& become Market President for Georgia while Carl
| W. Insel, previously Executive Vice President, is

? now Market President for Florida. In connection
Hl  with this new organizational structure, we also

[ have created the position of Chief Operating
Officer and named Thomas B. Wagers, 5r., formerly
4 Vice President of Finance, to this post. By

t implementing a market-focused management
team and separating some of the administrative
{ and operational functions from the retail side of
| the Bank, we think we can better tailor our

Of our hel‘ltage as a community
tr*;r to think big and small at the same time, to
;e’bf products and services that large, complex

ips require — with the helpful service and personal
for which hometown banks are famous.

[

|

3

| efforts to these very different regions, while
enhancing the service and support we provide to
our bankers and lenders.

Looking ahead to 2007, we approach the new

| year with a sense of confidence for the
momentum we see in our business and the

1 potential it holds for powering our performance
in the years ahead. We have realized concrete
success in expanding our relationships with
customers, and we recently have undertaken an
extensive market segmentation study to
accelerate our growth and provide a roadmap for
extending the reach of our retail banking
activities. We are optimistic this study will help
us identify new opportunities for our company to

excel. At the same time, we recognize we are in
perhaps the most competitive environment for
banking in recent memory, 50 we know we face
formidable challenges; particularly in managing
our net interest margins, as we continue to
implement our strategic plans. Considering our
success in past years, and the specific
improvements to our staff, structure and business
during 2006, | believe we are ready for these
challenges. :
Thank you for your continued interest in our
company. !

i |
Sincerely,

KMTSPWm@\f |

Robert ). Larison, Jr. ,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Net Interest Income (in millions) |

2006 | — N E————— s ns9
2005 | —— T E—— 5 20
e ——————— $ 199
2003 Y S 5 194
2002 | B $ 178

! i

i

Net Income (In millions} ‘
2006 | R 5 52
2005 | E— s 47
T e — j s 32
2003 T S S—— s a4
2002 |———EE | $ 32




To,‘_'our Stockholders, Depositors and Friends

We are pleased to report another successful year
for Atlantic Coast Federal|Corporation, building
on the momentum we generated in our business
during 2005, Throughout the past year, we
continued to pursue strategres to extend the
reach of our banking network and enhance our
growth and visibility in emstmg markets. These
efforts were readily appar'ent on our year-end
balance sheet, as our total assets, loan portfolio
and deposit base all reached record levels by
December 31, 2006. Our growth in these areas,
in turn, was a key factor drlvmg higher earnings
for the year, which mcreased 10% to $5,152,000
and 15% to $0.38 per diluted share.

The reasons underlying our success in building
loans and deposits during| 2006 are many,
including our introduction of fresh products,
particularly with respect to commercial and
small business customers. |Qur progress also
underscores the general strength of our markets,
and with a majority of our banking offices
located in the fast-growing metropolitan
Jacksonville area, we are well-situated to
participate in the region's|growth. Lastly, we
opened our fourteenth banking office during
2006, entering attractive St Johns County,
midway between Jacksonwlle and St. Augustine.
We now have a total of elght branches in the
greater Jacksonville area, and we are in the
planning stages for the co'nstructlon of a second
branch in St. John's County

Even as we have added substantially to our loan
portfolio, solid credit quality continued to
characterize our performance during 2006 and
contributed greatly to our higher earnings for the
year. Allin ali, the continuation of these strong
credit quality trends aIIow'ed us to reduce our
provision for ican losses 78% in 2006 — the third
consecutive year of such |mprovements.

‘Importantly, our financial progress during 2006

posmoned us to continue our efforts to increase
stockholder value. As you know, since
commencmg our dividend payments in early
20|05 we increased the rate of payment by one
cent each quarter throughout the balance of that
year. During 2006, we again raised our dividend
by one cent each quarter, increasing the quarterly
rate to $0.12 for the fourth quarter of 2006 from
$0.08 in the year-earlier quarter.

AsI we have increased the tangible returns to our
stclnckholders, we also have remained active in

bank, we always
provide the ran
customer relationsh
attention

repurchasing our stock during the past year. |
Af;ter completing our first two stock buyback -
programs in 2005 and 2006, we announced
anlother program in September, authorizing the
purchase of up to 478,000 shares or
approximately 10% of our outstanding publicly
he|d common stock. By the end of 2006, we
repurchased a total of 190,000 shares under
th|s program, representing an expenditure of
approx1mate|y $3,397,000 and leaving a remaining
authorization of 288,000 shares in 2007.

Dunng 2006, to enhance our focus on the two
key regions we serve, we reorganized our
banking operations along state market lines and,
in connection with this, announced several




OQur Company,
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation is the holding company for Atlantic Coast Bank, a federally chartered and insured stock

savings association that was organized in 1939 as a credl‘t union to serve the empioyens of the Atlantic Coast Line Railroad.
Through the years, Atlantic Coast Bank has emerged as one of the area’s leading community banks, growing to almost

$850 million in total assets.

In November 2009 Atlantic Coast Bank converted |t‘s chlarter from a federal cred|t union to a federal mutual savings
association and, in January 2003, Atlantic Coast Bank formed Atlantic Coast Federal CErporanon as its holding company.

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation completed its initial pubhc stock offering in Octob r 2004
Today, we are a community- _oriented financial institution serving southeastern Georgla and

northeastern Florida through 14 offices, including a grO\‘Nlng presence in the Jacksonv:lle

metrapolitan area. Our shares trade on NASDAQ under| thé ticker symbaol ACFC, and investors

[ .
may obtain addmOnaI information about Atlantic Coast|Federal Corporation at our website,
www.AtIanticCoastBalnk.net.

Our Mission | ®
Atlantic Coast Bank is committed to excellence by: @®
-providing extrao‘rdmary customer service ] o
-assisting our communltles with economic growth and leadership involvement e, ) %
-enhancing stockholder value through sustainable éarr‘n'ings .OO
-practicing good corporate governance ®
\

Our Vision |
I ! P
Focusing on our ideals, we will create profitable relatlor shlps for our stockholders and the institution,

. I
while maximizing the use of people, products, techno1ogy, delivery channels, and resgurces.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Commission file number; 000-50962

ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORAY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Federal 59-3764686
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization}
505 Haines Avenue
Waycross, Georgia 31501
(Address of principal executive offices) | {Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (800) 342-2824
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value ‘The NASDAQ Stock Market, LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

YES [] NO[X].

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant“to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. YES[] NO[X.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d} of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve months (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

YES [{] NO[].
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information

statements incorporated by reference in Part IIl of this Form 10 K or any amendment to this Form 10K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2.of the Exchange Act. {Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer [] ‘ Accelerated Filer [_] Non-Accelerated Filer X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act}.

YES[] NO .

As of March 23, 2007, there were outstanding 13,672,724 shares of the Registrant’s common stock, par value $0.01 per
share. The aggregate market value of common stock outstanding held by non-affiliates of the Registrant as of June 30,
2006 was $68,119,238. !

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

1. Portions of Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Stockholders Meeting (Part 111).




T e -
¢ r LA ' .
e 1 . , .
A} - »
i
L4 ‘ LI 4

f:\ : ERNPEE R
N | -
}?("‘F \:‘}“ et ) : b . . .

i N N e oo e . P
g v 2 ’ . T

‘\"::,,\\ |
AL RETY \\',\ et ol ey

- e ot vy 1
. 1 l.- d + 1 Ld Eal
' ". H v e ' ir i
(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}
[ ' 'y [ 1
" ot . . , , . ' . '




Item 1.

Item 1A.
Item 1B.

 ltem 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Item 5.

itern 6.
Item 7.

Item 7A.

Item 8.

Item 9.

ftem 9A.

Item 9B.

ATLANTIC COAST‘FEDERAL‘CORPOR‘A'TiION
ANNUAL REPORT.ON FORM10:K
Table'of Contentsit.+

:PARTI

Business TS X BRI TP BT
General B T
Market Co T
Lending Activities ~n e ‘f .

- Investment Activities - . . . e g,
Sources of Funds : I S e
How We Are Regulated

- Risk Factors [

Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties . Ty eanomt S N A

Legal Proceedings . ‘ D e

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders .-

' Lot ey SRR FRSTHRE F
v o WPARTIL v s v

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities v I

., Selected Financial Data | ~y ., - ¢ R U T

-:Management’s Discussion-and Analysis of Fmancnal Condltlon and Results

of Operations t DI
General '

Critical Accounting Policies

Business Strategy

Financial Condition

Results of Operations ‘

Average Balances, Net Interest Income, Yields Earned, and Rates Paid
Rate/Volume Analysis

Liquidity :

Contractual Obligations and Commitments ‘ ;

Capital Resources

Inflation

Future Accounting Pronouncements

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Rlsk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ‘

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant -

Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements i
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

Controls and Procedures : ‘ '
Other Information

Page
Number

40

" 45
45
45
47

53
53
55
65
66
67
68
68
69
72
72
73
79

113
113
113




Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.

Item 13.
[tem 14.

[tem 15.
Form 10-K
Exhibit 21.
Exhibit 23.1
Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.

. ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
Table of Contents, continued

PART III

Directors, Execuitive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters : :
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Principal Accountant Fees and Services

PARTIV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules :
Signature Page o : o
Subsidiaries of Registrant’ e '
Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the’
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Atlantic

Coast Federal Corporation-pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act’

of 2002

- 117

114
114

114

114
114

114
116

118

119

120

121




PART 1 1
Item 1. . Business Co

General !

This Form 10-K contains fonunrd-lookmg statements which are statements that are not htstorzcnl or
current facts. When used in this filing and in future filings by Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation witi the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s press releases or other public
dr shareholder communications, or in oral statements made with the approval of an authorized executive
officer, the words or phrases, “anticipate,” “would be,” “will allow,” “intends to,” “will likely result,” “are
expected to,” will continue,” “is antzcrpated " “estimated,” “projected,” or similar expressions are intended
to identify, “forward looking statements.” Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, including
but not limited to changes in economic conditions in Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s market areq,
changes in policies by regulatory agencies, ﬂucfuations in interest rates, demand for loans in Atlantic Const
Federal Corporation’s market areq, changes in the position of banking regulators on the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses, and competition, all or some of which could cause actual results to differ
materially from historical earnings and those presently anticipated or pro]ected

» ol o

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation wishes to caution readers not to place undue relinnce on any such
forward-looking statements, which speak only ‘as of the date made, and advzse readers that various factors,
including regional and national economic conditions, substantial changes in; evels of market interest rates,
credit and other risks of lending and investing activities, and competitive and. regulatory factors, could affect
Atlantic Const Federal Corporation’s financial performance and could cause Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation’s actual results for future periods to differ materially from those anticipated or projected.

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation does not undertake, and speciﬁéally disclaims any obligation,
to update any forward-looking statements to reflect occurrences or unanhcrpated events or circumstances
after the date of such statements.

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation {or the “Stock Company") is a federally chartered
stock holding company and is subject to regulation by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS").
The Stock Company was organized on January 1, 2003 as part of a three-tier mutual holding
company reorganization plan adopted on May 30, 2002, for the purpose of acquiring all of the
capital stock issued upon reorganization of Atlantic Coast Bank ‘(or the “Bank”), formerly
known as Atlantic Coast Federal, a federally chartered ‘stock savmgs association, together
referred to as the Company. Since the primary activity to date of the'Stock Company is holding
all of the stock of Atlantic Coast Bank, the terms ”Bank’ and “Company” may be used
interchangeably throughout this Form 10-K. :

On October 4, 2004, Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation completed a minority stock
offering in which it sold 5,819,000 shares or 40% of its common stock to eligible depositors and -
the Bank’s Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”), with the majority of the 14,547,500 shares
outstanding being retained by Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC (the “MHC”). Net proceeds from
the sale of the shares were of -$51.7 million, net of conversion expenses of $1.9 million and
proceeds loaned to the ESOP of $4.7 million. Use of the proceeds is dlscussed in the Business
Strategy section of this ltem.




In July 2005, the Stock Company issued, .out of previously authorized but unissued
common stock, 258,469 shares of common stock as restricted stock awards to outside directors
and key employees under the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation 2005 Recognition and
Retention Plan (the “Recognition Plan”). The Stock Company also conducted common stock
repurchase programs during 2005 and 2006, resulting in the repurchase of 1,029,139 shares or
6.9% of total outstanding shares of common stock. At December 31, 2006, the MHC owns 63.3%,
or 8,728,500 shares, of the stock of the Stock Company, with the remaining 36. 7%, or 5,055,830
shares held by persons not associated with MHC and the Stock Company. The Stock Company
holds 100% of Atlantic Coast Bank's outstandmg common stock

The Stock Company has not erigaged in any significant business to daté. Its'primary
activity is holding all of the stock of ‘Atlantic Coast Bank. In the future Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation may pursue other business activities, including mergers and acquiéitions,
investment alternatives and diversification of Operations‘ There are, however, no current
agreements in place for these activities. Atlantic Coast Federal Corporatlon does not maintain
offices $eparate from those of Atlantic Coast Bank' or utilize persons other than certain of
Atlantic Coast Bank's officers.” Dlrectors and officers of Atlantlc Coast Federal Corporation are
not separately compensated for their service.

Atlantic Coast Bank was or1gmally established ‘in 1939 as a c:redlt union to serve the
employees of the Atlantic Coast Line Railroad. At the time of, the conversion from a federal credit
union to a federal mutual savings association the Bank s field of membershlp con51sted of about 125
various employee groups, residents of Atkinson, Bacon, Brantley, Chartton, Clinch, Coffee, Plerce
and Ware counties in Georgia, and employees of CSX Transportation: lnc (“CSX”), which is
headquartered in Jacksonville, Florida. However, as'a credit union, the Bank was legally restricted
to serve only individuals who shared a “common bond” such.as a common employer.

On November 1, 2000, after receiving the necessary regulatory and fllembershjp approvals,
Atlantic Coast Federal Credit Union converted to a federal mutual savings association known as
Atlantic Coast Bank that serves the general public. The.conversion has allowed the Bank to
diversify its customer base by marketing products and services to individuals and businesses in its
market area. Unlike a credit union, the Bank may make loans to customers,who do not have a
deposit relationship. Following the, conversion management of the Bank began to emphasize
residential mortgage lending. and: commercial real estate loans and to reduce automobile and
consumer lending activities which had become unattractive lines of business due to delinquencies,
charge-offs and competitive pressures from financing programs offered by the automobile
manufacturers. Consumer lending, such as credit cards, have also incurred historically high
delinquency and charge-off rates. See “-Lending Activities.” - | :

The Bank’s principal business consists of attracting retail deposits from the general
public and investing. those funds primarily in permanent loans secured.by first mortgages on
owner-occupied, one- to four-family residences, home equity loans, commercial real estate loans
and, to a lesser extent, automobile and consumer loans. The Bank also originates multi-family
residential loans, ,commercial business loans and commercial. construction and residential
construction loans. Loans are obtained through retail staff, through brokers, participations with
other financial institutions, and wholesale purchases. .

Revenues are derived principally from interest on loans and other internal earning
assets, such as investment securities. To a lesser extent, revenue is generated from service
charges and other income.




The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts having a wide range of interest rates and terms,
which generally include savings accounts, money market accounts, demand deposit accounts and
time deposit accounts with varled terms ranging from 90 days'to five years. Deposits are solicited in
the Bank’s primary market area of southeastern Georgia and the Jacksonville metropolitan area.

Market Area -

The Bank intends to continue to be a commumty-orrented financial mstlt'utlon offering a
variety of financial services to meet the needs of the communities it serves. The Bank is
headquartered in Waycross, Georgia, with branches in Waycross,' Douglas and Garden City,
Georgia, as well as ]acksonvxlle metro_area, Jacksonwlle Beach, Orange Park, Neptune Beach,
Fernandina Beach and ]uhngton Creek. The Bank also has a branch in Lake City, Florida, which is
located approximately 60 miles west of Jacksonville, Florida. Waycross is located in Ware County,
Georgia and the dominant employet in town is CSX Transportation,Inc., which operates a major
railroad facility there. The market area of southeastérn Georgia is marked by limited growth trends
and is a largely agnculmral-based ‘economy. Based on the most recent 'data available, Atlantic Coast
Bank’s approximate deposit market share in its Georgia markets was 3.63% and in its Florida
markets was 1.34%. The ]acksonvﬂ]e market is one of the most affordable cities in Florida with
ample employment opportunities and an appreciating housing market: The city serves not only as a
financial hub, but also as a reglonal healthcare and insurance center. It also has a healthy toirism
industry, has recently become active as a host city for major sporting events such as the Super Bowl
in 2005 and the 2006 NCAA basketba]l toumament reglonal site, and is home to the 14th largest port
in the Umted States.

!’.

]

Lending Achv1t1es ; 3 ; '

General. The Bank originates one- to four-family residential first and second mortgage loans,
home-equity loans, land and multifamily, real estate Joans, commercial, real estate loans, construction
loans and to a lesser extent automobile and other consumer loans. The Bank also purchases loans,
principally one- to four-family residential mortgages, in the form of whole loans as well as
participation interests, for interest rate risk management, portfolio divérsification and to supp]ement
organic loan’ growth Loans carry either a fixed or adjustable rate of interest. Consumer loans are
generally. short-term and amortize monthly or have interest payable monthly. Mortgage loans
generally have a longer-term amortization, with maturities up to 40 years, with principal and interest
due each month. At December 31, 2006, the net loan portfoho totaled $639.5 million, which
constituted 75.9% of total assets. "+ & - : :

At December 31, 2006 the maximum amount that the Bank could have loaned to any one
borrower,and the borrower's related entities under apphcable regulations was approximately $12.2
million. At December 31, 2006, there were-no loans or group of loans to related borrowers with
outstanding balances in excess of this amount. The Bank’s largest lendmg relahonshlp is a $5.9
million mortgage loan participation with a large Florida mortgage banker. The second largest.

relationship is comprised of four loans totaling $5.3 million secured by the income produced by the. - -
underlying commercial real estate. The third largest relationship is comprised of twelve loans . .-

totaling $4.8 million and secured by commercial real estate, commercial equipment and a residential
real estate mortgage on the primary residence of the guarantors The fourth largest relationship totals’
$4.5 million and is secured primarily by income producing commercial real estate. The fifth largest
relationship totals $3.9 million for development and consl:ructlonl of residential homes in the
Jacksonville MSA. Al loans have personal guarantees g asa secondary source of: ‘repayment and were
perforrmng accordmg to the terms of thelr agreements at year end. . T
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Ome- to Four-Family Real Estate Lending. At Decermber 31, 2006, one- to four-family
residential mortgage loans totaled $334.0 million, or 52.14%, of the gross loan portfolio.
Generally, one- to four-family loans are underwritten based on the applicant’s employment,
income, credit history and the appraised value of the subject property. The Bank will generally
lend up to 80% of the lesser of the appraised value or purchase price for one- to four-family
residential loans. Should a loan be granted with a loan-to-value ratio in excess of 80%, private
mortgage insurance would be required to reduce overall exposure to below 80%. For highly
credit worthy borrowers, the ratio may be extended to 89.9% depending on the occupancy of
the property. Borrowers electing an interest only payment are qualified using a fully
amortizing payment based on the fully indexed interest rate: As of December 31, 2006 the
interest only portfolio totaled $49.9 million, 14.9% of the total mortgage loan portfolio.

Properties securing one- to four-family loans are generally appraised by independent fee
appraisers approved by the board of directors. Borrowers are required to obtain title and-
hazard insurance, and flood insurance, if necessary, in an amount not less than the value of the
property improvements. Currently, the Bank originates one- to four-family mortgage loans on
a fixed-rate and adjustable-rate basis. Management's pricing strategy for mortgage loans
includes setting interest rates that are competitive with other local financial institutions and
consistent with the Bank's internal needs. Adjustable-rate loans are tied to a variety of indices
including rates based on U. 5. Treasury securities. The majority of adjustable-rate loans carry an
initial fixed rate of interest for either three or five years which then convert to an interest rate
that is adjusted based upon the applicable index and in accordance with the note. The Bank’s
home mortgages are structured with a five to forty year maturity, with amortizations up to 40-
years. Substantially all of the one- to four-family loans originated or purchased are secured by
properties located in southeastern Georgia and the metropolitan Jacksonville area.

All of the residential real estate loans contain a “due on sale” clause allowing the Bank to
declare the unpaid principal balance due and payable upon the sale of the security property,
subject to certain laws. Loans originated or purchased are generally underwritten and
documented pursuant to Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae guidelines. The Bank sells loans to
investors on the secondary market to fulfill customer demand for product(s) that do not fit in -
the Bank’s portfolio strategy.

Commercial Real Estate Lending. The Bank offers commercial real estate loans for both
permanent financing and construction. These loans are typically secured by small retail
establishments, rental properties, storage facilities, and office buildings located in the Bank's
primary market area. At December 31, 2006, permanent commercial real estate loans totaled
$60.9 million, or 9.51%, of the gross loan portfolio.

The Bank originates both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate commercial real estate loans.
The interest rate on adjustable- rate loans is tied to a variety of indices, including rates based on
the Prime Rate and U.S. Treasury securities. The majority of the Bank’s adjustable-rate loans
carry an initial fixed-rate of interest for either three or five years and then convert to an interest
rate that is adjusted annually based upon the index. Loan-io-value ratios on commercial real
estate loans generally do not exceed 80% of the appraised value of the property securing the
loan. These loans require monthly payments, amortize up to 25 years, and generally have
maturities of up to 10 years and may carry pre-payment penalties.




Loans secured by commercial real estate are underwritten based on the cash flow of the
borrower or income producing potential of the property and the financial -strength of the
borrower and guarantors. Loan guarantees are generally obtained from financiaily capable
parties based on a review of personal financial statements. The Bank requires that commercial
real estate borrowers with balances in excess of $250,000 submit financial statements, including
rent rolls if applicable, annually. The net operating income, which is the income derived from
the operation of the property less all operating experises,.must be sufficient to cover the
payments related to the outstanding debt. Rent or lease assighments are required in order to be
assured that the cash flow from the project will.-be used. to repay the debt.. Appraisals on
properties securing commercial real estate loans are performed by independent state-licensed
fee appraisers approved by.the board of directors. The majority of the propertles securing
commercial real estate loans are located in the Bank’s market area.

Loans secured by commercial real estate properties are generally larger and involve a
greater degree of credit risk than.one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Because
payments on loans secured by commercial real estate properties are often dependent on the
successful operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject
to adverse conditions.in the real estate market or. the economy. If the cash flow from the project
is reduced, or if leases are not obtained or renewed, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan may
be impaired. See “- Asset Quality - Non-Performing Loans.”

Other Real Estate Loans. As of December 31, 2006, other real estate secured loans
totaled $34.4 million and consisted mainly of land loans, but also includes loans secured by
multi-family property. The Bank offers land loan financing to commercial and individual
borrowers who-can support the debt service. Loans,to commercial and individual borrowers
secured by. land total $26.5 million and loans secured by multi-family property total $7.9 million
as of December 31, 2006. Generally, these loans carry a higher rate of interest than do
residential permanent loans. The Bank typically generally underwrites land loans based on the
borrower’s ability to repay, credit history and the appraised value of. the subject property.
Presently, the Bank will-lend up to 90% of the lesser of the appralsed value or purchase price on
land loans to individuals. -, e : :

The Bank offers both fixed and. adjustable rate land loans to commercial borrowers.
Essentially all of these loans are secured by property located in the Bank’s primary market areas
of Northeast Florida and Southeast Georgia. The loans carry a maximum loansto-value of 65%.
If the borrower is a limited liability company or corporation; the Bank will generally obtain
personal loan guarantees from the principals of the borrowing entity based on a review. of their
personal financial statements and personal credit report information. Loans to commerciat
borrowers secured by. land are generally larger and involve a greater degree of credit risk than
one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. - Repayment of such loans may be. subject to
adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. If the cash flow of the borrowing
entity or guarantors is reduced, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be 1mpaxred

The Bank also offers loans secured by mulh faml]y re51dent1a1 real estate. These loans
are secured by real estate located in the Bank's primary market area. At December 31, 2006,
multi-family residential loans totaled $7.9 million, or 1.2% of the gross loan portfolio. Multi-
family residential loans are generally originated with adjustable interest rates based on prime or
U.S. Treasury securities. Loan-to-value ratios on multi-family residential loans do not exceed
75% of the appraised value of the, property securing the loan. These loans require monthly
payments, amortize over a period of up to 30 years. Loans secured by multi-family residential
real estate are underwritten based on the income producmg potential of the property and the

g




financial strength of the borrower. ‘The net operating income 'must be sufficient to cover the

payments related to the outstanding debt. Rent or-lease assignments are required in order to be

assured that the cash flow from 'the -project will be used to repay the debt. Appraisals on

properties secuting multi-family residential loans-are performed by independent state licensed

fee appralsers approved by the board of directors. ¥ .o : SEERR
b - . "o R o e .

- ‘Real'Estate Construction Lend:ng As of December 31, 2006, loans for the construction of
real -estate totaled $37.4.million, or 5.84% of the total portfolio. The real estate construction
portfolio frconsists of both . residential and. commercial construction loans. Residential
construction loans, including. those- purchased from brokers, are generally made for: the
construction ‘of pre-sold builder homes to individual borrowers.' As' of December 31, 2006, the
Bank had $32.5 million in residential construction loans. Residential construction loans are
underwritten according to the terms available on the secondary market. Generally, construction
loans are limited to loan to value ratio not to exceed 85% based -on the lesser of cost to construct
or:the appraised value upon completion. - The Bank offers both construction only and
construction:to- permanent loans C : Sl o R K
N AR . ; ' i .

+ Construction’ only loans to individuals”generally have a”term of 12: months with a
variable interest rate tied to the prime rate as published in the Wall Street Journal plus a margin
ranging from .50% to 1.5% with a-loan to value of no more-than 85% of the cost of -the
construction or appraised value, whichever is less. These loans are underwritten according to
secondary .market ‘guidelines and must qualify for permanent financing as part of the
origination process even if the permanent financing will be obtained from another mortgage
lender. The Bark also originates construction only loans to builders to finance the constfuction
of 1-4 family residences. The builder must have sufficient.cash flow:to repay the debt based
term loan. As'of December 31, 2006, loans to builders for the 'construction of pre-sold ‘or
speculatwe 1-4 re51clent1a1 property and lot mventory ‘totaled Sv6 3 million. :

-.,‘ 1

Constructlon to-permanent loans are structured where one closing occurs for both the
construction'and the permanent financing. During the construction phase, which can last up to
eighteen months depending on the nature of the residence being built, a member 'of the loan
servicing staff, the original appraiser, or a fee inspector makes inspections of the site and loan
proceeds dre disbursed directly to contractors or borrowers in accordance with the loan funding
schedule as consiruction progresses. Borrowers are required to pay interest only during the
construction  phase .with - the loan converting to the terms of: the amortizing note once the
construction is completed. Typically, these loans convert to adjustable rate loans whrch are
e1ther held in portfoho or sold on’ the secondary market P B :

1
‘h ' ' Voo

v+ . Home-Equity Lending. The Bank: currently orlgmates ‘both. flxed term fully amortlzmg
equity loans.and open-ended interest only home equitylines of credit. At December 315 2006,
the portfolio totaled $91.1 million, or 14.22%, of the gross loan portfolio. The Bank generally
underwrites-one- to four-family: home equity loans based on the applicant’s employment. and
credit history and the appraised value of the subject property. Presently, the Bank will lend up
to 80% of the appraised value less any prior liens:” For high credit worthy borrowers the Bank
may lend up to 110% of the appraised value less'any prior liens: This ratio may be reduced in
accordance with internal guidelines given the risk and credit profile of the borrower. ‘Properties
securing one- to four-family loans-are generally appraised by independent fee appraisers
approved by'the board of directors or the value is determined using a qualified asset-valuation
model. The Bank requires a title search and hazard insurance, and flood insurance, if- necessary,
in an. n-amount not less than the value of the property 1mprovements o e Ty

A% R P ! . !
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' ; Loan Orlgmatlons, Purchases, and Sales

!

The :Bank’s' home equity lines of credit carry an adjustablé. interest rate based upon the
prime rate of interest. As of December 31, 2006, interest only.lines.of credit totaled $33.9 million; or
37.21% of the total home equity.loans. Borrowers requesting interest only lines are qualified: using
1% of the commitment amount for determining the borrowers’ capacity: to repay: All home-equity
loans have a maximum ‘draw. period: of -10. years with a repayment periodrof up-to 20 years
following such.draw period depending on: the outstanding balance. ; Currently-these. loans are
retamedlntheBanksloanportfoho AT L PR B M N IR T

Consumer Loans. The.Bank currently offers.a variety of consumer loans:; Consumer loans
are principally -fixed rate, generally, have shorter terms to. maturity,. thereby reducmg exposureto
changes-in-interest rates, and carry higher rates of intérest than.do one-:to four-family resideritial
mortgage loans., At December 31, 2006, the consumer loan portfolio, inclusive.of automobile loans,
totaled. $63.6 million, or 9.93%, of the|gross loan, portfolio.. In recentiyears, the consumer lending
portfolio,as a-percentage: of the loan-portfolio has continued to.decrease. due to management 5
emphasis on real estate loan products. - : _ Coeon,

+ The most significant-component-of the Bank’s consumer loan 'portfo]jo is automobile loans.
Automobile loans are originated primarily on a direct basis to, customers through the Bank'sibranch:
network., Loans secured by automobiles totaled $29.6 million, or 4. 62%{ of the gross loan"portfolio as
of December 31, 2006. Automobile loans have a fixed rate of interest and carry terms up.to seven'
years for.new automobiles.and a maximum of five years for used autoimobiles. ‘Loan-to-value ratios
for automobile loans are up to 100% of the sales, price for-new. automoblles and up to 100% of value
on used cars, based on valuation from official used car guides. 3 S A A

 Consumer loans may entail greater.risk-than do one- to four—farm]y residential mortgage
_loans, partrcularly in the case of consumer loans that are secured by rapidly depreciable assets, such
.as automobrles In these cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted loan may not provide an
adequate source of repayment of. .the outstandmg 16an (balarice. |As a result, consumer loan
“collections‘are dependent on the bérrower’s ¢ontinuing financial stabrhty and, thus, are more likéely
to be adversely affected by job loss, leOI‘CE illness or personal bankruptcy

\
N | T,
; :

" o ol H : ’

The Bank originates loans through its branch network, the internet and its call center.
Referrals from current customers, advertisements, real estate brokers, mortgage loan-brokers-and:
builders are also important sources of loan originations. While the Bank originates both ad]ustable-
rate and fixed-rate loans, origination volume is dependent upon customer loan demand within ‘the
Bank's market area. Demand is affected by local competition and the interest rate environment: The
Bank also purchases loans, principally one-to four-family residential mortgages, in the form of
whole loans as well as participation interests for interest rate risk management "and- portfoho
dlversﬁlcahon and to supplement our orgamc ‘growth. In addition; the Bank sells parhc1pat10n

¢t mterests m some of its. larger real estate loans. : !

) Asset Quahty

- [ o e owe = 1

TR yooome, b 3

When a borrower fails to make a tlmely payment on a loan, contact is made initially in the

- form of a reminder letter sent at either 10 or 15 days depending on the term of the loan agreement.

If a response is not received within a teasonable period of time, contact by telephone is made in an
attempt to determine the reason for the delinquency and to request payment of the . delinquent
amount in full or to establish an acceptable repayment plan to bring the loan current.

11




If the borrower is unable to make or keep payment arrangements, additional collection
action is taken in the form' of repossession of collateral for securéd, non-real estate loans and
small claims or legal action for unsecured loans. If the loan is secured by real estate, a letter of
intent to foreclose is sent to the borrower when an agreement for an acceptable repayment plan
can not be established or agreed upon. The letter of intent to foreclose allows the borrower up to
10 days to bring the account current. Once: the loan becomes 75 days delinguent and an
acceptable repayment plan has not been established, foreclosure action is initiated on the loan.

" Real estate loans serviced by a third party are subject to the servicing institution’s
collection policies. Contractually, the servicing institutions are required to adhere to collection
policies no less stringent ‘than the Bank’s policies. The: Bank tracks each purchased loan
individually to ensure full payments are received-as scheduled. Each month, servicing
institutions are required to provide delinquent loan status reports to the Bank’s loan operations:
department. The status reports. are included in the month-end delinquent real estate report to
management. ‘ e

Delinguent Loans. "The following table sets forth the Bank’s loans delinquent 60-to-89
days. and- 90 days or -more past due by. type;"number, amount and percentage of type at
December 31, 2006. Loans past due 60. days ‘or more total $4.3 million, or .67% of total loans.
Real estate loans 60 days or more past due total $1.3 million, or .20% of total loans.
Construction loans 60 days or more-past due total $747,000, or .12% of total loans. Other loans
{consisting of home equity, consumer, and commercial’ non-real estate) total $2.2 mllhon or
.35% of total loans. : . - Tt Co

‘Loans Delinquént For: . L Total
60-89 Days # . 90 Days or More " Delinquent Loans
Number - Prmc1pal o Nu‘mbei' Principal Number ‘Principal
o : St of " Balance.: - of + o - Balance « of. Balance
Loan Types - . :Loans :  _.of Loans -Loans - of Loans _ Loans . of Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)
Real estate

One- to four-family : 3 $421 . 4 , $325, 7 - §746

Commercial . - : R S ] 2" * 430

Other ' 1 16 1 104 120

i : . . ' et o s Tl M N '

Real Estate Construction : e, et . . . . .

Construction - One- to four-family . Lo 1. . . 19%. g 3 ., 55 4 747

Construction - Commercial . . - . - - - - -

Construction - Acquisition & = wene R " P :

Development. v o P L - C. - -
. ‘ L '

Other Loan_s-Consumer e R o . . P

Home equity L s ey 2:: B _3‘76 S 2“ . 280 4 '656

Consumer 36 : 203 88 445 124 648

Commercial - - 88 : 915 88 915
Total 43 $1,212 188 $3,050 231 $4,262

0.67%

Delinquent loans to total gross loans ) 0.19% 0.48%
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Non-Performing Assets. The following table sets forth the amounts and categories of
non-performing assets in the Bank’s loan portfolio. Non-performing assets consist of non-
accrual loans, accruing loans past due 90 days and more, and foreclosed assets. Loans to a
customer whose financial condition has deteriorated are considered for non-accrual status
whether or not the loan is 90 days and over past due. Generally, all loans past due 90 days and
over are classified as non-accrual. For loans on non-accrual, interest income is not recognized
until actually collected. At the time the loan is placed on non-accrual status, interest previously
accrued but not collected is reversed and charged against current income. At December 31,
2006, the Bank had no loans delinquent 90 days or more that were accruing interest and loans 90
" days or more past due and non-accrual loans as a percentage of total loans were .48% and .40%
of total assets. For the year ending December 31, 2006, contractual gross interest income of
$90,000 would have been recorded on non-performing loans if those loans had been current,
Interest in the amount of $66, 000 was included in income during 2006 on such loans,

! At December 31,
‘ 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in Thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:

Real Estate I i i

One- to four-family $325 $697 $1,931 %465 . $365
Commercial 430 238 3,271 5,670 -
Other ' 104 109 - - -

Real Estate Construction
Construction Cne-to four-family 551 - - - -
Construction - Commercial - - - - -

Construction - Acquisition & Development - - - PR -

Other o _
Home Equity 280 ' B . - - -
Consumer ‘ b 445 597 290° " 267 868
Commercial : ‘ 915 940 1,166 1,165 1,664

' Total : . L $3,050 $2,616 $6,658 $7,567 $2,897

Accruing delinquent 90 days or more:

Real Estate :

One- to four-family - . - - .

Commercial - - ) - . -
_ Other - ] - - - -

Real Estate Construction

Construction One-to four-family - - - . )
Construction - Commercial - - - - -
Construction - Acquisition & Development - : B - " -

Other )

Home Equity ) - - - - -
Consumer ) . . - - - -
Commercial : - - - - -
Total - - - . - -

— ;

Total non-performing loans ' 3,050 2,616 6,658 7,567 2,897
Foreclosed assets 286 310 323 1,079 1,141
Total non-performing assets \ . $3,336 $2,926 56,981, $8,646 $4.038 |
Non-performing loans to total loans 0.48% 0.45% 1.28% - 172% - 0.75%
Non-performing loans to total assets ‘ 0.40% 0.39% 1.09% 1.73% 0.90%
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Real Estate Owned and Other Repossessed Assets. Real estate acquired as a result of
foreclosure is classified as. real estate owned. At the time of foreclosure, the property is
recorded at the lower of their estimated fair value less selling costs or the loan balance; with-any
write-down charged against the .allowance for.loan losses. Other repossessed assets,are
recorded at the lower of the loan.balance or fair market value. As of December 31, 2006, the
Bank had real estate owned of $286,000. . . S T T

. . SR ST IEI I

Classxﬁed Assets Bankmg regulatlons pr0v1de for the- Classuflcatlon of loans and.other
assets,such as debt and equity securities considered by the Bank and regulators to be of'lesser
quality, as'“substandard,” “doubtful” or “loss.” An asset is considered “substandard”if it is
inadequately protected by the-current net worth and paying capacity of ‘the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if any. “Substandard” assets include those characterized by the “distinct
possibility” that the insured institution will sustain “some loss! if the-deficiencies are not
corrected. Assets classified as “doubtful” have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified

“substandard,” with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make “collection or
liquidation in full,” on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, “highly
questionable and 1mprobable Assets classified as “loss” are those considered not collectable
and of such little value that their continuance as assets without the establishment of a specific
loss reserve is not warranted. !

When an insured institution classifies problem assets as either substandard or doubtful,
it may establish general allowances for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by
management and approved by the board of directors. General allowances represent loss
allowances which have been established to recognize the inherent risk assoc1ated with lending
activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been allocated to part1cu1ar problem
assets. When an insured institution classifies problem assets as “loss,” it is required either to
establish a specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of that portion of the asset so classified or
to charge off such amount. - An institution’s detérmination as to the classxf:cahon of its assets
and the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to review by the OTS and. the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC), which may. order the establishment of additional
general or specific loss allowances. .

In connection with the filing of the Bank’s periodic reports with the OTS and in
accordance with its classification of assets policy, management regularly reviews the problem
assets in the portfolio to determine whether any assets require classification in accordance with
applicable regulations. The total amount of classified assets lepresented 6 30% of equlty capital
and .67 % of total assets at December 31, 2006.

ars - . : .

The aggregate amount of classified loans at the dates ingiica‘{ed waé‘ as follows

At Decernber 31, P
2006 2005 Co
: (Dollars in Thousands)
Loss . i $ - $ SR TR
Doubtful . 686 1,719 G .
~ Substandard 4,915 3,398 ,

Total L $° 5601 R AT VA

At December 31, 2006, $2.0 million of classified loans were impaired, as defined under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan (“SFAS 114", down from $4.5 million at year end 2005. Loans considered
doubtful were $686,000 down from $1.7 million at year end 2005. Loans are classified as special
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mention when it is determined that a loan relationship should be monitored more closely. Loans are
classified as special mention for a variety,of reasons in¢luding.changes in recent borrower financial
condition, changes; in-, borrower, operations, changes- in value.-of available .collateral, concerns
regarding changes .in-economic conditions in a borrower’s. mdustry, and other matters. A loan
classified as!special mention in-many instances may- be performing in accordance with: the loari
terms. . Special mention loans were:$8.5 million-at,both December 31, 2006 and .2005. All loans
classified as special mention are performing according to their contractual terms and no losses are
anticipated at this time. ;
. W . . Lo . " ' . '

Allowance for Loan Losses An allowance for loan losses is malntamecl to reflect probable
incurred losses in the loan portfolio. The allowance is based on ongoing, quarterly assessments of
the estimated losses incurred in the‘loan portfolio.. Management’s methodology for assessing the
appropriateness of the' allowance consists of several key elements, which include a SFAS No. 5,
Accounting for Contmgencnes (”SFAS 5”) component by type of loan and spec1f1c allowances for,
identified problem loans. The allowance incorporates the results of measuring impaired | Joans as
provided in SFAS 114°and SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan -
Income Recognition and Disclosures. These accounting standards prescribe the ,meastirement
methods, income recognition and disclosures related to impaired loans. ' P ’

The SFAS 5 component is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans based on
the internal risk evaluation of the loans or pools of loans. Changes in risk evaluations of both
performing and non-performing loans affect the amount of the SFAS 5 component. Loss factors are’
based on the Bank's historical loss-experience and on significant factors that, in management’s
judgment, may affect the ability to collect loans in the portfolio as of the evaluation date.

The appropriateness of the allowance is reviewed -and established by management based
upon its evaluation of then-existing economic and business conditions affecting the Bank’s key
lending areas. Other conditions such as credit-quality trends (including trends in nonperforming
loans expected to result from existing conditions), collateral values loan volumes and
concentrations, specific industry conditions within portfolio segments and recent loss experience in
particular segments of the portfolio exist as of the balance sheet date are considered as well. Senior
management reviews these conditions quarterly in discussions with the Bank's senior credit officers.
To the extent that a specifically identifiable problem credit or portfolio segment as of the evaluanon
date evidences any of these condmons, management’s estimate of the effect of such condition may
be reflected as a specific allowance applicable to .such credit or portfoho segment: Where a
specifically identifiable” ‘problem credit or portfolio segment as of the evaluation date does'not
evidence any. of these conditions, management 5 evaluatmn of the loss related to this. cond1t1on 15
reflected in the general allowance. --, Ty e 1 B T TT

=Rl e N R

: f ¥ ‘

_ Management alsg evaluates' the allowance for loar losses ‘based ‘6n'a review of 1nd1v1dual
loans, historical loan loss experience, ;the value and adequacy. of the secured collateral, and
economic conditions in the market area. This evaluation is inherently subjective :as it requires
material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash flows management expects to
receive on impaired loans that may be susceptible to 51gn1f1cant change For all specifically
reviewed loans where it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the terms of the loan agreement, impairment is determined by computing a fair value
based on either discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial interest rate or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are
coliectively evaluated for impairment and are excluded from specific impairment evaluation. For
these loans, the allowance for loan losses is calculated in accordance with the allowance for loan
losses policy described above.
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At December 31, 2006, the allowance for loan losses was $4.7 million or 0.73% of the total

loan portfolio and 154.2% of total non-performing’ loans.

Assessing the adequacy of the

allowance for ‘loan losses is inherently subjective and-requires making material estimates,
including the amount and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired
loans that may be susceptible to significant change. In management’s opinion, the allowance for
loan losses represents all known and inherent loan losses that are both probable and reasonably

estimated as of December 31; 2006.

The following table sets forth an analysis of the allowance for loan losses.

Year Ended December 31, 2006

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
. : . {Dollars in Thousands})
Balance at beginhing of period $ 4,587 $ 3,956 $ 6,593 % 4,692 $ 3,766
Charge-offs: :
Real Estate Loans
One-to four-family ’ 107 192 78 300 500
Commercial ) - 605 4,637 - -
Other (Land & Multi-family) o ‘ Lo - . - y
Real Estate Construction Loans ' -
Construction One-to four family - - - - -
Construction Commercial } . ) .- - - - -
Acquisition & Development . oo - - - -
Other Loans ‘ § ' ' '
Home equity ' ' 14 60 63 25 -
Consumer - . . 1,004 1,249 1,642 2,259 2,752
Commercial - 120 - 664 251
Total charge-offs 1,215 2,326 6,420 3,248 3,503
Recoveries:
Real Estate Loans -
. One-to four-family . ‘ 54 40 7 86 1
Comumercial . 83 51 - - -
Other (Land & Multi-family) . - - - - -
Real Estate Construction L.oans i

Constructiori One-to four family -~ - - - - -

Construction Commercial . - - - - -

Acquisition & Development , . - - - - - -
Other Loans :

Home equity - 18 1 11 ' 2 .

Consumer . ) . © 703 732 790 823 745

Commercial - . ’ ) . 12 - - -

Tolal recoveries 858 836 808 911 - 746

Net charge-offs s 357 1,490 5,612 2,337 2,757
Provision for loan losses 475 2121 2,975 4,238 3,683
Balance at end of period $ 4,705 $ 4,587 $ 3,956 $ 6,593 7 $ 4,692
Net charge-offs to average loans during this period {1) 0.06% 0.27% 1.16% 0.57% 0.76%
Net charge-offs to average non-performing loans during . ‘ . .

this period 11.36% 43.41% 122.10% 30.88% 95.17%
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 154.21% 175.36% 59.42% 87.13% 161.96%
Allowance as % of total loans (end of period) (1) - 0.73% 0.78% - 0.75% 1.47% 1.20%

(1) Total loans are net of deferred fees and costs and purchase premiums or discounts
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Investment Activities
¥

General. The Bank is required by federal regulations to maintain an amount of liquid
assets, such as cash and short-term securities, for the purposes of meeting operational needs.
The Bank is also permitted to make certain other securities investments. See “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and
Commitments.” Cash flow projections are regularly reviewed and updated to assure that
adequate liquidity is provided. o

The Bank is authorized to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S.
Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and government sponsored
enterprises, certain certificates of dep051t of msured banks and. savings 1nst1tut10ns certain
bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreeménts and federal funds. Subject to various restrictions,
federal savings associations may also invest their assets in investment grade commercial paper
and corporate debt securities and mutual funds whose assets conform to the investments that a
federally chartered savings association is otherwise authorized to make directly. See.“How We
Are Regulated - Atlantic Coast. Bank for a. dlscussmn of additional restrictions on'the Bank s
mvestment activities. o . " " ;

Pt e v

The board of directors has adopted an investment policy which governs the nature and
extent of 'investment activities, and the responsibilities of management and the board.
Investment activities are directed by the Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer, in coordination
with the Company s Asset/Liability Committée. Various factors are considered ‘when making
decisions, yincluding the marketability, maturity *and tax consequences of the proposed
investment. The maturity structure of mvestments will be affected by various market
conditions; including the current and anticipated short and long terin interest rates, the level of
interest rdtes, the trend of new deposit inflows, and the anticipated demand for funds via
deposit thhdrawals and loan orlgmatlons and purchases

The current structure of the 1nvestment portfollo provides liquidity when loan demand
is high, assists in maintaining earnings when loan’ demand is low and maximizes earrungs
while satlsfactorlly managing risk, including credlt rlsk reinvestment risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. See “Management’s’ Discussion' and Analysis of Financial Condxtlon and
Results of Operations - Asset and Liability Management and Market Risk.”

r

- . :

Investment Secunttes The Bank mvests in: 1nve_stment securltles for example Umted

States government sponsored enterprises. and state| and municipal obligations, as’part of its
asset hablhty management strategy. All such secuntl'es% are classified as available for sale.

! !

SFAS.No. 115, Accounting, for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities ("SEAS

115%), reqmr‘es that investments be categorlzed as held to maturity,” “trading securities” or

“available.for sale,” based on management’s mtent'as to the ultimate disposition of each

security. SFAS 115 allows debt securities to be classified as “held to maturity” and reported in

financial statements at amortized cost only if the reporting entity has the positive intent and

ability to hold those securities to maturity.

1
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The composition and maturities of the debt securities portfolio, as of December 31, 2006,
are as follows:

Less Than 1to5 5to 10 Over

1 Year Years Years © 10 Years Total Securities
Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized Fair
Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Value
(Dollars in Thousands)

Government sponsored . o ,

enterprises b 5,686 5 4733 $ 969 $ .5000 5 16,388 . $16,280
State and Municipal 1,073 675 - ‘ - 1,748 1,729
Mortgage-backed : '

securities - 2,782 19,174 59,471 81,427 81,222
Total investment

securities $ 6,759 $ 8,190 $ 20,143 $ 64,471 $ 99,563 $99,231
Weighted average yield 4.16% 4.41% 554% - 5.42% ~ 5.28% 5.28%

(1) The above presentation does not include the carrying values, yields and maturities of mutual funds as these
investments do not have contractual maturities.

Sources of Funds _. ' , ,

General. The Bank’s sources of funds are deposits, payment of principal and interest on
loans, interest earned on or maturation of other investment securities, borrowings, and funds
provided from operations.

Deposits. The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts to consumers with a wide range
of interest rates and terms. Deposits consist of time deposit accounts, savings, money market
and demand deposit accounts. Historically, the Bank has paid attractive rates on deposit
accounts. The Bank relies primarily on premium pricing policies, marketing and customer
service to attract and retain these deposits. Additionally, the Bank will purchase time deposit
accounts from brokers at costs and terms which are comparable to time deposits originated in
the branch offices. ' - :

The variety of deposit accounts offered has allowed the Bank to be competitive in
obtaining funds and to respond with flexibility to changes in consumer demand. As customers
have become more interest rate conscious, the Bank has become more susceptible to short-term
fluctuations in deposit flows. Pricing of deposits are managed to be consistent with overall
asset/liability management, liquidity and profitability objectives. Management consider
numerous factors including: (1) the need for funds based on loan demand, current maturities of
deposits and other cash flow needs; (2) rates offered by market area competitors for similar
deposit products; (3} current cost of funds and yields on assets; and (4} the alternative cost of
funds on a wholesale basis, in particular the cost of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB"). Interest rates are reviewed by senior management weekly. Based on historical
experience, management believes that the Bank’s deposits are a relatively stable source of funds.
Despite this stability, the Bank's ability to attract and maintain these deposits and the rates paid
on them has been and will continue to be significantly affected by market conditions.
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As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in
amounts greater than or equal to $100,000 was approximately $131.7 million. The following
table sets forth the maturity of those certificates as of December 31, 2006.

. . , At .
. = - . < Sy December31, *
Maturity Period v ' o T 2006

(Dollars in Thousands) -

" &
aes £ I, B =
' R A,y *

Three months or less _ R 45,577 )

Over three months through six months g R 23,070 L )
Over six months through one year = B ‘ oo 15,540 B o
Over one year to three years E ' ' 39,976 ‘ )
Over three years - 7,520 o
Total - = N 131,683 :

Borrowings. Although deposits are’ the prlmary source of funds, the Bank may ut111ze
borrowings when it is a less costly source of funds, and can be invested at a positive interest rate
spread, when additional capacity is required to purchase loans or to fund loan demand or when
they meet asset/liability management goals. Borrowings have historically consisted of advances .
from the FHLB of Atlanta. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements \

‘Advances from the FHLB of Atlanta may be obtained upon the:security of mortgage loans
and mortgage-backed securities. These advances may be made pursuant to several different credit
programs, each of which has its own interest rate, range of maturities and call features. At
December 31, 2006, the Company had $144.0 mllhon in FHLB aclvances outstanding. '

TN

The following table sets forth informaﬁpn as t0 FHLB advances-for the periods indicated.
! H 1 P . F .

'
‘

Years Ended December 31, -

1!1

. . 2006 . 2005 2004 -

¢ o . {Dollars I Thousands) - o
Average balance outstanding $ 128,260 $ 119,462 $. 87,640 -
Maximum month-end balance $ 144,000 $ 129,000 $ 100,314 - -
. | }

Balance at end of period L.ﬁ $-144,000 - 5 l;l29,000 $ 100, 314 '
. P :,. : - [N . , .

Weighted average interest rate during the pefiod f 4.26% 418% - 'f 4. 26% '
Weighted average interest rate at end of period - . . 4.45% ) 4.18% _ 3.67% . -

Subsidiary and Other Activities b ‘

At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation did not have any active .
subsidiaries other than Atlantic Coast Bank. During 2005, Atlantic:Coast Bank formed Atlantic
Coast Holdings (“Holdings") as a wholly owned-subsidiary for the purpose of managing and
investing in certain securities, as well as owning all of’the common stock and 85% of the
preferred stock of Coastal Properties, Inc. a Real:Estate Investment Trist (“REIT”). The REIT
was formed for the purpose of holding Georgla and Florida first Hen residential mortgages 7
orlgmated by Atlantic Coast Bank. The activities of . First Commumty Financial Services, a
subsidiary of Atlantic Coast Bank, were consolidated info Atlantic. Coast Bank in the fourth
quarter of 2003. :
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How We Are Regulated ; SR ot .
R . . S . . f . ) .o . "
Set forth below is ‘a brief- descrlptlon ‘of .certain - laws- and - regulations, Wthh are
applicable to Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation and Atlantic Coast Bank. The description of
these laws and regulations, as well'as descriptions of laws and regulations contained elsewhere
herein, does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to 'the
applicable laws ‘and regulations. « Legislation is ‘introduced from.time to time in the United -
States Congress that may affect the operations of Atlantic-Coast Federal Corporation. and
Atlantic Coast Bank.  In addition, the regulations governing' Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation
and Atlantic Coast Bank may be amended from time to time by the Office of Thrift Supervision
("OTS"). Any such legislation or regulatory changes in the future could adversely affect
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation or Atlantic Coast Bank. No assurance can be given as to
whether or in what form any such changes may occur.
- . R ' L :"- T
* General. . Atlantic Coast Bank, as a federally chartered savings institution, is subject to
federal regulation and oversight by the OTS extending to all aspects of its operations. The Bank
is also subject to regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”),” which
insures the deposits. of Atlantic Coast Bank to the'maximum extent permitted by law, and
requirements established by the Federal Reserve Board. Federally chartered savings institutions
are required to file periodic reports with the OTS and are subject to periodic.examinations by
the OTS and the FDIC. The investment and lending authority of savings institutions are
prescribed by federal laws and regulations,-and suchtinstitutions are prohibited from engaging
in any.activities not permitted by such laws and regulations. Such regulation and supervision
primarily is intended for the protection of depositors and not for the purpose of protecting
stockholders. The'OTS regularly examines the Bank and prepares reports for the consideration
of Atlantic.Coast Bank’s board of directors on any- deficiencies that it may find in the Bank’s
operations. The Bank’s relationship with its depositors and borrowers also is regulated to-a
great extent by both federal and state laws, especially in such matters as the ownership of
deposit accounts and the form and content 'of loan documients. - Any change.in such regulations,
‘whether by the FDIC, the OTS; or the. Congress, could have:a material adverse .impact on
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation.and Atlantic Coast Bank-and their operations. "« o
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation . .- - O , 8
. te. e o [ N L : ao . . ¥ Lo
General. -Atlantic Codst Federal Corporation is a. federal :mutual holding company
subsidiary within the meaning of Section 10(0) of the Home Owners" Loan Act. It is required-to
file reports:with the OTS-and is.subject to regulation and examination by the OTS. In addition,
the OTS has enforcement:authority over Atlantic.Coast Federal Corporation and any -non-
savings institution subsidiaries. This permits the OTS toirestrict or-prohibit activities that it
determines to be a serious risk to Atlantic Coast Bank. This regulationiis intended primarily for
the protection of the depositors and not for the benefit of stockholders of.Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporatidn. s - .. . U0 ey -
T ] S
: Activities Restrictions,  Atlantic. Coast Federal Corporation and its .non-savings
institution subsidiaries are subject to statutory and regulatory restrictions on their business
activities specified by .federal regulations,. which include ,performing services.-and: holding
properties used by a savings institution 'subsidiary, activities-authorized for-savings_and loan
holding companies as of March 5, 1987, and non-banking activities perrm551b1e for bank holding
companies pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 or authorized for.financial
holding companies pursuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act.
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if Atlantic Coast Bank fails the qualified thrift lender test, Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation must, within one year of that failure, register as, and will become subject to, the
restrictions applicable to bank holding companies. See “- Qualified Thrift-Lender Test.”

Mergers and Acquisitions. Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation must obtain approval
from the OTS before acquiring more than 5% of the voting.stock of another savings institution
or savings and loan holding company or acquiring such an institution or holding company by
merger, consolidation or purchase of its assets. In evaluating an application for Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation to. acquire control of a savings institution, the OTS would consider the
financial and managerial resources and future prospects of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation
and the target institution, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insurance funds, the
convenience and the needs of the community and competitive factors.

Waivers of Dividends by Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation. OTS regulations require
Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC to notify the OTS of any proposed waiver of its receipt of
dividends from Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation. The OTS reviews dividend waiver notices
on a case-by-case basis, and, in general, does not object to any such waiver if: (i) the mutual
holding company’s board of directors determines that such waiver is consistent with such
directors’ fiduciary duties to the mutual holding company’s members; (ii) and the waiver
would not be detrlmental to the safe and sound operation of the institution.

- In 2006, Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC waived receipt of quarterly dividends in the total
amount of $3.7 million. It is anticipated that Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC will waive dividends,
from time to time, paid by Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation, if any. Under OTS regulations,
public stockholders would not be-diluted because of any dividends waived by Atlantic Coast
Federal, MHC (and waived dividends would not be considered in determining an appropriate
exchange ratio) in the event Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC converts to stock form.

‘Conversion of Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC to Stock Form. The OTS regulations permit
Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC to convert from the mutual form of organization to the capital
stock form of organization (a “Conversion Transaction”). There can be no assurance when, if
ever, a Conversion Transaction will occur. In a Conversion Transaction a new holding
company would be formed as the successor to Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation {the “New
Holding Company”), Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC's corporate existence would end, and certain
depositors of Atlantic Coast Bank would receive the right to subscribe for additional shares of
the New Holding Company. In a Conversion Transaction, cach share of common stock held by
stockholders other than Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC (“Minority Stockholders”) would be
automatically converted into a number of shares of common stock in the New Holding
Company determined pursuant to an exchange ratio that ensures that the Minority
Stockholders own the same percentage of common stock in the New Holding Company as they
owned in Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation immediately prior to the Conversation
Transaction. The total number of shares held by Minority Stockholders after a Conversion
Transaction also would be increased by any purchases by Minority Stockholders in the stock
offering conducted as part of the Conversion Transaction.’ ‘

A Conversion Transaction requires the approval of the OTS as well as a majority of the
votes eligible to be cast by the members of Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC and a majority of the
votes eligible to be cast by the stockholders of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation other than
Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC..
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Atlantic Coast Bank

The OTS has extensive authority over the operations of savmgs institutions. As part of
this authority, Atlantlc Coast Bank is required to file periodic reports with the OTS and is
subject to periodic examinations by the OTS -and the FDIC. When these examinations are
conducted by the OTS and the FDIC, the examiners may require the Bank to provide for higher
general or specific loan loss reserves. All savings institutions are subject to a semi-annual
assessment, based upon the savings institution’s total assets, to f:und the operations of the OTS.

The OTS also has extensive 'enforcement authority over all s_avmgs institutions and their
holding companies, including Atlantic Coast Bank and Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation.
This enforcement authority includes, among other things, the ability to assess civil money
penalties, to issue cease-and-desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctive actions. In
_ general, these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and
unsafe or unsound, practices. Other actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement
action, including misleading or untimely reports filed with the OTS Except under certain

circumstances, public disclosure of final enforcement actions by the OTS is requlred
i

In addition, the investment, lending and branchmg authortty of Atlantic Coast Bank is
prescribed by federal laws and it is prohibited from engaging in any activities not permitted by
such laws. For instance, no savings institution may invest in non: mvestment grade corporate
debt securities. In addition, the perrnissible level of investment by federal institutions in loans
secured by non-residential real property may not exceed 400% of total capital, except with
approval of the OTS. Federal savings institutions are also generally authorized to branch
nationwide. Atlantic Coast Bank is in compliance with the noted restrictions.

Atlantlc Coast Bank’s general permissible lendmg limit for loans-to-one-borrower is
equal to the greater of $500,000 or 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus {except for loans fully
secured by certain readily marketable collateral, in which case this limit is increased to 25% of
unimpaired capital and surplus). At December 31, 2006, Atlantrc Coast Bank's lending limit
under this restriction was $12.2 million. Atlantic Coast Bank is in comphance with the loans-to-
one- borrower limitation.

The OTS, as well as the other federal bankmg agencies, has adopted guidelines
estabhshmg safety and soundness standards on such matters as loan underwriting and
documentation, asset quality, earnings standards, internal controls and audit systems, interest
rate risk exposure and compensation and other employee benefits.! Any mstrtutlon Wthh fails
to comply with these standards, must submit a compliance plan.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC
. o _|

Deposit accounts in Atlantic Coast Bank are insured by the FDIC, generally up to a
maximum of $100,000 per separately insured depositor and up to a maximum of $250,000 for
self-directéd retirement accounts. Atlantic Coast Bank’s deposits, therefore, afe subject to FDIC
deposit insurance assessments. |

On 'February 15, 2006, federal legislation to reform federal deposit insurance was
enacted. This new legislation requires, amonig other things, an increase in the amount of federal
deposit insurance coverage from $100,000 to $130,000 (with a cost of living adjustment to
become effective in five years). The legislation also requires the reserve ratio to be modified to
provide for a range between'1.15% and 1.50% of estimated msured dep051ts . to

1 +

25




Effective March 31, 2006, the FDIC merged the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) and the
Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”) into a single fund called the Deposit Insurance
Fund. As a result of the merger, the BIF and the SAIF were abolishéd. The merger of the BIF
and the SAIF into the Deposit Insurance Fund does not affect the authority of the Financing
Corporation (“FICO") to impose and colléct, with'the approval of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, assessments for anticipated payments, issuance costs and custodial fees on bonds
issued by the FICOin the 1980s to recapitalize the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation. The bonds issued by thé FICO are due to mature in 2017 through 2019. For the’
quarter ended December 31, 2006, the annualized FICO assessment was equal to 1.24 basis
pomts for each $100 in domestic deposits mamtamed atan mctxtutlon

On November 2, 2006, the FDIC adopted final regulatlons that assess insurance
premiums based on risk. As a result, the new regulatlon will'enable the FDIC to more closely
tie each financial institution’s deposit insurance premiums to the risk it poses to the deposit -
insurance fund. Under the new risk-based assessment system, which becomes effective in the
beginning of 2007, the FDIC will evaluate the risk of each financial institution based on its
supervisory rating, its financial ratios, and its long-term debt issuer rating." The new rates for
nearly all of the financial institution industry will vary between five and seven cents for every
$100 of domestic deposits. At the same time, the FDIC also adopted final regulations
de51gnatmg the reserve ratio for the deposit insurance fund during 2007 at 1.25% of estimated
insured deposits. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, Atlantic Coast Bank did not pay
any federal deposit insurance prerruums under the ex1st1ng assessment schedule.

Reguiatory Capital Requlrements
: - o
Federally insured savings institutions, such as Atlantic Coast Bank, are required to
maintain a minimum level of regulatory capital. The OTS has established capltal standards,
including a tangible capital requirement, a leverage ratio or core capital requirement and a risk-
based capital requirement applicable to such savings institutions. These capital requirements
must be generally as stringent as the comparable capital requirements for national banks. The
OTS is also authorized to impose capital requirements in excess of these standards on
individual institutions on a case-by-case basis. Atlantic Coast Bank meets the requirements to
be considered adequately capitalized, as well as those required to be well capitalized. The
capital regulatlons require tangible capital of at least 1.5% of adjusted total assets, as defined by
regulatlon Tangible caplta] generally includes common stockholders’ equity and retainéed
incomé, and certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related income. In addition,
all mtanglble assets, other than a limited amount of purchased mortgage serv1cmg rights, must
be deducted from tangible capital for ‘calculating ‘compliance ‘with the requirement. At
December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank had $2.9 million of intangible assets consisting of
goodwﬂl of $2.7 million and net core deposit intangible of $227 000.

At December 31, 2006 Atlantlc Coast Bank had tanglbte capital of $7’7 1 million, or 9.2%
of ad]usted total assets, which is approx1mately $64 5 million above the minimum requirement
of 1.5% of adjusted total assets in effect on that date.

The capital standards, also require core capital equal to at least 4. 0% of adjusted total
assets unless its supervisory. condition is such to allow it to maintain a 3.0% ratio. Core capital
generally consists of tangible capital plus certain mtang]ble assets, mcludmg a limited amount
of purchased credit card relationships. At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank had $2.9
million of intangibles, which were subject to these tests. At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast
Bank had core capital equal to $77.1 million, or 9.2% of adjusted total assets, which is '$43.7
million above the minimum requirement of 4.0% in effect on that date.
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. The OTS-also requires savings institutions to have core capital.équal to-4% of risk-
weighted assets (”Tiei"l”). At December'31," 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank had Tier 1 risk-based
capital of $77.1 or 13.1% of risk-weighted assets, which is approximately $53.5 million above-the
minimum on such date. The OTS also requires savings institutions to have total capital of at
Jleast 8.0% ofrisk-weighted assets. Total capital consists of core capital as defined above and
supplementary capital. Supplementary capital consists of certain permanent and maturing
capital instruments that do not qualify as core capital and general valuation loan and lease loss
allowances up to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.. Supplementary capital may be
used to satisfy the risk-based requirement only to the extent of core capital. The OTS is also
authorized to require a savings institution:to' maintain an additional amount of total capital to
account for concentration of cr'edit risk and the risk of non-traditiorial acﬁvities. ’ R
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In determmmg the amount of rlsk~we1ghted assets, all assets, 1nclud1ng certain off-
balance sheet items; will'be multiplied by:a risk weight, ranging from 0% to 100%, based on the
risk-inherent in the type of ‘asset.. For example, the OTS has ‘assigned arisk weight of 50% for.
pruderitly 'underwritten permanént one- to four-family first lien mortgage loans not more than
90 days dehnquent and having a loan-to-value ratio of not more than 90% at originatioh unless
insured to such ratio by an insurer approved' by Fannie Mae ot-Freddie Mac T
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. On December 31 2006, Atlantlc Coast Bank had total rlsk-based Capltal of $81.8 m11110n ‘

and risk-weighted assets of $590.0 mllhon, or total capital of 13.9% of nsk-welghted assets. This
amotnt was $34 6'million above the' 8. 0% requ1rement in effect on that date., * - -«
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.\ The OTS and the FDIC are authonzed and under certain’ c1rcumstances required to take
certain actions againstisavings institutions that fail to meet their capital requirements. The OTS
is genérally required-to-take action to restrict the activities of an “undercapitalized institution,”
which!is an institution with less than either a 4.0% core capital'ratio, a 4.0% Tier- 1 risked-based.
capital ratio or an 8.0% risk-based 'capital ratio. " Any’ such institution must'submit a capital
restoration plan and until the plan is approved by the OTS, may not increase its assets, acquire
another institution, establish a branch or engage in any new activities, and generally may not
make capital distributions. The OTS is authorized to impose the additional restrictions that are
apphcable to mgmﬁcantly undercapltahzed 1nst1tut10ns ’

l
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"As a condition to the approval of the capital restoration plan, any ¢ompany controlling
an undercapitalized ‘institution must agree that it will enter into a limited capltal maintenance
guarantee with respect to the institution’s achievement of its capltal requitements.’ " "t

A ‘Any savmgs 1nst1tut10n that falls to Comply with its‘capital’ plan or has Tier 1 risk-based
or core capltal ratios -of less than 3. 0%or a risk- based capital ratio ‘of less than 60% and"is
0n51dered 51gmf1cantly undercapltallzed” will be’'made sub]ect to one or 'more’ addltlonal
spec1f1ed adtions and operatmg restrlctlons which' may cover all aspects of its operatlons and
may -inclide "a forced merger ! or- acqulsltlon of - the institition. ' An 1nst1tut10n ‘that’ Bécomes

crlhcally undercapltahzed ‘because it'has a tangible capital raticof 2.0% or’less is sub]ect to
further’ mandatory ‘restrictions on its’ activiti€s in -addition to- those apphcable to significantly
undercapitalized institutions. In addition, the OTS must appoint a ‘receiver, or consérvator with'
the concurrence of the FDIC, for a savings institution, with certaln limited exceptions, within 90
days after it bécomes cr1t1cally unidercapitalized. Any undercapltahzed institution 'is also
sub]ect to the general enforcement authorlty of the OTS“ 'and ‘the  FDIC,” 1nc1ud1ng the
appomtment of a conservator ora recelver foni ) SR
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The OTS is also generally authorized to reclassify an institution into a lower capital
category.and impose the restrictions applicable to such category if the institution is engaged in
unsafe or unsound practices or is in an unsafe or unsound condition.

The imposition by the OTS or the FDIC of any of thése measures on Atlantic Coast Bank .
may have a substantial adverse effect on its operations and profitability.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

OTS regulations impose various restrictions on savings institutions with respect to their
ability to make distributions of capital, which include dividends, stock redemptions or
repurchases, cash-out mergers and other transactions charged to the capital account.

Generally, savings institutions, such as Atlantic Coast. Bank, that before and after the
proposed distribution are well-capitalized, may make capital distributions during any calendar
year equal to 100% of net income for the year-to-date plus retained net income for the two
preceding years. However, an institution deemed to be in need of ‘more than normal
supervision by the OTS may have its dividend authority. restricted by the OTS. Atlantic Coast
Bank may pay dividends to Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation in accordance with this general
authority. .

Savings institutions proposing to make any capital distribution need not submit written
notice to the OTS prior to such distribution unless they are a subsidiary of a holding company
or would not remain well capitalized following the distribution. Savings institutions that do
not, or would not meet their current minimum capital requirements following a proposed
capital distribution ,or propose to exceed these net income limitations, must obtain OTS
approval prior to making such distribution. The OTS may object to the distribution during that
30-day period based on safety. and soundness concerns. See ”-. Regulatory Capital
Requirements.” :

Liquidity , L

All savings institutions, including Atlantlc Coast Bank, are requlred to mamtam
sufficient liquidity- to ensure a safe and sound operation.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test

All savings institutions, including Atlantic Coast Bank, are required to meet a qualified
thrlft lender test to avoid certain restrictions on thelr operations. This test requires a savings,
institution to have at least 65% of its portfoho assets, as defined by regulatlon in qualified thrift
investments on a monthly average for nine out of every 12 months on a rolling basis.. As an
alternative, the savings institution may maintain 60% of its assets in those assets specified in
Section 7701(a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code. . Under, either test, such assets p_r1mar11y
consist of residential housing related loans and. 113vestments. At December 31, 2006, Atlantic
Coast Bank was in compliance with the test.

Any savings institution that fails to meet the qualified. thrift lender test must convert to a
national bank charter or become subject to the restrictions applicable to national banks, unless it
re-qualifies as a qualified thrift lender within one year of failure and thereafter remains a
qualified thrift lender. If such an institution has not yet re-qualified or converted to a national
bank, its new investments and activities are limited to those permissible for both a savings
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institution and a national bank, and it is limited to national bank branching rights in its home
state. In addition, the institution is immediately ineligible to receive any new FHLB borrowings
and is subject to national bank limits for payment of dividends. If such an institution has not re-
qualified or converted to a national bank within three years after the failure, it must divest of all
investments and cease all activities not permissible for a national bank. If any institution that
fails the qualified thrift lender test is controlled -by a holding company, .then within one year
after the failure, the holding company must register as a bank holding company and become
subject to all restrictions on bank holding companies. . - | :

Community Reinvestment Act : T

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, every FDIC-insured institution has a
continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with safe and sound banking practices to help
meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate  income
neighborhoods. The Community Reinvestment Act does not establish specific lending
requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution’s discretion to
develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular
community, consistent with the Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment
Act requires the OTS, in connection with the examination of Atlantic Coast Bank, to assess the
institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its community and to take such record into
account in its evaluation of certain applications, such as a merger or the establishment of a
branch, by Atlantic Coast Bank. An unsatisfactory rating may be used as the basis. for the denial
of an application by the OTS. Due to the heightened attention being given to the Community
Reinvestment Act in the past few years, Atlantic Coast Bank may be required to devote
additional funds for investment and lending in its local community. Atlantic Coast Bank was
examined for Community Reinvestment Act compliance and received a rating of satisfactory in
its latest examination.

!

Transactions with Affiliates = - Ve
. . 1

Generally, transactions between a savings institution or its subsidiaries and its affiliates
are required to be on terms as favorable to the institution as transactions with non-affiliates. In
addition, certain of these transactions, such as loans to an affiliate, are restricted to a percentage
of the institution’s capital. Affiliates of Atlantic Coast Bank include Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation and any company, which is under common control with Atlantic Coast Bank.. In
addition, a savings institution may not.lend.to. any affiliate engaged in activities not permissible
for a bank holding company or acquire the securities of. most affiliates. The OTS has the
discretion to treat subsidiaries of savings institutions as affiliates on a case-by-case basis.

[n addition, the OTS regulations prohibit a savings institution from lending to any of its
affiliates that is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and
from purchasing the securities of any affiliate, other than a subsidiary.

Certain transactions with ‘directors, officers or controlling persons are also subject to
conflict of interest regulations enforced by the OTS. These conflict of interest regulations and
other statutes also impose restrictions on loans to such persons -and their related interests.
Among other things, such loans must generally be made on terms substantlally the same as for
loans to unaffiliated individuals. :
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Prlvacy requlrements of the GLBA ot O ‘ oo
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The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act:of 1999, provided for sweeping financial modeérnization
for commercial banks, savings banks, securities firims, insurance companies, and other financial
institutions operating in the United States. . Among other provisions; the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act places limitations on the sharing of consumer financial information with unaffiliated third
parties. " Specifically, the. Gramm-Leach-Bliley, Act of 1999 requires -all financial institutions
offering financial products or services to retail customers to provide such customers with the
financial institutions’ privacy statement and provide such customers the opportumty to ” opt
out” of the sharing of personal information with unaffiliated third partles BT TR
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The USA PATRIOT" Act was slgned into law on October 26, 2001. +The USA PATRIOT
_Act .gives the federal government new powers to address terrorist.threats through enhanced
domestic security measures, expanded surveillance powers, increased -information sharing and
broadened anti-money laundering requirements. The USA PATRIOT Act.also requires the
federal banking agencies'to take-into consideration the effectiveness of controls designed to
combat money laundering activities in determining whether to approve-a merger or other
acquisition application of-a member institution.. ‘Accordingly, if the Company engages in a
merger or. other acquisition, controls designed to combat money laundering would be
considered as*part of the application process. Management has estabhshed policies, procedures
and ‘systems de51gned to comply with these regulahons v T : P
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Federal Secur;tles Law AT DR TRV SO S

The stock of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporatlon is registered with the Securltles and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation is subject to the information,: proxy solicitation, -insider
tradmg restrictions and other reqmrements of the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of
19345 - - o b R Y Y B
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' .Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation stock held by persons-who are affiliates of Atlantic
Coast. Federal Corporation- may not'be resold without registration unless sold in’ accordance
with certain:resale restrictions. Affiliates are generally considered to.be officers, directors and
principal stockholders. If Atlantic. Coast Federal.Corporation meets: specified current public
information requiremients, each affiliate of Atlantic Coast Federal: Corporation will be able to
sell in the public market, without regjlstration a limited number of shares.in any three-month
perlod
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The Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002 was SIgned into law by President Bush on ]uly 30, 2002
in responseto public. concerns' regarding corporate accountability. in connection with recent
accounting scandals. .The stated goals’ of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. areto increase corporate
responsibility,’to provide for enhanced penalties for-accounting and auditing improprieties.at
publicly traded companies-and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securities laws. The Sarbaries-Oxley ‘Act-generally applies
to all companies that file or are required to file periodic reports with the SEC, under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation.
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The Sarbanes-Oxley Act mandated additional disclosure requirements and new corporate
governance rules; requires the SEC and securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure,
corporate governance and other relatéd rules. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents significant federal
involvement in matters traditionally left to state regulatory systems, such as the regulation of the
accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such as the relationship between a board of
directors and management and between a board of directors and its committees. SR

Federal Reserve System

+

The Federal Reserve Board requires all depository institutions to maintain non-intérest
bearing reserves at specified levels against their transaction accounts, primarily checking, NOW and
Super NOW checking accounts. . At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank was in compliance with
‘these reserve requirements. Savings institutions are authorized to borrow from the Federal Reserve
Bank “discount window,” but Federal Reserve Board regulations require institutions'to exhaust
other reasonable alternative sources of funds, mcludmg FHLB borrowings, before borrowmg from
the Federal Reserve Bank. * ' '
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FederalHomeLoanBankSystem v RN !

Atlantic Coast Bank is 4 member of the Federal Home Loan Ba.nk of Atlanta, wtuch is one of
12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks that administers the home fman‘cmg credit function of savings
institutions. Each Federal Home Loan Bank (”FHLB") serves as a reserve or central bark for its
members within its a551gned region. It is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of
consolidated obhgatlons of the FHLB System It makes loans or advances to members in accordance
with policies and procedures, established by the board of directors of the FHLB, which are subject to
the oversight of the Federal Housing Finance Board. All advances from the FHLB are required to be
fully secured by sufficient collateral as determined by the FHLB. In addition, all long-term advances
are requ1red to prov1de funds for resndenhal home financing.. - t : '

As a member Atlantlc Coast Bank is requ1red to purchase and mamtam stock in the FHLB of

Atlanta At December 31,.2006, Atlantic Coast Bank had $7.9 million in FHLB stock, which was in

comphance w1th this requlrement In .past years, Atlantic Coast Bank has _received substantla]

dividends on its FHLB- stock. Atlantic Coast Bank received dividends of $412, 000 for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 2006. Over the past two fiscal years such d1v1dends have averaged 5.01% and
. were 5.73% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

"Under federal law, the Federal Home Loan Banks are required to provide funds for the
resolution of troubled. ;savings institutions and to contribute to low- and moderately-priced housing
'pr_ogram_s through direct loans or interest subsidies on advances targeted for community investment
and low- and moderate-income housing projects. These contributions have affected adversely the
level of FHLB dividends paid and could continue to do so in the future. These contributions could
also have an adverse éffect on the value of FHLB stock in the future.. A reduction in value of Atlantic
Coast Bank’s FHLB stock may resultin a Correspondmg reductlon in Atlantlc Coast Bank’s capital: -

4
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"' The Bank faces strong competmon in orlgmahng real estate and other loans and m attractmg
. deposits. Competition in originating real estate loans comes primarily froim other savmgs institutions,
commercial banks, credit unions and mortgage bankers, Lately, another element of competition for
real estate lending in'the Florida miarket has come’ from the financing arms of national builders ‘who
have increased their production in the Florida market. Other savings mstttutlor\s, commercial banks,
credit unions and finance companies provide vigorous competition’inconsumer ‘lending. For
purchased loans, the Bank faces competition from other lenders and investors.
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The majority of deposits are attracted through the Bank’s branch and ATM network.
Competition for those deposits is principally from other savings institutions, commercial banks and
credit unions, as well as mutual funds and other alternative investments. The Bank competes for
these deposits by offering superior service, competitive rates and a unique ATM arrangement that
gives the Bank’s customers use of all competitor ATM at a discounted or no fee charge. As of
December 31, 2006, management believes that the Bank held 1.75% of the deposits in its primary
market areas.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had a total of 177 employees, including 15 part-time
employees. The Company’s employees are not represented by any collective bargaining group.

Available Information

The Company makes available financial information, news releases and other information on
the Company’s Web site at www.AtlanticCoastBank.net. There is a link to obtain all filings made by
the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission including the Company’s annual
reports on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. The reports
or amendmenits are available free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company files
such reports and amendments with, or furnishes them to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Stockholders of record may also contact Corpofate Communications, Inc., 523 Third Avenue South,
Nashville, Tennessee, 37210 or call (615)-254-3376 to obtain a copy of these reports without charge.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The business, and an investment in the common stock, involves risks. Summarized below are
the risk factors which management believes are material to the business and could negatively affect
operating results, financial condition and the trading value of the common stock. Other risks factors,
not currently known to management, or that are currently deem to be immaterial or unlikely, also
could adversely affect the business. In assessing the following risk factors, the reader should also
refer to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Company s

other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Risks Relating to the Business

The loan portfolio possesses increased risk due to the substantial number of multi-family,
commercial real estate, commercial business-and consumer loans, which could increase the level
of provision for loan losses. :

The Bank’s outstanding commercial real estate, commercial business, construction, multi-
family, and automobile and other consumer loans accounted for approximately 27.1% of the total
loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006. Generally, management considers these types of loans to
involve a higher degree of risk compared to first mortgage loans on one- to four-family, owner
occupied residential properties. These loans have higher risks than loans secured by residential real
estate for the following reasons:

« Commercial Real Estate and Commercial Business Loans, Repayment is dependent on

incoine being generated by the rental property or business in amounts sufficient to cover
operating expenses and debt service.
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» Commercial and Multi-Family Construction Loans. Repayment is dependent upon the
completion of the project and income being generated by the rental property or.business
in amounts sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt service.

« Single Family Construction Loans. Repayment is dependent upon the successful
completion of the project and the ability of the contractor or builder to repay the loan
from the sale of the property or obtaining permanent fmanclmg

. Multi- -Family Real Estate Loans. Repayment is dependent on income being generated
by the rental property in amounts sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt
service.

‘s ‘Consumer Loans. Consumer-loans (such as automobile loans} are collateralized, if at all,
with assets that may not pr0V1de an adequate source of repayment of the loan due to
“depreciation, damage or loss

.
' .
- +

Management plans to continue to increase emphasxs on constructlon commercial and
commercial real estate loans. As such management may determme it necessary to increase the
level of provision for [oan losses Increased provisions for loan lolsses would negatlvely affect
the results of operatlon For further mformatlon concerning these risks, see Itein 1. Business -
“Lending Actmhes and - Asset Quahty r

The loan portfolio posseases increased risk "due to rapid eipansion and the overall
unseasoned nature of the portfolio.

From December 31, 2001 to December- 31, 2006, the balance of the gross loan portfoho
has grown from $337.1 million to $640.5 million, an increase of 90.0% with approximately 66%
of that growth occurring in the last three years. Much of this growth is in one- to four-family
residential properties generally located throughout ‘southeastern Georgia and northeastern
Florida. As a result of this rapid expansion, a significant portion of the loan portfoho is
unseasoned, with the risk that these loans may not have had suff1c1ent time to perform to
properly indicate the potential magnitude of losses, Durmg this tljme frame, the Bank has also
continued to experience a historically low interest rate enwronment The unseasoned
adjustable rate loans have not, therefore, been subject to an 1nterest rate environment that
causes them to adjust to the maximum level and may involve repayment risks resulting from
potentially increasing payment obligations by the borrower as a result of repricing. At
December 31, 2006 there were $394.3 million in adjustable rate loans which made up 61.6% of
the loan portfolio. <

The geographic concentration in loans secured by one- to four- family residential real estate
may increase credit losses, which could increase the level of provision for loan losses.

*
»

As of December 31, 2006 approximately 71. 4% of the total loan portfolio was secured by
first or second liens on one- to four- family residential property, primarily in southeastern
Georgia and. northeastern Florida. A major downturn in the local or national economy, or a
sudden change in 1nterest rates could adversely affect the Bank’ s loan customers’ ability to
repay their loans. In the event that the Bank is required to foreclose on a property securing a
mortgage loans or pursue other remedies in order to protect the Bank's investment, there can be
no assurance that the Bank will recover funds in an amount equal to any remaining loan
balance as a result of prevailing economic conditions, real estate values and other factors
associated with the ownership of real property As a result, the market value of the real estate
or other collateral underlying the Ioans may not, at any given’ tlme, be sufficient to satlsfy the
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outstanding principal amount of the loans, Consequently, the Bank would sustain loan losses
and potentially incur a higher provision for loan loss expense... .~ - - .

If the allowance for loan losses is not sufficient to cover actual losses, income may be
negatively affected. '

In the event that loan customers do not repay their loans according to their terms and
the collateral security for the payments of these loans is insufficient to' pay any remaining loan
balance, the Bank may experience significant loan losses. Such credit risk is inherent in the
lending business, and failure to adequately assess such credit risk could have a material-adverse
affect on,the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations. Management makes various
assumptlons and judgments about. the collectibility of the loan portfolio, . 1nc1ud1ng the
creditworthiness of the borfowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as
collateral for the repayment of many of the loans. In determining the amount of the allowance
for loans losses, management reviews the loan portfoho and the Bank’s historical loss and
de]mquency experience, as well as overall economic conditions.”If management s assumptlons
are incorrect, the allowance for loan losses may be insufficient to cover probable incurred losses
in the loan portfolio, resulting in 'additions to the allowance. The allowance for loan losses is
also periodically reviewed by the OTS, who may dlsagree with the allowance and require the
Bank to increase the amount. Additions to the allowance for loans losses would be made
through 1ncreased prov1510ns for loan losses and would negatwely affect the bank’s results of
operatlons o
Dependence on the management team to 1mplement busmeas strategy and execute successful
operatlons

. s

The Bank is dependent ‘upon the servxces of its senior management team. ,The
operatlons and strategy are directéd by the senior management team, a third of whom, have
joined the Bank since October 2004 Currently, only the president and chief executive officer,
who has served in such position; since 1983, and the chief financial officer, have an employment
contract. "Any loss of the services of the pre51dent and chief executive officer or other members
of the management team could have a material adverse effect’ on the Banks results of
operations, its ability to lmplement its busmess strategy and the Bank’s ability to compete in the
market

' _ - e

Changes in interest rates may hurt profits. y

To be profitable, the Bank must earn more money in interest received on loans and
1nvestments than it pays in interest to dep051t0rs and lenders. Thé Federal Reserve Board
increased the Federal Discount rate four times during 2006, from 4.25% to 5.25%, with all
increases occurring during the first six months of 2006. The Federal Discount rate has a direct
correlahon to’ general rates of interest, mcludmg the Bank’s interest- bearmg deposits. As
explamed in more detail in Item 7A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, ‘Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” the Bank’s mix of asset and liabilities are
considered to be sensitive to interest rate changes. Accordingly, if interest rates continue to rise,
net 1nterest income could be reduced because interest paid on interest-bearing . liabilities,
including deposxts ‘and borrowmgs, increases more quickly than interest received on interest-
earning assets, including loans and mortgage- -backed and related securltles In addition, rising
interest rates may negatively affect income because higher rates’ may reduce the demand for
loans and the value of mortgage-related and investment securities. On ‘the dther hand, if
interest rates decrease, net interest 1nc0me could increase. However, in a declining rate
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environment, the Bank may be susceptible to the -payoff or refinance of high rate. mortgage
loans that could reduce net interest income. For a further discussion of,how changes in interest
rates could impact the Bank; see Item 7 in this. Annual Report on Form 10-K, #Managemment's
Discussion and -Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. SN

Strong competltlon in the prxmary market area may reduce th'e ablllty to attract and- retam
deposits and obtain loans. ;

; S N L A PR
. The Bank operates in-a_very competltlve market for the -attraction- of deposits, the
primary source of funding, and the ability to obtain loans through origination or, purchase.
H1stor1caily, the Bank’'s most diréct competition for deposits has come from credit,unions,
-community banks, large commercial banks and thrift mstltutlons within, its- primary, market
areas. Particularly in-times of extremely low or extremely high 1nterest rates, the/Bank has faced
significant competition for investors’ funds from short;term money market securities and other
corporate and government securities. During periods of regularly increasing interest rates
competition for interest bearing deposits increases as customers, particularly. time deposit
customers, tend to move their accounts between competing businesses to obtain the highest
rates in the market. Competition for loans .comes .principally. from mortgage-:bankers,
commercial banks, other thrift institutions, insurance companies and credit unions. Such
competition for deposits and the origination and purchase of Ioans may limit future.growth and
earmngsprospects : R T, P P B AN |
Lot T I A R B ’ L ol i ‘.'.""'-".

If economlc condltmns deteriorate, results of operatlons and fmanmal condition could be
adversely impacted.as borrowers’ ability to repay.loans dechnes and the value of the
collateral securing loans _deqre_ases e e :._.-_ SRRt e

'
'

The Bank’s financial results may be adversely affected by changes in prevailing
economic conditions, including decreases in real estate values,. changes in interest rates which
may cause a decrease in interest rate spreads, adverse employment conditions, the monetary,
and fiscal pohmes of the federal and the Georgia and Florida state governments and other
significant external events. The Bank holds approximately 26 0% of the deposits in Ware
County, the county. in which- Waycross, Georgia is located.. On. the contrary, the:Bank has less
than 1.0% of .the deposits in the ]acksonvﬂle,uFIorlda,,\metropohtan area.. Additionally, the
Bank’s market share of Joans.in.Ware County is mgmﬁcantly greater than its share .of the loan
market in the Jacksonville metropolitan area. As a result of the concentration in-Ware County,
the Bank may be more susceptible to adverse market conditions in that market.. Due to the
significant portion of real estate loans in the loan portfolio, decreases in-real estate values. could
adversely -affect the value of property used-as-collateral... Adverse changes in-the economy may
also have a negative effect.on the ability, of borrowers. to make timely repayments of their.loans;
which would have an adverse impact on earmngs I A T T VA TP TS

P Co s, 0 A AT 7ot g ot T
The Bank Operates in a highly regulated envxronment and may be adversely affected by
changes in laws and regulatlons - :

LA O S PR T e U L R O T Y

Atlant1c Coast Bank is sub]ect to extenswe regulatlon, .supervision and exammahon by
the Office of Thrift Supervision, its chartering authority, and by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, -which, insures-Atlantic Coast Bank’s deposits. -As a savings and loan holding
company, the Company .is subject to.regulation,-and .supervision by _the.Office, of Thrift
Supervision. - Such reg{llation’ andfls_uper\,{ision govern the: activities in which | financial
institutions and_ their: holding companies may engage and are intended. primarily: for the
protection of. the federal deposit insurance fund-and depositors..: These regulatory authorities

|
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have extensive’ discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities,
including the imposition of - restrictions on the operations of financial institutions, the
classification of assets by financial institutions and the adequacy of financial institutions’
allowance for loan losses. Any change in such regulation and ¢versight, whether in the form of
regulatory policy, regulations, or legislation, could have a material 1mpact on Atlantic Coast
Bank and Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation. :

The Bank’s operations are also subject to extensive regulation by other federal, state and
local governmental authorities, and are subject to various laws and judicial and administrative
decisions that impose requirements and restrictions on operations. These laws, rules and
regulations are frequently changed by legislative and regulatory authorities. There can ‘be no
assurance that changes to existing laws, rules and regulations, or any other new laws, rules or-
regulations; will not be adopted in the future, which could make compliance more- -difficult or
expensive or otherwise adversely affect the business, financial condition or prospects.

1

Risks Relating to an Investinent in Common Stock
Stock price may be volatile due to limited tradmg Volume

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporahon s common- stock is traded on the NASDAQ National
Market System. However, the average daily trading volume in the Stock Company’s common
stock is relatively small, less than approximately 10,000 shares per day in 2006, and sometimes
significantly léss than that. As a result, trades involving-a relatively small number of shares may
have'a significant effect on the market price of the.common stock, and it may be difficult for
investors to acquire or dispose of large blocks of stock without significantly affecting the market
pr1ce.

Public stockholders own a mmorlty of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s common stock
and will not be able to exerc1se votmg control over most matters put to a vote of
stockholders.- ! :

- Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s holding company, Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC
owns approx1mately 63.3% of the common stock. Directors and executive officers own or
control approximately 7.1% of the common stock. The same directors and executive officers that
manage Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation, also manage Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC. Public
stockholders who are not associated with the MHC or Atlantic Coast-Federal Corporation own
approximately 29.6% of the common stock. The Board of Directors of Atlantic Coast Federal,
MHC will be able to exercise voting control over most matters put to a vote of stockholders
because the MHC owns a majority- of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s common stock. For
example, Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC may- exercise its voting control to prevent a sale or
merger transaction in which stockholders could receive a premlum for their shares or to
approve employee benefit plans.

Stock issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options awarded to directors and management
will dilute public stockholder ownership.

Directors and management currently hold options to purchase approximately 560,000
shares of common stock, or 4.1% of total common stock outstanding. There are an additional
145,000 shares available for future awards of options under the current stock option plan, or
1.0% of the common stock outstanding. Stock options are paid for by the recipient in an amount
equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant. The payments are not made until
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the option is actually exercised by the recipient. The issuance of common stock pursuant to the -

exercise of total stock options under the stock option plan will result in the dilution of existing
stockholders voting interests by 5.1% unless shares are repurchased to cover such exercise.

Ability to pay dividends is limited. '

Atlantlc Coast Federal Corporatxon s abahty to pay d1v1dends is 11m1ted by regulatory
requ1remer1ts and the need to maintain sufficient consolidated capltal to meet the capital needs
of the business, mcludmg capltal needs related to future growth, The prlmary source of income
is the payment of dividends from Atlantic Coast Bank to the Stock Company. Atlantic Coast
Bank, in turn, is subject to regulatory requirements potentially hmltmg its ability to pay such
dividends and by the need to maintain sufficient.capital for its operations and obligations.
Thus, there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to pay dividends to common
stockholders, no assurance-as to the amount or timing of any such'dividends, and no assurance
that such dividends, if and when paid, will be maintained, at the same level or at all, in future
. periods. : SR : '_

Atlantic Coast Federal MHC may never convert from a mutual stock to a capital stock form
which could adversely affect the market value of the common stock.

Management believes that the current market price of the common stock is partly based
on anticipation by investors that the parent company, Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC will
convert from mutual form to capital stock form in the future. This conversion, which is
commonly known as a “second-step conversion,” would permit members of Atlantic Coast
Federal, MHC to purchase shares of successor common stock, and allow the Company’s
stockholders, other than Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC, to exchange their shares for a-number of
shares in the new stock company based upon an exchange ratio that ensures that such
stockholders own the same percentage in the new company that t:hey owned in Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation immediately prior to the conversion. A “second-step conversion” requires
the approval of the members, the Company’s stockholders and the Office of Thrift Supetvision.
The market value of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s stock could be adversely affected if
investors sell the common stock because they no longer ant1c1pate ‘that a “second-step
conversion” is imminent in the near term. ,
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Item1B. Unresolved Staff Comments .:- ' | R TR S W

. . ' - : . | , ' . r A
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Item 2. Properties b , ;
‘ ) 1 .

At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank had thirteen full service offices and one drive-
up facility and 4 leased office space for the Florida reglonal centér:” Aflantic Coast Bank owns all
Tocations except the site located at 536 Atlantic Bivdl!, Neptune Beach FI. and the reglonal office in
Jacksonville, FL.. Thé net book value of the investment’ m premises,’ equipment arid fixtures,
excludmg computer equrpment was approx1mately $14 4 rrulhon at December 31‘ 2006 "

[ . : ! . TR S L R
+The followmg table pr0v1des a list of the Bank’s main and branch officés. - Lok
v S, T T ST e oo e . T I
5L gt L Y P P Owned. or. ., Lease Expiration . Net Book, Value
Location ' , ) e e Leased | ‘ Date _ December 31 2006
o o ' ot e ' * (Dollars in Thougands)
HOME AND EXECUTIVE OFFICE . Owned . - . 1:587 ~ e
AND MAIN BRANCH :
505 Haines Avenue . _ . .
' . Waycioss, GA 31501 © DR SR R ! : ‘ LTk
: et .. . vt
FLORIDA REGIONAL CENTER e : Léased June 2008 A1
10151 Deerwood Park Blvd. .
Bulldmg 100 Suite 501 . o . C ey e ~ S P

) ]acksonvrlle, FL 32256 . . ' N - ‘ ; -

- . - e, FAEEEY S RS IrER U A N T S L L N S L A
BRANCH OFFLCES. ' : . S +» Owned L vy 3
Drive-up Facility - TR e e ' - ’ T

‘ew 400 Haines Avenue , ~ . 0 Tt ot o o T o R " ST
Waycross, GA 31501 | ! . . ae Ce S T .

. . b - [N AL YRR N : : P ‘ . oo
-2110 Memorial Drive. «, ", 0 o e, Owned L, 0 L ~ 554
, qucross, GA‘ 31_501 . ) (-
' ' Ll ' . . 3 T T . PR L.
1390 South Gaskin Avenue . = . . - « ... - Owned .. e P T Li= -
. Douglas, GA 31533 , N . . o

. P R L N [ T . e, T gt HFRTI AL F
k213Hwy80West S : _ - e o Owned P T W ',28‘7 -
Garden Clty GA 31408 St : ' e oo SR e

T ML SR Sy S - Lot I
. .'10328 Deerwood Park Blvd L . o .Owned . et ‘ , 1054
+ Jacksonville, FL 32256 e o ¢t S L
. -, - v "‘- AT ) » PR AN

8048 Normandy Blvd. . Owned ' - 1,119

Jacksonville, FL 32221

1970 Solomon Street Owned - -- 188

Orange Park, FL 32073

463 West Duval Street Owned - 138

Lake City, FL 32055 !

930 University Avenue, North Owned . - 1,101

Jacksonville, FL 32211

1700 South Third Street ' ] Owned - 1,514

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32200

536 Atlantic Blvd. Leased " May 2007 36

- Neptune Beach, FL 32233 (Relocated January 17, 2007) '

1425 Atlantic Blvd. " Owned - 2,294

Neptune Beach, FL 32233 (Opened January 17, 2007)

2766 Race Track Road - Owned D 2,576

Jacksonville, FL 32259 ’ :

715 Centre Street Owned - 1,099

Fernandina Beach, FL 32034
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Atlantic Coast Bank continuously reviews its branch locations in order to improve the
visibility and accessibility of the Bank’s locations. In October 2006 the new Julington Creek
‘branch’ opened in the northwest corner-of St. Johns County, Florida. On. January 16, 2007
Atlantic Coast Bank relocated the 536 Atlantic Blvd branch, from the leased.location, to-a new
stand alone branch building at 1425 Atlantic Blvd. Atlantic Coast'Bank currently has a second
site in St Johns'County, Florida approved-for development witha completion date proposed
for late.2007 or early 2008, and continues to actively evaluate other sites for future expansion
w1thaf0cus in the Florida market L Y Co “a

; ' : E e : oL s oo . S

Atlantic Coast Bank uses an in-house data processing system, with support provided by
Open Solutions, a third-party vendor to maintain the Company’s database of depositor and
borrower customer information. This year Atlantic Coast Bank extended the data processing
contact with Open Solutions for an additional five year term taking the contract to March 2012.
The net book value of data processmg and computer equipment at December 31, '2006, ‘was
approx1mately $207 000. . - .. o » S S

— o ST . , S ‘ . -

Item 3. Legal Proceedings T T SRR B, Cog

From time to time, The Company is involved as plaintiff.or defendant in various legal
actions arising in the normal course of business: Management does not'anticipate.incurring.any
material liability as-a 'result of this litigation. See Item 7 Managements Dlscussmn and
Analysis of Financial Condition and.Results of Operations.” :

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

i
1

No matters were submitted to a vote of secunty holders durmg the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. ; :

3 [}
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities '

_ Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global
Market under the symbol “ACFC.” As of March 23, 2007, there were 14,813,469 shares of
common stock issued, with approximately 2,000 stockholders, including approximately 1,500
beneficial owners and other persons or entities holding stock in nominee or “street name”
accounts with brokers.

The Company began paying quarterly dividends in May 2005 using earnings from
investments and uninvested proceeds received from the minority share stock:offering on
October 4, 2004. Future dividend payments by Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation will be
primarily dependent on dividends it receives from its subsidiary, Atlantic Coast Bank. -Under
OTS regulations, the dollar amount of dividends that Atlantic Coast Bank may pay.is
dependent upon its capital position and recent earnings. Generally, if Atlantic Coast Bank
satisfies its capital requirements it may make dividend payments up to the limits prescribed in
the OTS regulations. See Business -“How We Are Regulated-Limitations on Dividends and
Other Capital Distributions.” Atlantic Coast Bank may not declare or pay a dividend on, or
repurchase any, of its common stock if the effect thereof would cause the regulatory capital of
the institution to be reduced below the amount "prescribed by the OTS for adequately
capitalized institutions.

The following table sets forth the quarterly market price range of, and dividends
declared on, the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s common stock for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, as provided by NASDAQ: :

High Low Dividends
Fiscal 2006
January 1-March 31 $14.80 $14.05 $0.09
April 1- June 30 15.99 1429 0.10
July 1- September 30 ' 18.33 14.90 0.11
October 1- December 31 18.40 17.31 0.12
High Low Dividends
Fiscal 2005 ‘
January 1-March 31 $14.00 $12.21 $0.05
April 1- June 30 _ 12.65 10.69 0.06
July 1- September 30 14.55 12.21 0.07
October 1- December 31 14.85 13.20 0.08

Set forth hereunder is a stock performance graph comparing: (a) the cumulative total
return on the common stock of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation between October 5, 2004, the
day the common stock commenced trading, and December 31, 2006, (b) the cumulative total
return on stocks included in the Total Return Index for the NASDAQ Composite over such
period, and (c) the cumulative total return on stocks included in the SNL MHC Thrift Index
over such period. Cumulative return assumes the reinvestment of dividends, and is expressed
in dollars based on an assumed investment of $100.
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There can be no assurance that Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s stock performance
will continue in the future with the same or similar trend depicted in the graph. Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation will not make or endorse any predictions as to future stock performance.

Total Return Performance

180 - : -
—&— Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation' ‘
8- NASDAQ Composite o
160 17 _e— SNL MHC Thrift Index ‘
Q 140 -
=
&
>
P
]
k-]
£ 20
100
1
]
80 : : : ‘ : : : ‘ |
10/05/04 12/31/04 06/30/05 - 12131405 . 06/30/06 12/31/06
o
. _ Period Ending
Index 10/05/04  12/31/04  06/30/05  12/31/05  06/30/06  12/31006
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation 100.00 117.19 105.74 121.39 131.04 161.27
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 111.42 105.71 116.70 11544 128.82

SNL MHC Thrift Index 100.00 107.35 107.38 110.29 124.97 151.04
1
‘ : !
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.+ + The table below sets forth' information regarding Atlantic.Coast Federal Corporation’s
common stock repurchase plan durmg the three months and years ended December 31, 2006

and 2005, - . . .

Maximum

Total Number of Number of Shares
. o' e Total Shares Purchased that May Yet Be

Number of Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under

. - n Shates ~ Price Paid' Announced Plans the Plans or

Period Purchased per Share ‘ or Programs Programs

October 1, 2006 through October 31, 2006 - ’ - - 342,250
November 1, 2006 through Novernber 30, 2006 13,766 17.99 . 13,766 328,484
December 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006 40,000 18.24 40,000 288,484
Total ., 53,766 s1818 -+ l53zep 288,484
October 1, 2005 through October 31, 2005 . . . - _ 579,520
Novembx,r 1, 2005 through November 30, 2005 268,988 14,64 268,988 310,532
DLCBmI)er 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005 110,500 14,63 110,500 200,032
Total oo 379,488 $14.64 379,458 200,032

r N ..

Set forth below is inforﬁﬁtion, as of December 31, 2006, regarding equity comper%sation
plans categorized by those plans that have been approved by stockholders and those plans that
have not been approved by stockholders..

' Number of
Securities to be
Issued Upon
Exercise of

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Weighted Average
Exercise Price®

Outstanding of Outstanding For Future Issuance
e _Options, Warrants ~ Options, Warrants and Under Equity
Plan ] and Rightst Rights Compensation Plans®®
LICIA Tt M LINRE . * ~ .

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders 558,051 $14.09 147,314
Equity compensation plans not. approved by . :

stockholders T el e s = o = . =
Total i , $14.09 - . 147.314

PR . .
W o 1. I '

(1) Consists of options to purchase 558,051 shares of common stock under the Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation 2005 Stock Cption Plan.

(2) The weighted average exercise price reflects the weighted average exercise price of stock options awarded
from the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation 2005 Stock Option Plan,

(3) Consists of stock options for 147,314 shares of common stock available to be granted from the Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation 2005 Steck Option Plan.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data i.i*.u::iiliv PR T S S IURE T Ve T A

The following is a summary of selected consolidated f1nanc1a1 data of Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation at.and for the dates indicated. The summary should beréad in conjunction
with the consolldated financial statements and accompanymg notes to the consohdated

o YOT R

financial statements contained in Item 8 herein. ‘\ T
;., PR T I . ca s
At December .31, , S
Selected Consolidated Balance . -~ . 2006 2005 2004 2003 , . 2002
Sheet Data: {Dollars in Thousands)
Total assets $ 842,825 $ 743,849 637,678 5498417 | Saaz7al
Cash and cash equwaients . 41,057 37,959 25,708 89% . 13975
Securities available-for-sale 99,231 71, 965 53,363 o 26,039 i‘ X y 28 599
Loans receivable, net - 639,517 ) 580,441 517,711 435,622 . 379,778
FHLB stock o 7,948 7,074 5,511 3082 ' 2305
Deposﬂs : -7 - 573, 052 516,321 * 435,682 392,25 " 360,880
Total borrowings 144,000 129,000 100,314 ™ ‘60,971 - 45443
Total stockholders’ equity - 91,087 92,917 98,700 ° - 43218 T 38,924
. - 1 M o

. Years Ended December 31, e
Selected Consolidated Statement of 2006 2005 2004 L2003 2002
Income Data: R

S "." {Dellars in Thousands} .
Total interest income - $ 46,407 $ 37,254 $ 31772 T g o0 $ 36_,813
Total interest expense - - 24,550 1 17,158 ! 11916 11,781 © 13,035
Net interest income 21,857 20,096 19,856 b 19431 © 117,778
Provision for loan lossés e 475 2121 2,975 4,238 ‘3,683
Net interest income after : ™ o ! A ' -
provision for loan losses 21,382 17,975 16,881 wee 015/193 v « 14,095
Noninterest income. . 7,842 7413 5,322 7,533 + 5,388
Noninterest expense 21,679 19,616 17,256 15,911 14,711
T }
Income before income taxes’ , 7,545 . 5,772 4,947 . 6815, .. 4772
. . . ' ) I t Dan [RSS . -. B aa .
Income tax expense ) 2,393 1.083 1,755 2,398 1,585
Net income
' ' ) $ 5152 5 4,689 3 3192 *§" 4417 o 83187
Earnings per share i v vl [EEE . rroaT o
Basic - T . $ .38 § 34 $ 32 fgee w51 ot §T -
Earnings per share: !
Diluted $ .38 $ .33 $ -3 - % 5 R T
P LT BT R [ETRPL I (A T TR | L [ e
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data, continued : o

Selected Consolidated Financial Ratios and O_théi" Data: .
C . i At or For the Year Ended December 31, '

' 2006 2005 . 2004 ‘ 2003 2002
i Performance Ratios:
| Return on assets (ratio of net income
| . toaverage total assets) 0.66% 0.67% 0.55% 0.91% 0.76%
| ) Return on equity (ratio of net income . :
| to average equity) 550% . 4.73% 5.87% 10.77% 8.49%
I Interest rate spread information:
Average during period ‘ 2.58% 2.61% 3.23% 3.98% 4.06%
Net interest margint? 3.02% 3.05% 3.59% 4.25% 4.45%
Ratio of operating expense to . _ '
‘average total assets . 2.78% 2.78% 295% - 3.28% 3.50%
Efficiency ratio® 73.00%, 71.31%° 68.54% 59.01% 63.50%
Ratio of average interest-earning
- assets to average interest-bearing . . "
liabilities 113.01% 116.87% 116.63% 110.55% 112.03%
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nen-performing assets to total assets -
at end of period : 37% 39% 1.09% 1.73% 0.90%
Allowance for loan losses to non
performing loans 134.21% 175.36% 59.42% 87.13% 161.96%
Allowance for loan losses to total ) . '
Loans 0.73% 0.78% 0.76% 1.49% S 1.22%.
Net charge-offs to average ’ )
outstanding loans 06% 27% 1.16% 0.57% 0.76%
Non-performing loans to total . o
Loans A47% 45% 1.28% 1.72% 0.75%
Capital Ratios: ’
Equity to total assets at end of period 10.81% 12.49% 15.48% 8.67% 8.69%
Average equity to average assets 12.00% 14.07% 9.29% - 8.46% 8.93%
Other Data:
Number of full-service offices 13 - 12 12 12 10
Number of loans " 14,679 15,151 15840 15378 16,558
Number of deposit accountst® 49,896 51,738 56,962 65,954 68,253

(1) The 2005 income tax expense includes a benefit of $895 for the elimination of a tax-related contingent liability for the same
amount. The tax-related contingent liability had been established by the Company in 2000 upen becoming a taxable entity
and reflected the tax effect of the bad deduction taken by the Company in 2000 and 2001 calendar tax years. The
Company believed the filing position was supportable based upon a reasonable interpretation of the federal income tax
laws and the underlying regulations. However, due to the lack of prior rulings on similar fact patterns, it was unknown
whether the accounting method would be sustained upon audit by either the federal or state tax authorities. The
applicable statute of limitations expired with respect to the 2001 tax year on September 15, 2005, making the contingent
liability unnecessary. :

{2) Net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.
{3) Efficiency ratio represents non-interest expense as a percentage of net interest income plus non-interest income.

{4) Changes to the Company’s deposit system in 2004, enabled it to purge old account information that had existed since a
system conversion in 2002. Approximately 7,000 accounts were affected
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditi_ron and Results of Operations
General ‘ ‘ :
‘ U
Historically, the Bank’s principal business has consisted of attrachng deposits from the
general public and the business community and making loans secured by various types of collateral,
including real estate and other consumer assets. The Bank is 51gmﬁcantly affected by prevailing
economic conditions, particularly mterest rates, as well as government policies and regulations
concerning among ‘other things, monetary and fiscal affairs, housing and financial institutions.
Altracting and maintaining deposits is influenced by a number of factors, including interest rates
paid on competing investments offered by other financial and non“financial institutions, account
maturities, fee structures, and level of personal income and savings. Lending activities are affected
by the demand for funds and thus are influenced by interest rates, the number and quality of lenders
and regional economic growth. Sources of funds for lending activities of the Bank include deposits,
borrowings, payments.on loans, maturities of securities eind income. provided from operations, as
well as proceeds obtained in the minority stock offering. Earnmgs are’ pr1mar11y dependent upon net
interest income, which is the chfference between interest income and interest expense.

i
Interest income is a function Of the balances of loans and investments outstanding during a

given period and the yield earned on such loans and investments. Interest expense is a function of
the amount of deposits and borrowings outstanding during the same’ period and interest rates paid
on such deposits and borrowings. Earnings are also affected by the Bank’s provisions for loan losses,
service charges, gains from sales of loans, commission income, interchange fees, other income, non-
interest expenses and income taxes. Non-interest expenses consist;of compensation and benefit
expenses, occupancy and equlpment costs, data processing costs, out51de professmnal services,
1nterchange fees, adverhsmg expenses telephone expense, and other expenses

Critical Accounting Policies

Certain accountmg pohaes are unportant to the portrayal of the Company s. financial
condition, since they require managerment to make difficult, complex -or subjective judgments, some
of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain. Estimates associated with these policies
are susceptible to material changes asia result of changes in facts andl circumstances, including, but
without limitation, changes in interest rates, performance of the economy, financial condition of
borrowers and laws -and regulations. Management believes that its critical accounting policies
include determining the allowance for loan losses, accounting for deferred income taxes, and.the
valuation of goodwill. Accounting policies are discussed in detall in Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8. ‘ -

Allowance for Loan Losses ‘ ' .

The allowance for loan losses'is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses,
increased by the provision for loan losses and decreased by charge-offs less recoveries. Management
estimates the allowance balance required by conisidering: the past loan loss experience, the nature and
volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated value of any
underlying collateral, whether the loan was originated through the Bank's retail network or through
a broker, economic conditions and other factors. Allocations of the. allowance may be made for
specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in managément’s judgment,
should be charged-off. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes
the uncollectibility of a loan balance is conﬁrmed ;

. . . »
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The allowance.consists of specific and general components. The specific component
relates to loans that are individually evaluated and determined to be impaired. Loans
individually evaluated are generally large balance and/or complex loans, such as multi-family
and commercial real estate loans. This evaluation is often based on significant estimates and
assumptions due to 'the level of subjectivity and judgme’f{t necessary to account for highly
uncertain matters or the spsﬂceptibility of such matters to change. The general rcomponént
felates to large groups of small balance homogeneous loans that are evaluated in the aggregate
baséd on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors. -

Management believes' that the allowance for loan losses and related provision expense
are susceptible to material change in the near térm as @ result of “significant changes’ in
individual borrower circumstances on larger balance loans. The allowance for loan losses was
$4.7 million at'December 31, 2006, and $4.6 million at December 31, 2005. The allowance for
loan losses as a percentage of total loans was 0.73% at December 31,"2006, and 0.78% as of
Deceinber 31, 2005. The provision for loan losses for each quarter of 2006 and 2005, anid the
total for the respective years is-as follows: ‘ - '

2006 2005
. (In Millions)
First qUarter.....oveireccrnccrriocns 3 01 % 0.5
Second GUAFEE . .oooreerrrrcesssssrrersers 02" 0.6
Third GUATEEE ... ecceversrensfroneses ©n . 04
Fourth quarter......... e enes 0.3 0.6 . -
17 OO 05, §_. 21,

-

\ . ‘ -

This data demonstrates.the manner in which the allowance for loan losses and related
provision expense can change over long-term and short-term periods. Changes in economic
conditions, the nature and size of the loan portfolio and individual borrower conditions can
dramatically impact the required level of allowance for loan losses, particularly for larger
individually evaluated loan relationships, in relatively short periods of time. The allowance for
loan losses allocated to individually evaluated loan relationships was $500,000 at December 31,
2006 and $1.0 million at December. 31, 2005, a decrease of $500,000, primarily ‘due to the
improved financial condition of several borrowers. Management anticipates that there. will
continue to be significant. changes in individual specific-loss allocations in future periods as
changes in borrowers’ financial condition, estimates of .underlying collateral and the impact of
economic changes are difficult to predict and can vary widely as more information becomes
available or as projected events change. -

Valuafion 5f Goodwill o . P

The Bank assesses the carrying value of goodwill at least annually in order to determine
if it is impaired. In reviewing the carrying value of goodwill, management assesses the
recoverability-by evaluating the fair value of the Company’s community banking segment,
which is the Bank’s only business segment. Any impairment would be required to be recorded
‘during the period identified. The Bank’s goodwill totaled $2.7 million as of December 31, 2006;
therefore, if goodwill was determined to be impaired, the financial results could be materially
impacted. ' ' " '

Deferred Income Taxes.

" After converting to a federally chartered sdvings association, Atlantic Coast Bank
became a taxable organization. Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax
due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and
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liabilities are the expected future tax arhounts for the temporary difference between carrying
amounts and tax basis of assets and labilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation
allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The
Internal Revenue Code and applicable regulations are subject to interpretation with respect to
the determination of the tax basis of assets and liabilities for credit unions that convert charters
and become a taxable organization. Since Atlantic.Coast Bank’s transition to a federally
chartered thrift, Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation has recorded income tax expense based
upon management’s interpretation of the applicable tax regulations. Positions taken by the
Company in preparing federal and state tax returns are subject to the review of taxing
authorities, and the review by taxing authorities of the positions taken by management could
result in a material adjustment to the financial statements. :

. I

Business Strategy

The Bank has concentrated its lending efforts on the origination of residential real estate
loans along with various corisumer loans and other secured commercial loans (including
commercial real estate and small business lendmg) for portfolio retention. Additionally, the
business strategy emphasizes retail deposits along with FHLB advances as the Bank’s principal
sources of funds. ‘

’

The Bank’s primary objective is to remain an independent, community-oriented
financial institution, serving customers in its primary market areaf‘l The board of directors has
sought to accomplish this objective through the adoption of a strategy designed to maintain
profitability, a strong capital position and high asset quality. This'strategy primarily involves:
(i) emphasizing the origination of residential real estate loans, home equity lending, and where
opportunity presents itself, multi-family loans, commercial real estate loans, and small business
loans, (ii) maintaining a portfolio of securities with various types of investments that enable the
Company to balance risk, rate of return and liquidity needs, (iii} controlling operating expenses
while providing high-quality customer sefvice, (iv) purchasing one-to ‘four-family residéntial
mortgage loans for the purpose of interest rate risk management, and (v) increasing non-interest
income through expansion of products and services to deposit custOmers

" After completing the initial mmorlty stock offering, approximately one- -half of the net
proceeds were contributed to Atlantic Coast Bank. The remaining funds were initially invested
in mortgage-backed securities, FHLB bonds, short-term commercial paper, and short-term time
deposits at Atlantic Coast Bank. As these investments maturéd thé funds have béen used for
genéral operating purposes, including dividends and stock purchase programs. Atlantic'Coast
Bank invested the‘conttibuted ‘funds in short:term securities purchaséd with agreements to
resell, short-terin FHLB -bonds, mortgage-backed securltles, and residential one to four family
mortgage loans. : P v o

The Bank also used the additional capital raised in the minority.stock offering to support
expansion efforts, in northeast Florida. and. southeast Georgia through-normal expansion: of
products' and services and the expansion and/or improvement of the Bank’s retail branch
network. During 2006, the Bank opened a new branch in ‘St. Johns County just-south of
Jacksonville, Florida, completed construction for opening in early 2007 of a new location to
replace an existing older leased .facility .in Neptune Beach, Florida and obtained zoning
approval for a new owned facility to’be built in 2008 at a second St. Johns County site. The
results of operations may be significantly impacted by :the Bank’s ability to effectively
implement its plans for expansion. . Should the Bank be unable to attract significant new
business through its expansion efforts,ifinancial performance could be negatively impacted. . .
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Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

General. Balance sheet growth for the period ended December 31, 2006 as compared to
December 31; 2005 reflects a double-digit increase for the second consecutive year. Deposit
growth slightly exceeded loan demand, allowing the Bank to internally fund the loan growth.
Investment securities grew as the Company leveraged its borrowings.

Following is a summarized comparative balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005: - :

. ) Increase{decrease)
2006 . 2005 Dollars Percentage
Assets - (Dollars in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,057 5 37,959 § 3098 8.2%
Other interest bearing investments ' 1,200 1,800 {(600) -33.3%
Securities available for sale | . 99231 . 71,965 27,266 37.9%
, ,Loans : . o 644,222 585,028 59,194 101%
‘Allowance for loan losses o 4705 . (4.587) (118) 2.6%
. Loans,net . ‘ o 639,517 580,441 59,076 10.2%
Loans held for sale - 4,365 100 4265 4265.0%
Other assets ' 57,455 51,584 5,871 11.4%
Total assets $ 842,825 5 743,849 $ 98,976 13.3%
Liabilities and stockholders' equity ' ) :

Deposits : . -
Non-interest bearing ' $ 38301 $- 38454 §  (153) 0.4%
Interest bearing transaction accounts- -52,893. 79,739 (26,844) -33.7%
Savings and money-market 158,229 100,259 . 57,970 57.8%
Time : . 323,627 297,869 25,758 8.6%
Total deposits . . 573,052 . 518,321 56,731 . 1.0%
,. Federal Home Loan Bank advances 144,000 129,000 15,000 11.6%
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase ' 29,000 . - 29000 . -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ' 5,686 " 5,611 75" . 13%
Total liabilities " 751,738 650,932 100,806 15.5%
Stockholders' equity 91,087 92,917 (1,830) -2.0%
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 842825 S 743849 . 5 98,976 13.3%

Cash and cash equwalents Cash and cash equ1valents is comprlsed prmc1pally of
balances held in other depository institutions. It is expected, that the balances maintained in
cash and cash equivalents will fluctuate as other interest earning assets mature, management
identifies opportunities for longer-term investments that fit the Company’s growth strategy, or
daily operating liquidity increases or decreases. ' -

Securities available for sale. Securities available for sale is comprised primarily of debt
securities of U.S. Government-sponsored organizations that issue mortgages, or mortgage-
backed securities. In the near-term- management expects the composition of the investment in
securities available for sale to continue to be heavily weighted in mortgage-backed securities or
the debt of U.S. Government-sponsored organizations that issue mortgages. During the year
ended December 31, 2006, the Bank purchased approximately $61.6 million of investment
securities, which includes securities purchased to replace those designated for sale as of
March'31, 2006 (see Comparison of Results of Operations for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 - Non-interest Expense), nearly all of which were mortgage-backed
securities or the-debt of government-sponsored organizations.
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Real estate mortgages held for sale. Real estate mortgages held for sale are comprised
~entirely of loans secured by one- to four-family residential residences. Approximately $5.9
million of the balance outstanding at December 31, 2006, is composed of individual residential
mortgage loans assigned to the Bank in connection with a loan agreement with a mortgage
broker entered into during 2006. Under the terms of the loan agreement, the Bank provides
funds to the mortgage broker for individual mortgage loan closings. In exchange the Bank
accepts an assignment of the individual mortgage loan pending its sale to-various third-party
investors arranged by the mortgage broker. Upon acceptance for purchase by the third-party
investors, the loan agreement requires the Bank to reassign the loan-back to the mortgage
broker at par, for completion of the third-party sale. The Bank recéives interest income upon the
sale of these loans for the period of the assignment. As of December 31, 2006, the weighted
average number of days outstandirig of real estate mortgages held for sale was 20 days.

Loans. Following is a comparative tomposftion of net loans as of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005: '

r : e

" As of December 31,. ' | Increase (decrease)
" . L Nl .
% of total "% of total
; 2006 . loans ~ . 2005 loans Dollars Percentage
Real estate loans: ) (Dollars In Thousands) .o
One-to-four family $ 334,000 521% $ 324,681 559% % 9,319 o 29%
Commercial 60,912 9.5% 59,074 . 102% 1,838 C31%
Other ( Land & Multifamily) 34,446 5.4% 20,302 . 35% 14,144 69.7%
Total real estate loans - 429,358 67.0% 404,057 69.5% 25,301 6.3%
Real estate construction loans: ! _ o - :
Construction-one-to-four family 32467 51% 24,243 | 4.2%, 8,224 © 33.9%
Construction-commercial o 2862 04% 2,577 | 0.4% 285 11.1%
_Acquisition & Development 2,103 . 03% .- o 00%, 2,103 S
Total real estate construction loans 37,432 58% 26,820 - 46% 10612 " 39.6%
OCther loans: ‘
Home equity 91,062 14.2% " 79,016 - 13.6% 12,046 15.2%
Consumer : . o 63,630 C99% . 62,846 i 108% -., 784 1.2%
Commercial . o, 19,044 3.0% 8,430 ‘ 1.5% 10614 125.9%
Total other loans . . 173,736 271% . 150,292 . 25.9% 23,444 15.6%
Total loans : 640,526 100% 581,169+ 100% 59,357 10.2%:
Allowance for loan losses (4,705) 4587) (118) 2.6%
Net deferred loan (fees) costs 3,348 . 3,164 .o 184 58%
‘Premiums on purchased loans ' . 348 o 695 ‘ (347)  499%
Loans, net 3 639517 ‘ $ 580,441 f $ 59,076 © 10.2%

The composition of the net loan portfolio is heavily weighted toward loans secured by
first mortgages, home equity loans, or second mortgages on one- to four-family residences.
These loan categories represented approximately 66% and 70% of the total loan portfolio at
December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively. The relatively modest increase in
Bank’s largest loan category, one-'to four-family residential mortgages, reflects a change made
to the marketing strategy in the second half of 2005 to reduce emphasis on this category of loans
due to the on-going flat/inverted yield curve, which has continued to hold interest rates on
longer-term loans low relative to the Company’s cost of funds. More recently, growth has been
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negatively impacted by the slowing in residential real estate sales activity in the Bank’s markets.
"Recent reports by state and national real estate organizations have reported substantial declines '
in residential real estate sales activity in the Northeast Florida markets, as well as in Florida in
general. As a result of these factors, management believes that growth in one- to four-family
residential mortgages will'be slow to moderate in the near term.'. During 2006, in order to
supplement internal retail loan origination volumes, the Company ‘purchased $36 million of
variable:rate one-to four-family residential loans. Depending on liquidity, earning needs and
the supply of high-quality loans management expects to continue to purchase adjustable rate
one-'to four-family residential mortgage loans to supplement internal loan. originations .and
maintain current loan portfolio balances. S
The Company’s loan portfolio is also heavily weighted in the state of Florida with 68
percent of one- to four-family loans being secured by properties in Florida. Georgia represents
the second' highest concentration with 27 percent of total one- to four-family loans. At
December 31, 2006, 95 percent of the Bank’s residential construction loan portfolio was
concentrated in Florida. 2006. At the end of 2006, approximately $17.9 million of the
outstanding one- to four-family construction loan balances were associated with builders who
had three or more concurrent projects with Atlantic Coast Bank,

o " ‘ ~ Georgia Florida Other States Total

1-4 Family First Mortgages " $86,283 $225,959 $21,758 $334,000
1-4 Family Second Martgages 35,622 54,769 671 91,062

. 1-4 Family Construction Loans .. . 1,653 , 30814 - 32467
T e -~ T+ 4123558 $311.542 $22.429 - $457.529

Total loan growth during 2006 was achieved primarily from home equity loans,
construction loans (primarily for the construction of one- to four-family residential properties)
and other real estate collateralized’ loans. The growth in other real estate collateralized loans
has been prlmanly from loans to real estate developers for the acquisition and development of
one- to four-family residential developments. The interest rate terms for these loan types are
generally indexed to the current prime rate, and accordingly have more favorable interest
margins relative to the Bank’s cost of funds. The majority of the construction loan balances at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 are composed of loans acquired from mortgage brokers under
arrangements that require the balance to be paid off with permanent financing form a third-
party lender at ‘the completion of construction. ‘Given the current interest rate environment the
Company expects to continue to focus its lending efforts in the near term on home. equity
lending products and financing the construction of one- to four-family residences.

- Allowance for Loan Losses. Allowance for loan losses was .73% and .78% of total loans
outstandmg at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Allowance for loan losses activity for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows: :

. . 2006 2005
Pt e s - - (Dollars in Thousands)
Beginning balance oo $ 4587  $ 3,956
" Loanschargedioff ¢ ¢ LT 1,215 L (2326)
- Récoveries = - o - - o - . B58 rLood ‘836
Net ¢harge-offs - o - L L (357) - - C{1,490)
.+ Provision for loan losses™  © "' Lo Co475 b 2121
..+ 7. Endingbalance - * = -~ - 1 . o 8§ 4,705 $ ;o 4587 . v
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.Net charge-offs to average outstanding loans was .06% in 2006 as compared to .27% in 2003,
Gross charge-offs in 2005 included a charge of $605,000 in the second quarter of 2005 for the remaining
balance of a commercial real estaté loan relationship which had been made for the construction of a
commercial water treatment plant. There were no similar large charge-offs durmg 2006. . .

The allowance for loan losses consists of general allowance allocahons made for pools of
homogeneous loans and specific allocations on individual loans for which management has
significant concerns regarding the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans in accordance with the terms
of the loans. - Non-performing loans totaled $3.1 million and.$2.6 million:at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, and total impaired loans decreased to $2.0 million at December 31, 2006 from $4.5
million at December 31, 2005, due to improving credit conditions of borrowers or loan payoffs. The
total allowance allocated for impaired loans was $0.5 million and $1.0 million as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. As of December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, all non-performing loans were
classified as non-accrual, and the Bank did not have any restructured loans or loans 90 days past due
and accruing interest as of December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005. Non-performing loans,
excluding small balance homégeneous loans, were $1.1 millicn and $1:2 million at December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and' 2005 all such non-performmg loans
were also reported as unparred loans '

Included in nonperforrmng loans is a pool of small equipment and automobﬂe leases the
Bank purchased. in 2001. The balance of the leases, net of the allowance for loan and lease losses
allocated, was $623,000 and $634,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. During 2005 the Bank signed
a settlernent agreement with the bankruptcy trustee of the seller, which led to the receipt of $297,000
in lease payments-that were being held by the trustee.- This payment, along with approximately
$11,000 in 2006 and $9,000 in 2005, was applied to the principal balance outstanding. The leases are
backed by surety bonds and the Company has filed a claim with the insurance company for
approximately $1.7 million plus interest, which represents the balance of the leases at the time
fegular ‘payments ceased in late' 2001 less amounts received in 2005 and 2006. The insurance
company has denied the claim, allegmg the' seller of the ‘leases engaged in fraudulent lending
activities. The' Barik, along with numerous other creditors who purchased the leases, has pursued
collection of its claim’ by filing a lawsuit against the insurance company. Legal costs incurred in
association with the collection of the leases were $212,000 and $335,000 for 2006 and 2005 and are

recorded in outs1de professmnal servrces in the consolidated statements of i mcome
' 1 . ] { L i

The previous charge-offs on these leases and the current level of allowance for loan losses
allocation for the remaining balance of these leases are indicative of management's best estimate of
the probable losses incurred, based on consultation with legal counsel. Management continues to
vigorously’ pursue collection on the surety bonds, including the $623,000 ($773,000 remaining balance
less $150,000 allocation ‘of the allowance for loan and lease losses) net amount included in the
Company's financial® statements ‘as of December’ 31; 2006. Management believes that there is a
possibility that no amount will bé collected in the future; therefore, additional losses may be incurred
up to the $623,000. Collection of the full $1.7 million claim may also occur, aithough this is not
considered likely as the Bank likely will need to settle at some lower amount, and may not coliect any
amount.

Depas:ts Savmgs and money market depos1t account balances, grew durmg the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to the end of 2005, as the Bank mcreased the interest rates paid on its
money market products to meet the rate of competitors i in its markets While ra151ng the interest rates
was necessary to both protect and grow deposit balances, management believes to a certain clegree it
has led to a disintermediation within the Bank’s deposit products, particularly from interest-bearing
demand accounts, whose balances have declined during the year partially off setting the growth in
money market account balances over the same period of time.
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The increase in time deposits as of December 31, 2006, as compared to 2005, includes
approximately $6.7 million of additional brokered deposits. The brokered deposits have been used to
replace maturing certificate of deposits and fund loan growth. Management expects future deposit
growth as the Bank expands its products and services in new and existing markets particularly in
core deposits. Additionally, management anticipates that the Company will continue to purchase
brokered deposits to-meet liquidity demands when interest rates are favorable.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Historically, the Company has only utilized
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta or broker originated certificates of deposit as
an alternative to organic deposits for funding its lending and investment activities. While
management expects FHLB advances to continue to be a significant source of funds in the future, the
Company also initiated its first financing arrangement involving the sale of securities under an
agreement to repurchase during 2006 to take advantage of favorable interest rates relative to deposits
with comparable maturities.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by mortgage-backed securities
with a carrying amount of $29.0 million at December 31, 2006 with maturities beginning in February
2011, or, beginning in February 2007, individual advances may be terminated in whole by the lender
each following quarter. At maturity or termination, the securities underlying the agreements will be
returned to the Company. At the date of the transaction, the interest rate was fixed at 4.53% until
February 2007, at which time it converts to a floating rate of 8. ‘nO% minus 3-month LIBOR up to a
maximum rate of 5.75%. .

Depending on the availability of suitable securities and the prevailing interest rates and terms
of alternative source of funds, the Company may continue to sell securities under agreements to
repurchase in the future.

Federal Home Loan Bank advances. The Bank borrows funds from the FHLB to support its
lending and investment activities. The increase in FHLB borrowings as, December 31, 2006 as
compared to December 31, 2005, is due to additional advances of $40.0 million used to replace $25.0
million of advances that matured in 2006 and fund lending growth. In connection with its asset
liability management strategy, the Company pre-paid a $5.0 million advance from the FHLB during
the second quarter of 2006. The advance, which did not have a pre-payment penalty, had an original
maturity date of February 2014 and an interest rate based on the 3-month LIBOR plus 22 basis points.
At the same time the Company also terminated an interest rate swap agreement prior to maturity it
had used to hedge the FHLB advance, recognizing a gain of approximately $208,000.

FHLB advances had a weighted- average matunty of 71 months and a weighted-average rate
of 446% at December 31, 2006. The Company expects to continue to utilize FHLB advances to
manage short and long—term hqmdlty needs to the extent it has borrowmg capacity, needs funding
and the interest cost of FHLB advances is attractive compared to. deposits and other, alternative
source of funds.

Stockholders’ Equity

Net other comprehensive income for the twelve months ending December 31, 2006
resulted from an increase in unrealized gains on available for sale securities interest rate swaps
of $208,000, offset by unrealized losses on interest rate swaps of $21,000, net of taxes. The
interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges of certain FHLB advances, and
were determined to be fully’ effectivé during 2006. The Company expects the hedges to remain
fully effective during the remaining terms of the swaps. Going forward, management expects
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changes in interest rates to continue to cause swings in unrealized gains and losses from interest
rate swaps and available for sale securities.

During 2006, the Company’s board of directors declared regular quarterly cash dividends in
the aggregate of $0.42 per share. Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC which holds 8,728,500 shares, or 63.3%
of the Stock Company’s total outstanding stock, has waived receipt of the dividend on its owned
shares for each quarter of 2006. Totdl dividend payments waived by the MHC were $3.7 million.
Management expects the MHC to waive receipt of payment on future dw1dends for its owned
shares. . S

In August 2006 Atlantic Coast Federal. .Corporation completed its stock repurchase plan that
began in early November 2005 by repurchasing approximately 200,000 shares of its common stock at
an average price of $17.28 per share. In September 2006 the Stock Company’s Board of Directors
approved a new repurchase plan to permit the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation to purchase, over
a 12-month period, up to 10%, or 478,000 shares of its outstanding common stock. Following the
approval of the new stock repurchase plan the Stock Company-repurchased approximately 190,000
shares at an average price of $17.92 per share. As of December 31, 2006 approximately 288,000 shares
of common stock remained to be repurchased under this plan although no assurances can be made
regarding the number of shares, 1f any, that will actually be purchased or the price that will be pald
for such shares. o ) T ?

The Compan’y’s-equity to total assets ratio décreased to 10.81% at December 31, 2006, from
1249% at December 31, 2005. The decrease was primarily due to the rate of asset growth through
December 31, 2006 and the stock purchase program. Despite this decrease, Atlantic Coast Bank
continued to be well in excess of all,minimum regulatory Capltal requirements, and is considered

“well-capitalized” under thls requirement. Total risk-based capital to rlsk—welghted assets was

13.9%, Tier 1 capital to I‘lSk-WEIghtEd assets was 13.1%, and Tier 1 capltal to adjusted total assets was
9.2% at December 31, 2006. These ratlos as of December 31 2005 were 15.9%, 15.0% and 10.0%,
respectively. , ‘ : ] :

Companson of Results of Operatmns for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,

General Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006, was $5.2 million, an increase of
$463,000 over the year ended December 31, 2005. Net interest income ‘mcreased 8.8%, or $1.8 million
in the year ended December 31, 2006 to $21.9 million, compared to 2005, on growth in interest
earning assets combined with an increase in the interest yield on such assets that offset the rising cost
of deposits. Provision for loan losses decreased 77.6%, or $1.6 million t0 $475,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to $2:1' million in 2005, on the basis ofllmproved credit quality. Non-
interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 grew by 5.8% to $7.8 million, as compared to
$7.4 million in 2005, due primarily to increased service charges and feés. The increase in non-interest
income was offset by increased non-interest expense which grew $2 1 million, or 10.5%, to $21.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2006, from $19.6 rrulhon in 2005, due to increased
compensation and benefit costs and other operating costs. ? :

Average Balances Net Interest Income, Yields Eamed and Rates Paid. The table on the
following page sets forth certain information for the vears ended Décember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
The average yields and costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of
assets or liabilities, reSpecnvely, for the penods presented.
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Interest income. As shown in the table above the increase in interest income for the year

ended December 31, 2006, as compared to 2005, is predominantly due to the rate earned on’

interest-earning assets, although growth in average outstanding interest-earning assets also

contributed to such growth. Loans accounted for approximately 81% of the interest income -

growth, or $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to 2005. While the
majority of the increased interest income from loans was due to increased average outstanding
balances, the Company also increased its yield on average outstanding loan balances as a result
of growth in prime interest rate-based loans. As discussed above in “Comparison of Financial

- Condition at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 - Loans,” the flat/inverted yield curve :

over the last 12 months and' a softening in residential real estate sales has led the Company to
increase its emphasis on prime rate interest-based loans, such as home equity lending,
construction loans and commercial real estate loans. The growth in average outstanding
balances of home equity loans, construction loans and commercial real estate loans for the year
ended December 31, 2006, as compared to 2005, accounted for approximately 76%, or $49.1

million of the total $64.3 million in average loan growth. During the same period, the average-

prime rate increased 100 basis points from 7.25% to 8.25%,

The growth in interest income from investment securities and other 'interestfearning
assets for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to 2005 was due to increased yields

on these assets which have tracked upward consistent with increases to short-term interest

rates.

Management expects interest income will increase as average interest earning assets and .

interest rates on such assets increase. Growth in interest earning assets is partly dependent on

funding from deposit growth in. existing markets and the opening of new branches in the.

second-half of 2006. Interest income could be adversely impacted by continued low interest

rates on longer-term loans, such as one- to four-family residential loans and the availability of.

the type of interest earning-assets desired for investment by the Company. .

Interest expense. The increase in interest expense for the year ended.December 31, 2006,
as compared to 2005, was partially due to growth in average outstanding balances of interest-

‘P

bearing deposit accounts, but more significantly due to increases to interest.rates paid on those

accounts. During the period of time from the end of 2005, until the end of 2006, the Federal
Reserve Board increased the target rate for Federal Funds borrowings by 100 basis points, from
4.25% to 5.25%. In general, this has led to significant rate increases to interest-bearing deposit
accounts in the Bank’s markets, where competition for deposits among financial institutions is
stiff. In order to fund loan growth and maintain deposit market share, the Company has

increased interest rates on its money-market accounts, interest bearing demand accounts and
time deposits. The rate of interest expense on FHLB advances has remained relatively flat for-

the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005, as new advances have generally had
longer maturities and, therefore the Company has ‘benefited from the flat or inverted yield
curve. Given the current interest rate environment, and the stiff competition for deposits in the
Bank’s market, management does not expect interest rates paid on deposits to decline in the
near term.

i
3 -

o

Net interest income. Net interest income increased during the year ended December 31,

2006, as compared to 2005, as the growth in interest income outpaced the growth in interest -

expense. As discussed above, increases in prime rate based loans has, in part, enabled the Bank

to increase the overall yield of the loan portfolio, in addition to steady growth in average

outstanding balances. In addition yields on securities have increased as short-term interest rates’
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have tracked upward. Net interest spread, which is the difference between the interest yield
earned on interest earning assets and the interest rate paid on interest bearing liabilities,
decreased 3 basis points for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005. For the
same comparative periods, net interest margin, which is net intérest income expressed as a
percentage of average interest earning assets decreased 3 basis points.

While the net interest spread and net interest margin held up reasonably well, declining
only three basis points for the year, the Company experienced significant margin compression
during the fourth quarter of 2006. During this period, deposit growth of $27 million
significantly outpaced loan growth of $15 million. Further, the deposit growth occurred in the
highest tiers of the Bank’s money market account and time deposits. This deposit growth in the
most expensive deposit products during a period when loan growth did not keep pace led to a
net interest margin decline of 22 basis points to 2.87% in the fourth quarter of 2006 as compared
to the third quarter of 2006. Management anticipates contmued mterest margin compression in
the near term. -

Provision for loan losses. The Bank establishes the pi‘ovisibn for loan losses, which are
charged to operations, at a level required to refiect probable incurred credit losses in the loan
portfolio. In evaluating the level of the allowance for loan losses, management considers
historical loss experience, the types of loans and the amount of loans in the loan portfolio, the
source of origination of those loans, adverse situations that may affect borrowers’ ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. Large
groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential real estate, small commercial
real estate, home equity and consumer loans, are evaluated in the aggregate using historical loss
factors adjusted for current economic condltxons, source of loan origination, and other relevant
data. Larger non-homogeneous loans, such as CommerC1al loans for which management has
concerns about the borrowers’ ability to repay, are evaluated individually, and specnflc
allowance allocations are provided for such loans when necessary. -

Based on managernent’s evaluation of these factors, prov151ons of $475,000 and $2.1
million were made during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respechvely ‘The
decrease in'the provision for loan losses was primarily due to a decline in specific reserves for
large non-homogenous loans as a result of improved credit quality and a decrease in net‘charge
offs. For the year ended December 31, 2006 net charge-offs were $357,000, while for 2005, net
charge-offs were $1.5 million.

Management assesses the allowance for loan losses on a ‘quarterly basis and makes
provisions for loan losses as necessary in order to maintain'the allowance for loan losses based
on all known and inherent losses that are both probable and can be reasonably estimated.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future loan loss
provisions may necessarily be based on changes in economic conditions and changes in
borrower sitiations. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the allowance for loan losses and may require
additional provisions based on their judgment of mformatlon avallable to them at the time of
their examination. The allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2006, is maintained at a
level that represents management's best estimate of probable incurred losses in the loan
portfolio. '
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Non-interest. income. The components of non-interest income for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as tollows " ' :

r! Lo . ‘ ' R ] T .
‘ . , ~ Increase(decrease) .

. 2006 2005 Dollars Percentage
Co (Dollars in Thousands) S
Service charges and fees $ 5,745 $ 5,351 $ 394 74%
Net loss on available for sale securities . . (163) - (80} (83) 103.8%
Gain on sale of real estate mortgages . . .
held for sile e U et 121° T (54) T la4.6%

Commission income T N TR | V- S 406 - (92) - 22.7%
Interchange fees - : e 791, 752 .39 5.2%
Bank owned life insurance earnmgs , L 840 603 237, ) i39.3%
Other ‘ 248 ' 260 ‘ (12) a6%

o v S 7,842 % 7413 s 429 N 58%.

Lo . N R . . . o
L} ) . * ' - EE | 1)

Services charges and fees, which are earned prrmarﬂy based on transaction services for
deposit account customers, increased as a result of increased ATM and check card overdraft
fees which began in the third quarter of 2005. The 1mp1ementatron of overdraft fees for ATM
and check card overdrafts was part of a several fee initiatives started in, 2005 Wthh focused on
improving the Bank's dlsC1pl1ne over service charge fees and collections. Management expects
the growth of service charges and fees to be flat as most. of the initiatives became fully effective
in_ the th1rd and fourth quarters of 2005. New growth will prrncrpally result from expanded
products and services in existing rnarkets and new branches opened in the fourth quarter of
2006 arid the first quarter of 2007. ' o

25 T o + \ T L) . . P .

]

The net loss on. avallable for sale’ securltles for the year ended December 3] 2006 was
due to the recogmtlon of an impairment loss on certam FHLB debt securities held at the end of
the f1rst quarter of 2006 for $177, 000 The 1mpa1rment loss was ‘estimated based on the difference
between the original cost of the securltles and their, estlmated fair value as March 31, -2006. 'The
securities were sold during the second quarter for an actual loss of $163,000 and the loss
recorded at the time the securities were identified for disposal was adjusted to the actual loss at
the time of the sale. The securities dlsposed of had an orlglnal purchase cost of $16.0 mllllon and -
a welghted average yield of 3, 84% They were 1dent1f1ed for disposal i in an effort to 1mprove the
Company s net interest margm Durmg the second quarter of 2006 the Company purchased a
11ke amount of securities w1th a welghted average interest rate of 5.77%. L a

. ) :

The growth in bank owned life insurance earnings for the year ended December 31,
2006, as compared to 2005, was due to an increase in the average amount 1nvested from $14.9
rrulhon in 2005 to $209m11110n 1n2006 B ER AR R I

o Other non-mterest income for the year ended December 31 2006 1nc1uded a galn of
$208 000 resultmg from the early, termlnatron of an 1nterest rate swap agreement that had been
used as’a ‘cash’ flow hedge for a FHLB advance of $5. 0 million. In connection w1th the
Company s dsset 11ab111ty strategy, the FHLB ‘advance was prepald during the second quarter‘
and the interest rate swap agreement, was termrnated with the _counter-party resultlng in_the
realized -gain. Management does not . expect fiture gains from early termination of  the
remalmng 1nterest rate swaps, which at December 31, 2006 had a fair market value of $414 000,
net of taxes. ~ : |

L
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. Non-interest expense. The ‘components ‘of non-interest éxpense for the years ended

December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows: -~ - - Voo e
. . s P ‘ ' e« .+ < Increase (decrease) .. .
. C . . . 2006 . 2005 .Dollars , Percentage . ;
; o - . . (Dollars in thousands) oL
. - Compensation & benefits . .. - $ 10,947 5. 9369 : % 1,578 L 168%. . -
Occupancy and equipment .+ . 2228 0« 1,738 0 490 |, .i282% .
Data processing - . S R 1,483 1,348 - - 135 - 100% . .
Advertising . . , .. 847 609 . .. 238 391% v
) Outsrde professional services . 1,9‘%4 :: b 2286 i 9 42 8%, l
' Interchange charges R/ B 624 N 133 2 3%
Collection expense and repossessed S ‘ ' ' ' ’
asset losses ‘ 267 34 L (74) -20.7%
Telephoné * .- -+ s %500 ¢l e 539 0 B9y o -72% -
Other 2,922 2,762 ) 160 5.8%
. o . ‘s 21679 § 19616 $ 2,063 105% .,

R 1 -

Compensanon and beneﬁt expense for the' year ended Dec1ember 31, 2006, as compared
to 2005, was prrmarlly due to mcreased salaries of $487, 000 as well as a $355 000 i increase in the
recogmtron of compensation expense for awards made under Ithe Company s share based
c0mpensat10n plans reflectmg the full year cost of the awards made in July 2005. The remammg
increase to compensation and benefit expense was prlmanlv due to increased costs of $524,000
associated with the Company s retirement plan for certain officers and directors, Normal
annual merit increases for associates account for,a portion of the i increase, along with additional
associates for sales and serwce of private, bankmg customers in Florida and new branch
personnel hired in advance of the Julington Creek branch opening in October 2006. Occupancy
and equipment charges increased for the year ended December, 31, 2006 as,compared to 2005,
primarily due to increased building and equipment maintenance costs, 1nclud1ng the
refurbishment costs at two branches during the third quarter of 2006, along with higher real
estate tax expenses. The increased data processing costs for the year ended December 31, 2006,
as compared to 2005, were prlmarlly due, to increased software hcensmg costs for the
Companys operating system the fees for which are based partly on the asset size of the
Company. In the third quarter of 2006, the Company comp]eted negotlatlons on a new contract
for software’ llcensmg with terms that will result in reduced costs Advertising expenses for
2006 increased compared to 2005, as the Company has been more active in markehng through
print and television advertisements. Outside and professmnal services cost decreased for the
year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005, as the Company incurred significant fees
associated with Sarbanes- -Oxley initiatives and tax planning initiatives in 2005 that were not
incurred in 2006.

In general, management expects non-mterest expenses wrll mcrease in future perlods as
a, a result of continued growth expansion, and the costs associated with the Company’s operation
as a public Company L X ,

Income tax expense Income Etax expense mcreased to $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006,. from, $]1 million for 2005. " The increase was prlmarlly due, to the
elimination of a tax-related contingent liability in the third quarter of 2005 of. $895,000. The
contingent liability had been establlshed by the Company in 2000 upon becoming a taxable

entity and reflected the tax effect of a tax accounting method utlhzed by the Company in 2000

!
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and 2001 calendar tax years. The Company believed the filing position was supportable based
upon a reasonable interpretation of federal income tax laws and the underlying regulations.
However, due to the lack of prior rulings on similar fact patterns, it was unknown whether the
accounting method would be sustained upon audit by either federal or state tax authorities. The
applicable statute of limitations expired with respect to the 2001 tax year on September 15, 2005,
making the contingency reserve unnecessary. In addition income tax expense increased in 2006
as compared to 2005 due to an increase in income before income tax expense when comparing
the two periods. The effective income tax rate on income before income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was 31.7%, compared to 34.3% for 2005 before the tax benefit of $895,000.
The decline in the effective tax rate is primarily due to increased income from Bank Owned Life
Insurance, which is not taxable for federal income tax purposes. It is anticipated that income tax
expense will continue to vary as income before income taxes varies. |

Comparison of Results of Operation for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

General. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005, was %4.7 million which was
$1.5 million more than for the same period in 2004. Approximately 60% of this increase, or $895
is due to the recognition of a tax benefit from the elimination of a tax-related contingent
liability. Net interest income increased 1.2%, or $240 in 2005, compared to 2004, as interest
income from increased earning assets offset higher interest expense generally due to the rising
cost of deposits. The provision for loan losses expense for the year ended December 31, 2005,
decreased $854 from $3.0 million for the same period in 2004, on the basis of improved credit
quality. Non-interest income for 2005 grew by 39.3% to $7.4 million as compared to $5.3 million
in 2004, due to the implementation of several new service charges and fee income initiatives.
The increase in non-interest income was more than offset by increased non-interest expense as it
grew $2.4 million, or 13.7%, to $19.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, from $17.3
million for the same period in 2004, due to increased compensation and benefit costs and
outside professional services costs. ’

Interest Income. The increase in interest income for the years ended December 31, 2005,
as compared to 2004, is primarily due to growth in interest earning assets, principally loans. The
decline in yields on loans reflects a continuingly low interest rate environment for first
mortgages on one- to four-family residential loans, which is the Company’s principal loan asset,
in spite of increases in short-term interest rates. Meanwhile, for the same comparable periods,
increased interest income on securities has been primarily’ due to growth in outstanding
balances, although the Bank has benefited some from rising yields available on securities. The
majority of increased interest income from other interest-earning assets in 2005, as compared to
2004, has been as a result of investments in higher yielding assets, primarily FHLB stock
acquired consistent with increased advances,

The Company experienced an increase in total interest income from loans in 2005, as
compared to 2004, but there was a decline in total loan yield between the two years. The
reduction in the yield is due to the change in the mix of the loan portfolio over the last four
years. Beginning in 2002, the Company instituted a strategy to significantly change the mix of
its loan portfolio. At the beginning of 2002, approximately 34.0% of the Bank’s loan portfolio
was consumer loans, principally automobile and credit card loans for which the Company was
experiencing substantial net charge-offs that mitigated their relatively higher yields. As of
December 31, 2005; consumer loans represented less than 11.0% of total loans outstanding. The
Company’s loan growth over that same period of time has primarily been in one- to four-family
residential loans which represents approximately 56.0% of total loans outstanding compared to
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45.0% at the beginning of 2002. While the transformation to theimix of the loan porifolio has
been successful, it has occurred during a’ period- of time when interest rates on home mortgage
lending have been at historical low levels. Approximately 65.0% of the Company’s one- to four-
family loan portfolio now consists of adjustable-rate loans, as compared to 22.0% at the
beginning of 2002, however much of the adjustable-rate loan growth in 2003 and 2004, consisted
of hybrid adjustable-rate loans, whereby the interest rate’is fixed for a period of-time, before
adjusting to the current market rate. Interest rates for hybrid ad]ustable rate loans added in
2003 and 2004, generally did not ad]ust in 2005.

All growth in interest incorne from loans in 2005, as compared to 2004, was as a result of
- growth in total average outstanding loans from $485.0 million in 2004 to $549.0 million in 2005.
Due to the market competition for loans in general, and a flat yield curve, interest rates for new
one- to four-family mortgages in 2005 were not significantly higher than interest rates in 2004
despite several rate increases by the Federal Reserve Board. Asta consequence, the Company
focused its growth efforts on home equity lending and one- to four-family construction loans
(See “Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004-Loans”)
that have interest rates tied to the current prime lending rate and tracked upward during 2005
following Federal Reserve Board rate increases through the year. Although the total’average
annual yield on loans decreased to 6.12% in 2005, from 6.27% in 2004 the quarterly loan yields
during 2005 generaily tracked upward. :

Interest Expense. Approximately 62% of the increase in.interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004, was due to growth in
average outstanding balances of interest-bearing demand accounts, time deposits and advances
from the FHLB. The remaining interest expense growth was due to rate increases for interest-
bearing demand accounts, money market accounts and time deposits. The rate increases during
the third quarter of 2005, for money market and time deposits,” have generaily been made to
remain competitive within the market as deposit rates have ingreased in response to Federal
Reserve Board rate hikes. The interest rates on interest-bearing demand accounts are above the
rates for comparable products in the Bank’s market for large deposits in order to attract new
customers and grow' core deposits In 2005, the marketing program for the interest-bearing
demand account product was very successful in attracting, new deposits, with limited
movement from existing customer accounts. The rate of interest expense on FHLB advances
decreased 8 basis points as higher priced advances were paid off in 2005, and new advances
were taken with lower weighted average rates and longer maturities, that management believes
better match the duration of the one- to four-family residential loan portfolio.. FHLB advances
totaling $84.0 million, including half of the $40.0 million new advances in 2005, are convertible
to adjustable-rate borrowings at the discretion of the FHLB, at specific conversion dates in the
future. .If the FHLB does convert the current fixed rate advances to adjustable rates, the
Company has the option to pre-pay the advance without penalty:

Net Interest Income. Net interest income increased slightly to $20.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005, from $19.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, as
compared to the same period. The increase in net interest income is primarily due to the
Company’s growth in average outstanding net interest-earning assets out pacing the growth of
average outstanding net interest-bearing liabilities primarily due to the utilization of the net
proceeds received from the Company’s minority stock offering in October 2004. However, net
interest spread and net interest margin, declined 62 basis points to 2.61% and 54 basis points
3.05%, respectively for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the same period in
2004 due to decline in yields on loans combined with an increase in cost-of-funds consistent

61




with market rates. The decrease in both ratios for the year ended December 31, 2005, as
compared to the same period in 2004, is due to a 15 basis point decrease in yield on the loan
portfolio, while cost-of-funds increased 54 basis points. As discussed above rapid loan growth
in 2003 and 2004, primarily in the Bank’s largest loan category, adjustable rate one- to four-
family residential mortgages (“ARMs"), as well as the near-complete refinancing of the existing
residential mortgage portfolio, occurred during a period .of unprecedented low interest rates.
Due to the various interest rate reset terms of the Bank’s ARM products,. increases in market
interest rates in 2005 did not generally cause the interest rates on these loans to adjust upward.
The increase in cost-of-funds was due to increased interest rates on deposits which tracked
upward in 2005, following Federal Reserve Board rate.increases. .

Provision for Loan Losses. The Bank establishes provision for loan losses, which are
charged to operations, at a level required to reflect probable incurred credit losses in the loan
portfolio. In evaluating the level of the allowance for loan losses; management considers
historical loss experience, the types of loans and. the amount of loans in the loan portfolio, the
source of origination of those loans, adverse situations that may affect borrowers’ ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. Large
groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential real estate, small commercial
real estate, home equity and consumer loans, are evaluated in the aggregate using historical loss
factors adjusted for current economic conditions, sources of loan origination, historical
underwriting experience with the particular loan products, and other relevant data. Larger non-
homogeneous loans, such as commercial loans for which management has concerns about the
borrowers’ ability to repay, are evaluated individually, and spec1f1c allowance allocations are
provided for such loans when necessary. - . . |

Based on management’s evaluation of these factors, provisions of $2.1 million and $3.0
million were made during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
provision for loan losses in 2005 was reduced over 2004, as allocations for non-homogeneous
loans declined because of improved borrower financial conditions and loan payoffs. - y

Management assesses the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis and makes
provisions for loan losses as-necessary in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses based
on all known and inherent losses that are both probable and can be reasonably estimated.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future loan loss
provisions may be necessary, based on changes in economic conditions and changes .in
borrower situations. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review .the allowance for loan losses and ‘may require
additional provisions based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of
their examination. The allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2005, is maintained at a
level that represents management’s best estimate of probable incurred losses in the loan
portfolio.
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Non-interest -income. The components of non-mterest mcome for ‘the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows: : A S te -
{
1, For the year ended:December 31, Increase{decrease)
K "' 2005 . 2004 Dollars Percentage
T {Dollars i'n Thousands)
Service charges and fees . ] . 5,351 % 3,777 % 1,574 41.7%
Gain on sale of real estate mortgages g . . oo
held forsale . - Lo ., 1 186 (65)  -34.9%
Gain(loss) on sale of securities.. : n ‘ L
available for sale . ) . 39, 4y . 1054%
Gain(loss) on sale of foreclosed assets T : .97 - (57) -58.8%
Commission income ' . 406 . 3n 105 34.9%
Interchange fees : ., 752 } 663 89 13.4%
Bank owned life insurance earnings 1603 L 173 430 248.6%
Other o 220 | 164 56 34.1%
' - e $-- - 7413 - % 5,322 $ 2,091 39.3%

LN L - It s !

Services charges and fees, wh1ch are earned primarily based on transaction services for
deposit account customers, mcreased as a result of initiatives implemented in the first and third
quarters of 2005. These initiatives focus on improving t the, Bank’s d1sc1phne over service charge
and fee collectrons Concurrent WIth the rmplementatlon of the m1t1at1ves, the Company also
increased its servrce charges and fees Jfor _certain transactlons o, be mhne with market

competltors S . S o e R

Lotat 1, e N LA
Comm15510n mcome is earned hy, the Company from third party fmanc:al services
provider, when Atlantlc Coast Bank customers purchase fmanmal services or products from the
financial 5erv1ces prov1der Cornm1331on mcome from. such sales mcreaSed during the year
ended December 31, 2005, as compared to the same penod in 2004, prlmarlly as a result of
1n1t1at1ves to increase, the productivity, of sales representatives, 1nclud1ng hlrmg of an, add1t10na1
representative | for the Florlda market

B vt .AJ-r I "I- ' Vot g « -
. “‘.,- G % ;; H ) !

_ Bank owned hfe 1nsurance earrungs increased durmg the year ended December 31, 2005
as compared to “the same perlod in 2004 -as the Companys, mvestment 1ncreased to $20.5
million as of December 31, 2005 from $4.9. rrulhon at December 31; 2004. The ihcrease in 2005 15

due to addltlonal mvestments of $15 0 mllhon, as well as earnings accrued to the pollaes
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Non-interest expense. The components of non-interest expense for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows: . Fo e
For.the years ended December 31, ~ Increase(decrease)
2005 B 2004 Dollars Percentage
~ (Dollars in Thousands)
Compensation and benefits s " 9368 §° 8541  § 827 9.7%
Occupancy and equipment 1,738 1,406° 332 23.6%
Data processing : 1,348 1,088 260 23.9%
Advertising 609 440 - 169 38.4%
Ouitside professional services © 2,286 1,797 489 - 27.2%
Interchange charges _ 624 637  {13) T20%
Collection expense and repossessed .‘ ' '
asset losses ; 3 200 41 705%
Telephone ) . 539 " 536 3 0.6%
Other+ - - 2,763 - 2,611 152 5.8%

- $ 19,616 - $ 17,256 $ 2,360 13.7%

Compensation and beriefit expénse for'the yeér ended December 31, 2005, as compared
to the same period in 2004, increased primarily due to increased salary ‘and general benefit
expense ‘and recognition of compensahon expense 'for awards made under the Company’s
share-based compensatién plans implemented in 2005. Salary and géneral benefit expense for
2005 increased approximately $428,000, or 5.0% over 2004, primarily-‘due to increased
compensation for all associates for normal annual merit adjustments, as well as higher salary’
expenses resulting from management changes made to the retail branch network management
team. At the annual shareholders meeting in May '2005, the Company’s shareholders approved
the establishment of the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporatlon 2005 Recognition Retention Plan
(the “Recognition Plan”) for the award of restricted stock to directors and key employees.
Shareholders also approved the establishment of the Atlantlc Coast 2005 Stock Option Plan (the
"Stock -Option Plan”) for the award of Stock options to directors and key employees
Compensation expense in 2005 associated with awards made to directors and key employees in
the third and fourth quarter of 2005 was $399,000. The increase in the cost of outside
professional services for the year ended December 31, 2005, as compared to the same period in
2004, is primarily due to costs associated with Sarbanes- -Oxley initiatives and various_tax
planning initiatives. Occupancy and equ1pment charges'have increased for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as compared to the year éfided December 31, 2004, due to higher real estate
taxes, increased utilities and the additional lease expense associated with the Company’s
Florida Regional Center, which became occupied in latter part of the first quarter of 2005. The
increased data processing costs for the year ended December 31, 2005, as compared to the same
period in 2004, are primarily due to increased software licensing costs for the Company’s bank
operating system, which is priced according to asset size and number of users. Advertising
expense increased for the 12 months ended December 31, 2005, as compared to the same period
in 2004 primarily due increased television and print media advertising for new deposit and loan
products in 2005. Collection expense and repossession expense increased for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004 primarily due to
outsourced services associated with bankruptcy issues and other repossession activities.
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Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense decreased to $1.1 million, for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2005, from $1.8 million for the same period in 2004. The decrease
is due to the elimination of a tax-related contingent liability of $895,000 set up in 2000 when the
Company became a taxable entity. The contingent liability had been established by the
Company in 2000 upon becoming a taxable entity and reflected the tax effect of a tax accounting
method utilized by the Company in 2000 and 2001 calendar tax years. The Company believed
the filing position was supportable based upon a reasonable interpretation of federal income tax
laws and the underlying regulations. However, due to the lack of prior rulings on similar fact
patterns, it was unknown whether the accounting method would be sustained upon audit by
either federal or state tax authorities. The applicable statue of limitations expired with respect to
the 2001 tax year on September 15, 2005, making the contingency reserve unnecessary.

Liquidity ' o S
- . \

Management maintains a liquidity position ‘that it believes wiil adequately provide
funding for loan demand and deposit run-off that may occur in the normal course of business.
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation relies on a number of different sources in order to meet its
potential liquidity demands. The primary sources are-increases in deposit accounts and cash
flows from loan payments and the securities portfolio. - - !

In addition to these primary sources of funds, management has several secondary
sources available to meet potential funding requirements. As of December 31, 2006, and
December 31, 2005 the Company had additional borrowing capacity of $106 million and $90
million, respectively, with the FHLB of Atlanta. Additionally, the Company has existing lines
of credit available in excess of $22 miilion with other financial institutions. The Company has
classified its entire securities portfolio as available for sale, providing an additional source of
liquidity. Management believes that Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s security portfolio is of
investment grade quality and the securities would therefore be marketable. The Company also
can utilize brokers to obtain certificates of deposits at costs and terms that are comparable to
certificate of deposits originated in its branch network. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
Company had $39.4 million and $32.7 million of certificates of deposits obtained through
brokers that were purchased to replace maturing branch originated certificates of deposits or to
help meet loan demands. As of December 31, 2006 and 2003 these certificates of deposits had a
weighted average maturity of 20.0 months and 19.0 months, and a weighted average rate of
4.56% and 3.53%; respectively. In addition, the Company has historically sold mortgage loans in
the secondary market to reduce interest rate risk and to create an additional source of liquidity.

During 2006, cash and cash equivalents increased $3.1 million from $38.0 million as of
December 31, 2005, to $41.1 million as of December 31, 2006. Cash from operating activities of
$3.1 million, combined with cash from financing activities of $92.0 million, exceeded cash used
for investing activities of $92.1 million. Primary sources of cash were from net increases in
deposit accounts of $56.7 million, FHLB borrowings of $40.0 million, proceeds from sale of
securities $29.0 million, proceeds from maturities and payments of available-for-sale securities
of $17.8 million and proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale of $16.7 million..
Approximately $58.0 million of the increase in deposits came from savings and money market
growth in 2006, as compared to 2005, the majority of which matures in less than 12 months. The
additional borrowings from the FHLB were used to replace maturing FHLB debt of $25.0
million and fund loan growth. Primary uses of cash included purchases of available-for-sale
securities of $61.6 million, purchase of loans to be held in portfolio of $36.0 million and
origination of loans to be held in portfolio of $24.8 million. In addition, during 2006, the
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Company used cash of $6.9 million to purchase shares of its common stock to be held as
treasury stock and paid quarterly cash dividends of $1.9 million to common stockholders. (See
Capital Resources below.) - ' :

During 2005, cash and.cash equivalents increased $12.3 million from $25.7 million as of
December 31, 2004, to $38.0 million as of December 31, 2005. Cash from operating activities of
$9.5 million, combined with cash from financing activities of $98.2 million, exceeded cash used
for investing activities of $95.5. million. Primary sources of cash were from net increases in
deposits of $80.6 million, additional -FHLB borrowings of $40.0 million, proceeds from
maturities and payments of available-for-sale securities of 29.0 million, $11.8 million for the sale
of securities, purchased under agreements to resell and proceeds from sales of securities
available-for-sale of $10.1 million. Approximately $52.0 million of the increase in deposits came
from certificates of deposit growth in 2005, as compared to 2004, the majority of which matures
in less than 12 months. The additional borrowings from the FHLB were used to replace
maturing FHLB debt of $11:3. million and the remainder was used sto fund loan growth.
Primary uses of cash included purchases of available-for-sale securities of $58.6 million,
purchase of loans to- be held in portfolio of $46.2 million, origination of loans to be held'in
portfolio of $19.9 million, purchase of additional bank owned life insurance policies of $15.0
million and principal payments on FHLB debt of $11.3 million. In addition, the Company used
cash of $9.6 million to purchase shares of its common stock to be held as treasury stock and paid
quarterly cash dividends of $1.5 million to common stockholders. -

. As of December 31, 2006, management is not aware of any current recommendations by
regulatory authorities, which, if they were impleménted, would have or reasonably likely to
have a material adverse affect on the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s liquidity, capital
resources or operations. -« . . :

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table presents Atlantic Coast Federal Corporétion’s longer-term, non-
deposit related, contractual obligations, commitments to extend credit to borrowers and

purchase-commitments, in aggregate and by paymeni due dates.

 December 31, 2006

» VI_:ess Than.  1Through 4 Through ., . More Than o -
1 Year 3 Years & Years 5 Years __Total
. (Dollars in Thousands) S
FHLB advances . $ 12,000 $ 32,000 $ 20,000 $ 80,000 $144,000
O_pc%rating leases (pir‘emisefs) - 3 l:. 92 — . ' - 330 |
Borrowings and operating leasés o _ 12238 32,092 20,000 ° __80,000 144,330
Undisbursed portion of loans closed - - o - © 22,315
Unused linés of credit k ’ - St C. 77025,
Total loan commitments’ - - 2 S 99,340
Loan purchase commitment - - - ’ - -
Security purchase commitment 29,000 o T . 29,000
To{_a_l purchase qorr}mit'inénts - ' - ' . I a T
*Total contractual obligations R B : ‘
.. And loan commitments. . $ 41238 . § 3209 § 20000 $ -80.000 272
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Capital Resources

~ At December 31; 2006, equity totaled $91.1 million. During 2006 the Company’s Board of
Directors declared regular quarterly dividends totaling $0.42 per common share that were paid
with the proceeds of maturities and payments of -available-for-sale securities. Net of dividends
waived by the MHC for its owned shares in the amount of $3.7 million, the Company’s equity
was reduced $2.0-million in 2006 for dividends declared. The Comparny expects-for the near
term, that the MHC will continué.to waive receipt of its dividends. The decision to pay
dividends in the future is dependent on operating'results, capital and 11qu1d1ty requlrements

however the Company expects to continue dividend payments in 2007, _k
. . 7 . T

Equlty in~2006 was also impacted by‘comimon ‘stock repurchase programs As of
December 31, 2006 the Company held as:Treasury stock.1,029,139 shares of comrmon stock at an
average per share cost of $15.90, 'or $16.0 million. The Company conducted two separate stock
repurchase programs during 2006. Under the first program, approximately 200,000 shares were
purchased to replace shares issued under the Atlantic 'Coast™Federal Corporation 2005
Recognition and Retention Plan. As of the end of 2006 execution of the second repurchase
program had resulted in the-purchase ‘of approximately 190,000 sharés of a planned total
purchase of 478,000 shares. Management expects to complete purchase of the approximate
288,000 remaining shares during 2007. Initiation of future share repurchase programs is
dependent on liquidity, opportunities for alternative investments and capital requirements.

Management monitors the capital levels of Atlantic Coast. Bank to provide for current
and future business opportunities and to meet regulatory guidelines for “well capitalized”
institutions. Atlantic Coast Bank is.required by the OTS to meet minimum capital adequacy
requirernents. Atlantic Coast Bank’s actual and required levels of Capltal as reported to the OTS
at December 31, 2006, are as follows:,

To Be Well
| Capitalized Under
For Capital’ Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio
| (Dollars in Millions)
As of December 31, 2006 i
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $81.8 13.9% $47.2 8.0% $ 590 10.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital {to risk-weighted
assets) $771 13.1% $23.6 4.0% $ 354 6.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total _ :
assets) $77.1 9.2% $334 4.0% 5 417 5.0%

At December 31, 2006, Atlantic Coast Bank exceeded all regulatory minimum capital
requirements and is considered to be “well capitalized.” In addition, as of December 31, 2005,
management was not aware of any recommendation by a regulatory authority that, if it were
implemented, would have a material effect on liquidity, capital resources or operations.

Under regulations of the OTS, limitations have been imposed on all “capital
distributions” by savings institutions, including cash dividends. See Business- “How We Are
Regulated-Limitations on Dividends and Capital Distributions.” Durmg 2007, Atlantic Coast
Bank could, without prior approval, declare dividends of approx1mately $10.1 million, plus any
2007 net profits retained to the date of the dividend declaration.
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Inflation

The effects of .price changes and inflation can vary substantially for most financial
institutions. While management believes that inflation affects the growth of total assets and the
Company’s profitability, it believes that it is difficult to assess the overall impact. Management
believes this to be the case due to the fact that generally neither the timing nor the magnitude of
inflationary changes in the consumer price index (“CPI”) coincides with changes in interest
rates. The price of one or more components of the CPI may fluctuate considerably and thereby
influence the overall CPI without having corresponding affect on interest rates or upon the cost
of those goods and services normally purchased by Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation. In years
of high inflation and high interest rates, intermediate and long-term interest rates tend to
increase, thereby adversely impacting the market values of investment securities, mortgage
loans and other long-term fixed rate loans. In addition, higher short-term interest rates caused
by inflation tend to increase the cost of funds. In other years, the opposite may occur.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 of-the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued
or proposed accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about.Mark"et Risk
. l
Interest rate risk is one of the most significant market risks affecting the Company.
Interest rate risk is the possibility that changes in interest rates will negatively impact net
income or the value of interest-rate sensitive assets, liabilities and commitments. As such, the
Company is subject to interest rate risk to the extent that its interest bearing liabilities, primarily
deposits and FHLB advances, re-price more rapldly or at different rates than its interest earning
- assets. 7 '} '

In an effort to manage to its exposure to interest rate risk, the Company has adopted an
asset and liability management policy set forth by the Board of Directors, and implemented by
the Asset/Liability Committée. The objective of the Committee is to coordinate, control and
communicate asset/liability management consistent with the Company’s business plan and
board approved pohc1es The Committee establishes and mdnitors the volume and mix of
assets and funding sources taking into account relative costs and spreads, interest rate
sensitivity and cash flow requirements in an effort to produce results that are consistent with
the Company’s liquidity, capital adequacy, growth, risk, and profitability goals.

The Committee generally’ meets-on a quarterly .basis to review, among other things,
economic conditions and interest rate outlook, current and projected liquidity neéds and capital
position, anticipated changes in the volume and mix of assets ‘and liabilities and interest rate
exposure limits versus current projections pursuant to market value of portfolio equity analysis
and income simulations. The Committee recommends appropriate strategy changes based on
this review. The Committee is responsible for reviewing and reporting the effects of the policy

implementations and strategies to the Board of Directors at least quarterly.

A key element of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s asset/ liability plan is to protect
net earnings by managing the maturity or re-pricing mismatch between its interest-earning
assets and rate-sensitive liabilities. Historically, the Company has sought to reduce exposure to
its earnings through the use of adjustable rate loans and through the sale of certain fixed rate
loans in the secondary market, and by extending funding maturities through the use of FHLB
advances. c -

As part of its efforts to monitor and manage interest rate risk, the Company uses
financial modeling techniques that estimate the impact of different interest rate scenarios on the
value of the company’s equity. Referred to as .Economic Value of Equity (“EVE"), this
methodology measures the changes in equity due to the impact-on net interest margin, over a
five-year horizon, from instantaneous and sustained parallel shifts in the yield curve, in 100
basis point increments, up and' down 300 basis points. Management believes the EVE
" methodology improves the visibility. of the effect of current interest rate risk on future earnings
under increasing or decreasing interest rate environments. Accordingly, the Company believes
it is in a better position to be proactive in reducing future interest rate risk through management
of the growth of interest earning assets and interest- bearmg liabilities within a meaningful time
horizon. \ . b
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The table presented :below, as of December 31, 2006, is an analysis of Atlantic’Coast
Federal Corporation’s interest rate risk as measured by changes in EVE for instantaneous and
sustained parallel shifts in.the yield curve, in-100 basis-point increments, up and down 300 basis
points. Also,presented, for comparative,.purposes, is the EVE as of December 31, 2005
considering the same interest rate changes. - : oo o

+ Economic Value of Equity and Duration of Assets and Liabilities at December 31, 2006
Change in Interest Rate

Decrease Decrease Decrease Increase Increase . Increase
3% 2% 1% 1% 2% 3%

Duration of assets{1) - . C 'o258 L 253 .7 . 258 . 274 279 279
Duration of liabilities(1) . L. 252, , y 252 ' 252 | . 241 oo 24 N 241

Differential in duration 0.01 0.01 0,05 l 0.33 038 0.38
Amount of change in Econom'&c . . . . X , , . -, .
Value of Equity(2} ' 5 87,636 1 175,272 $ 476,404 $ {2.804,847) % "(6,346,360) % (9,519,541)
Percentage change in Economic Value . e . ' S S o ‘ :
of Equity(2) . . 0.09% . . 0.18% , 0.50% ) -293% -6.63% -9.94%

[

‘ . - LT . . ] . H

Economic Value of Equity and Duration of Assets and Liabilities at December 31, 2005

eyt o, . ~es -+ . . . . -« Changein Intercst Rate

L B _ Decrease _Decre.ase . Decrease Increa_se- Increase. Increase

- o P ‘ 1% _ 1 S 3%

-, ST L T TR — ¢ . e . '
Duration of assets(1) c - * 297 Ly e 297 s 299 .. ¢ o, 304, . 305 3.05
Duration of liabilities(1) . . 285 ..., 285 . 285 248 o 248 263
Differential in duration ' - 012 : ’ 0.12 . 0.14 ) 0.56 0.57 0.42
. T AP 1 = ‘ = T -

Amount of change in Economic ' - R ' ! - _ HA
Value of Equity(2) $ 2758445 $ 1,838,963 $ 1059985 % (4,2001,231) $  (8526667) $ (9433215
Percentage change in Economic Value
of Equity(2) | . E 2.83% o 189% .+ T, 109% - . 4% . -874% -9.67%

(1)
@

Expressed as number of years before asset/liability reprices to achieve stated rate of interest rate increase
Represents the cumulative five year pre-tax impact on the Company's equ:ty due to increased or (decreased) net interest margin
The December 31, 2006 table above indicates that, under any of the interest rate change
scenarios presented, Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation has a positive differential in duration.
Essentially, this means that the time it takes for the Company’s assets to' re-price for the
assumed interest rate changes excéeds the time it takes for the liabilities to re-pricé for the same
interest rate changes. Accordingly, the Company’is considered liability sensitive, although less
so in a decreasing interest rate environment. Therefore, for instantaneous increases in interest
rates of 1%, 2% or 3%, the Company’s equity is estimated.to decrease in value by $2.8 million,
$6.3 million and $9.5- million respectively. For the assumed instantaneous interest rate

decreases of 1%, 2% or 3%, the Company’s equ1ty is estimated to increase $0.5 million, $0 2

million and $0.1 mllhon : . : e S
+r ! ' + ' Lonta ) L

C_omparing the December 31, 2006 table to the December 31, 2005 table, the Company
became less sensitive to interest rate changes during 2006, particularly in scenarios. with
declining interest rates. This was accomplished through efforts on both sides of the balance
sheet. Longer-term single family mortgages were de-emphasized in favor of prime rate based
loans, and retail sales efforts were focused on interest checking and money market deposits
rather than time deposits, resulting in a better matching of re-pricing timelines which in turn
shortened the duration differential. Additionally, Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other
borrowings were executed with longer terms, in an effort to manage asset and liability
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maturities, which further reduced the Company’s sensitivity to interest rate changes. The end
result of these changes was to move the Company to a more interest rate neutral balance sheet.

In managing its asset/liability mix, the Company, depending on the relationship
between long and short-term interest rates, market conditions and consumer preference, may
place somewhat greater emphasis on maximizing its net interest margin than on strictly
matching the interest rate sensitivity of its assets and liabilities. Management believes that the
increased net income which may result from an acceptable mismatch in the actual maturity or
re-pricing of its asset and liability portfolios can, during periods of declining or stable interest
rates, provide sufficient returns to justify the increased exposure to-sudden and unexpected
increases in interest rates which may result from such a mismatch. Management believes that
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s level of interest rate risk is acceptable under this approach.

- In evaluating Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s exposure to interest rate movements,
certain shortcomings inherent in the method of analysis presented'in the foregoing tables must
be considered. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities
or re-pricing periods,. they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates.
Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in
interest rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages (ARM’s), have
features that restrict changes in interest rates on a short term basis and over the life of the asset.
Further, in the event of a significant change in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal
levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed above. Finally, the ability of many
borrowers to service their debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase. Atlantic
Coast Federal Corporation considers all:of these factors in momtormg its exposure to interest
rate risk. ~ : . Ct

{
3

The Board of Directors and management of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation believe
that certain factors afford Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation the ability to operate successfully
despite its exposure to interest rate risk. Atlantic Coast Federal manages its interest rate risk by
originating and retaining adjustable-rate loans in its portfolio and: by selling most of'the
currently-originated fixed-rate, one-to-four family real estate loans. The Company has also used
interest rate swap agreements-as a:part of its asset/liability management strategy. As of
December 31, 2005 the Company held interest swap agreements classified as cash flow hedges
of certain FHLB advances with notional amounts totaling $10.0 million. Under the terms of the
interest rate swap agreements, the Company pays the counterparty a fixed rate of interest based
on the notional amount and receives interest based on a floating rate of interest. The fair value
of this interest rate swap was approximately $668,000 as of December 31, 2006. During 2005, the
Company entered into two additional interest rate swap agreements with a combined notional
value of $10.0 million to further promote its asset/liability management strategy by mitigating
the negative impact to net interest margin of sudden and unplanned interest rate changes. One
of these agreements with a notional amount of $5.0 miliion matured during 2006. The
remaining swap with a notional amount of $5.0 million, which does not qualify for hedge
accounting, had an estimated value on December 31, 2006 of $(31,000). .

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation’s investment strategy is to maintain a diversified
portfolio of high quality investments that balances the goals of minimizing interest rate and
credit risks while striving to maximize investment return and provide the liquidity necessary to
meet funding needs.




Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data o

. L

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and-Board of Directors :
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation . . - ,
Waycross, Georgia :

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation ("Corporation”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December-31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are,the
responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether .the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test ‘basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and .disclosures in the, consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our 0p1mon S : '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation-as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in confornuty with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. : : . : !

Cloont bggisl ool Goregrnsy L2

Crowe Chizek and Compa'ny'LLC

Brentwood, Tennessee
March 29, 2007




ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS -
December 31, 2006 and 2005 .

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Information)

‘Bank owned life insurance .

ASSETS

Cash and due from financial institutions

Short-term interest bearing deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents

Other interest bearing deposits in other financial mstltutlons

Securities available for sale

Real estate mortgages held for sale . - -

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,705 in 2006

and $4,587 in 2005

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Accrued interest receivable

Land, premises and equipment, net

’

Other real estate owned
Goodwill L -
Other assets
Total assets Tt ooy -
.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits
Non-interest-bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Savings and money market
Time
Total deposits '
Securities sold under agreement to repu rcha‘;e
Federal Home Loan Bank advances .

" Accrued expenses and other Habilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies .

Preferred stock: $0.01 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized

none issued

Common stock: $0.0I_p(ar value; 18,000,000 sha‘rés authorized,

issued and outstanding of 14,813,469 at December, 31 2006
and 14,805,969 at December 31, 2005
Additional paid in capital

Unearned employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) shares of 325,864

at December 31, 2006 and 372,416 at December 31, 2005 °

.Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,029,139 shares at December 31, 2006

and 664,619 at Decémber 31, 2005
Total stockhelders' equity

‘
.

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

.z ~ 4

2006

2005
i
| 10,571 $ 22,041
b 30,486 15,918
41,057 37,959
4 1200 1,800
‘| 99,231 71,965
. 435 - 100
639,517 580,441
¢ 7.048 7,074
3499 2,722
. 17610 . 14,485
L 21366 20,526
286 310
2,661 2,661
4,085 3,806
842,825 $ 743,849
« 38,301 $ 38,454
. 52895 79,739
I 158,229 100,259
323,627 - 297,869
573,052 516,321
C 29,000 ¢ -
144,000 129,000
5,686 5,611
751,738 650,932
3 } * i}
148 148
57,708 56,876
(3,259) (3,724)
52,297 49,193 ,
210 27
L (16,017) (9,603)
. 91,087 92,917
743,849

. 842,875 $ .

The accompanying notes-are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Information)

. 2006 2005 2004
Interest and dividend income
Leoans, including fees i : $ 41,029 $ 33,606 | $ 30,400
Securities and interest-bearing deposits : ' _
-in other financial institutions - taxable 3,308 ' 3,403 1,065
Securities and interest-bearing deposits . ) ) ‘ '
in other financial institutions - tax exempt 70 ' 173 . 235
Securities purchased under agreements to resell - .72 ' 72
Total interest and dividend income 45,407 ' _ 37,254 31,772
Interest expense
Deposits . ' 18,448 12,168 8,184
Federal Home Loan Bank advances : 5,468 4,990 3,732
Securities sold undeér agreements to repurchase 634 o - -
‘ Total interest expense 24,550 17,158 ° ©11,916
] . , . . '
Net interest income 21,857 20,096 - 19,856
Provision for loan losses - 475 2,121 2,975
. . 3 - |
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 21,382 17,975 16,881
] R 1. i o | v
Noninterest income |
Service charges and fees 5,745 .. 5,351 | 3,777
Gain on sale of real estate mortgages held for sale 67 121 . 185 I
. Loss on sale of securities available for sale {163) .. (80) . (39) |
Commission income, 314 - 4086 ‘ 301 '
Interchange fees T 791 752 663
Bank owned life insurance earnings 840 . 603 173
Other 248 260 - 262
7,842 ) 7,413 5,322
. T ‘f ’ ’( -‘
| Noninterest expense
| Compensation and benefits 10,947 9,369 . 8,541
3 Occupancy and equipment =~ - 2,228 1,738 1.406
Data processing L 1,483 _ ‘ 1,348 1,088
Advertising t B47’ E o609 440
Qutside professional services 1,99 ] 2,286 ' 1,797
Interchange charges te T491 ‘ 624 _ 637 .
Collection expense and repossessed asset losses et T 267 0 o 341 ‘ 200 .
Telephone 500 B 539 536 i
Other 2,922 . 2,762 - 2,611 I
| : 21,679 j 19,616 - 17,256 l
i Income before income tax expense 7.545 . 5,772 . 4,947
\ ]
Income tax expense T 2,393 + 5 e - 1,083 e 1,755
Netincome T $ 5.152 $ 4,689 $ 3,192
Ea'rnings per commc_:)n_'shgare: Ah__'!‘. ST : '
Basic ‘ $ 0.38 $ 0.34 $ 0.32
Diluted . $ 0.38 $ 0.33 $ 0.32
Dividends declared per common share ° $ 0.42 $ 0.26 $ -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH. FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

' -(continued)

77

(Dollars in Thousands) ;
2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities i
Net income ' $ 5152 % 4,689 % 3,192
Adjustments to reconcile net income to :
to net cash from operating activities: ) _
Provision for loan losses ’ 475, 2121 2,975
Gain on sale of real estate mortgages held for sale (67) {121) (185)
Loans originated for sale (37,931) (9,661) (11,486)
Proceeds from loan sales 33,733 9,762 11,896
{Gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned 1 41y - 97)
Loss on sale of securities ;
available for sale 163 80 39
{Gain) loss on disposal of equipment 146 (81) -
ESOP compensation expense 755 613 624
Share-based compensation expense 903; 398 -
Net depreciatioﬁ and amortization 1,890 " 1,977 1,465
Net change in accrued interest receivable {777) (445) (236)
Increase in cash surrender value of ‘ . .

" bank owned life insurance (840) (603) (173)
Net chan ge in other assets . (426) (1,378) 861
Net change in accrued expenses :
and other liabilities (78) 2,216 1,010

Net cash from operating activites 3,009 9,526 9,885
Cash flows from investing activities :
Net change in securities purchased under f
agreements to resell - 11,800 (11,800)
Proceeds from maturities and payments 'l .
of securites available for sale 17,808 29,022 6,031
Proceeds from the sales of securities ‘
available for sale 16,657. 10,130 3,014
Purchase of securities available for sale (61,642) (58,552) {36,700)
Loans purchased (35,977) (46,161) (6,438)
Proceeds from sales of loans from portfolio - - 9,565
Net change in loans (24,76{;3) (19,922) (88,070)
Expenditures on premises and equipment (4,478) (5,298) (984)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment - 360 -
Proceeds from the sale of other real estate owned 612 581 605
Purchase of FHLB stock (874) (1,563) (2,430)
Purchase of bank owned life insurance :- (15,000) -
Net change in other investments 600 (900) (400)
Net cash from investing activities (92,062) (95,503) (127,607)



ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Other real estate exchanged for loans

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits . : $ 56,731 3 80,639 43,426
F.HLB advances 40,000 40,000 65,000
Proceeds from sale of common stock, )
net of issuance costs - - 51,665
Proceeds from sale of securities - .
under agreement to repurchase 29,000 - i -
Repayment of FHLB advances (25,000 (11,314) (25,657)
Treasury stock repurchased (6.877) (9,603) .
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, k
including tax benefit 102 - -
Dividends paid (1,895) (1,494) oo
Net cash from financing activities 92,061 . 98,228 134,434
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3,098 12,251 16,712
Cash and equivalents beginning of period 37,959 25,708 8,99
Cash and equi\}alents at end of period $ 41,057 $ 37,959 iS,"ZOB
_ Supplemental information: - - . - ) L
. Interest paid § 24,287 $ 16,891 11,790
Income taxes paid 3,921 980 950
Supplemental noncash disclosures: ’ . ’
Loans transferred to other real estate $ 589 $ 544 222
- - 448

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December:31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 - -

1 : \ : PR N . e ey,

-
NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operahons The accompanying consolldated f1nanc1al statements mclude Atlantic
(oast Federal 'Corporation and-its wholly. owned subsidiary, ‘Atlantic. Coast Bank ("Atlantic
Coast Bank") together referred ito as ("the Company"). = Also includéd in the consolidated
financial statements is Atlantic Coast Holdings, Inc (“Holdings”) a:wholly owned subsidiary of
Atlantic Coast Bank, formed for the purpose of managing and investing in certain securities as
well as holding all ‘of the common stock and 85% of the preferred stock of Coastal Properties,
Inc., a Real Estate Investment Trust (the “REIT"). The-REIT was formed in the fourth quarter of
2005, for the .purpose of -holding Georgia and Florida: first ‘lien- residential mortgage loans
originated by Atlantic Coast Bank. The REIT. is -permitted a deduction for'Federal income tax
purposes of all dividends paid to.its shareliolders. The consolidated financials also include First
Community Financial Services, Inc. ("FCFS"), an inactive wholly .owned subsidiary of Atlantic
Coast Bank. All significant inter-company transactions and balances are -eliminated .in
consolidation. Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation is a majority owned (63.3%) subsidiary of
Atlantic Coast Federal, MHC. These financial statements do not include the transacnons and
balances of Atlantic Coast Federal MHC. Lo ‘ . . ..)'

R R T ‘ ':’,.-i.-'f.-l T r

Atlantlc Coast Bank prov1des a broad range of banking services to 1nd1v1dual and corporate
customers primarily in southern coastal Georgia and northern coastal Florida..Its primary
deposit products are, checking, savings,.and term certificate accounts, and its ;primary lending
_products are residential mortgage,-commercial, and installment loans. Substantially all loans
are secured .by. specific items of collateral including business, assets, consumer assets, and
commercial and residential real estate. . Commercial loans are generally expected to be repaid
from the cash flows from the operations of the business. There are no significant concentrations
of loans to any one industry or customer. However, the customers' ability to repay their loans is
dependent on the real estate and general economic conditions in.the area. FCFS was originally
formed to. provide insurance and.investment products and services for Atlantic Coast Bank's
customers and surrounding communities., On December 31, 2003, the operations of FCFS were
consolidated into Atlantic Coast Bank., - - = . ... :

On May 30, 2002, Atlantic Coast Bank adopted a Plan of Réorgarlilzafion into a three-tier mutual
holding company. The Plan of Reorganization became effective on January 1, 2003, Following
the reorganization, Atlantic, Coast Bank Jbecame a wholly owned subsidiary. of Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation ("the Stock Company") which Jbecame a wholly owned subs1d1ary of
Atlantic Coast Federal MHC ("the Mutual Company"). .The- transactlon was accounted for at
historical cost. The pr1nc1pal Aactivity of.the Stock Company is the ownershlp of Atlantic Coast
Bank: The principal activity of the Mutual Company is the owners}up of the Stock Company

+

Executlon of Minority Stock Offermg ‘On March 12 2004 and amended on May 11, 2004 the
~ Board of Directors of the Stock Company adopted a plan of stock’ 1ssuance to sell a 'minority
interest of its common stock to eligible depositors of Atlantic Coast Bank and its employee stock
ownership plan in a subscription offering, with the Mutual Company retaining ownership of
the majority of the common stock. The plan was accomplished on October 4, 2004 through the
sale to eligible depositors of 5,353,480 shares and to the employee stock ownership plan of
465,520 for a total of 5,819,000 total shares sold at $10 per share, representing 40% of the Stock
Company's stock.
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

The issued shares resulted in proceeds of $56.3 million, net of conversion expenses of $1.9
million, With the proceeds the Stock Company loaned its employee ‘stock ownership plan $4.7
million to enable it to buy 8% of the shares issued to persons other than the Mutual Company.
The Stock Company also contributed $28.2 million, which is approximately 50% of the proceeds
net of stock offering costs of $1.9 million, to Atlantic Coast Bank as a capital contribution. The
balance of the net proceeds was retained as the Stock Company's initial capitalization and was
invested in time deposits at Atlantic Coast Bank and investment securities. Since the date of the
stock offering, the proceeds have been used for general business purposes including additional
investment in securities, repurchasing shares of its common stock and paying dividends. In the
future the Company intends to continue to use the funds raised from the stock offering for these
same purposes as well as pursuing acquisitions. “The funds received by Atlantic Coast Bank
have been principally invested in short-term interest bearing deposits at financial institutions,
investment securities, loan growth and for growth through expansion of the branch office
network. : :

Stock Repurchase Program: During the third quarter of 2005, the Company initiated the first of
two stock repurchase programs conducted during the year. The initial repurchase program,
which began in August of 2005 and concluded on September 27, 2005, resulted in the purchase
of 285,131 shares of common stock to replace the shares issued for the Retention Plan and
provide for future awards. In October 2005, the Company began its second stock repurchase
program to purchase up to 10% of the remaining outstanding shares of common stock resulting
in the purchase of 379,488 shares as of December 31, 2005. During 2006 the Company acquired
an additional 394,338 shares of common stock outstanding. Total shares of common stock held
in Treasury as of December 31, 2006 was 1,029,139 shares or 6.9% of totdl outstanding shares of
common stock. :

At December 31, 2006, the Mutual Company (the “MHC”) owned 63.3%, or 8,728,500 shares, of
the outstanding common stock of the Stock Company, with the remaining 36.7%, or 5,055,830
shares held by persons other than the MHC and the Stock Company: The Stock Company holds
100% of Atlantic Coast Bank’s outstanding common stock.

Use of Estimates_in Preparing Financial Statements:* The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period, as well as the disclosures
provided. ' Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates associated with the
allowance for loan losses, realization of deferred tax assets, valuation of intangible assets
including goodwill and the fair values of securities and: other financial instruments are
particularly susceptlble to material change in the near term.
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPOR}ATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI:ICIES (continued) -

‘Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is
defined to include-cash on hand, cash due from financial institutions and short-term interest-
earning deposits in both financia] institutions and other investment companies. The Company
reports net cash flows for customer loan.transactions,- deposit transactions, other interest
bearing deposits made with other financial institutions and securltles purchased under
agreements to resell.

. f H . C Co C ’ B
Securities: Securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. - Securities are
classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity. Securities available for
sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported separately in
other comprehenswe income (loss) net of tax. .

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium"or discount: Premiums and
discounts on securities are amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating
prepayments, except for mortgage backed securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gains
and losses on sales of securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the
specific identification method. : T

[

Declines in the fair value of secur1t1es below their cost that are other than temporary are
reflected as realized losses. In estlmatmg other-than-temporary losses, management considers:
(1) the length of time and extent that fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial
condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the Company's ability and intent to
hold the security for a period sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Real Estate Mortgages Held for Sale The Bank orlgmates real estate mortgages for sale in the
secondary market. Real estate mortgages held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market
in the aggregate with adjustments for. unreallzed losses recorded in a valuation account by a
charge against current earnings. Sales in the secondary market are recognized when full
acceptance and funding has been received. Loans are generally sold servicing released.

o i
Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity or paydff are
reported at the principal balance outstanding, net of unearned loan fees and costs, premiums on
loans purchased, and an allowance for loan losses. .
The Bank also purchases loans that conform to our underwriting standards, prihcipa]ly one- to
four-family residential mortgages, in the form of whole loans as weIl as participation interests
for interest rate risk management and portfolio dwers1f1cat10n and to supplement our organic
growth. ‘ . '

¥ . . . r

]

Interest income 1s accrued on the unpald prmc1pal balance, Loan or1g1nat10n fees, net of certain
direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest income using the level yleld
method. Interest income includes amortlzatlon of purchase prerniums or discounts on loans
purchased. Premiums and dlscounts are amortlzed onithe level yield method
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
“Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income on mortgage and commercial loans. is discontinued at the time the loan is 90
days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process of collection. Consumer loans
are typically charged,off.no later than 180.days past due. Past due status is-based on the
contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an
earlier date if collectlon of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All accrued interest on loans placed on-non-accrual status is reversed against interest income.
Interest received on such'loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are rétuined to accrual status when all the principal and
interest amounts contractually due are brought current- and future payments are reasonably
-assured. i :

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable
incurred credit losses; increased by the provision for loan losses and decreased by charge-offs
less recoveries. Management estimates the allowance balance required by considering the past
‘loan loss -experience, the nature)and volume of the portfolio, information about specific
borrower sitiiations ‘and estimated value of any underlying collateral, whether the loan was
originated through the Company’s retail network or through a broker, economic conditions and
other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire
allowance is available for any loan' that, in management s ]udgment should be charged-off.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management beheves the uncollectlblhty of
a loan balance is conflrmed -

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to
loans that are individually evaluated and determined to be impaired. Loans individually
evaluated are generally large ‘balance and/or complex loans, such as-multi-family and
‘commercial real estate loans. This evaluation is often based on 51gn1f1cant estimates and
assumptions due to the level of subjectivity and ]udgment necessary to account for highly
uncertain matters or the susceptibility of such miattéts to change. The general component
relates to large groups of small balance homogeneous loansthat are evaluated in the aggregate
based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is consideréd impaired when, based on'currént information and events, it is probable
that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduléd- payments of principal or interest
when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determmmg impairment include: payment status, collateral value, and the
probability of collectmg scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and’ payment shortfalls genérally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls -
on a case-by-case basis, takmg into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan
and the borrower, including the length’ of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s
prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest
owed. Impairment is measured‘on a loan by loan basis for commercial‘and construction loans
over $250 thousand By either the ‘présent-value of éxpected future cash flows discounted at the
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

loan’s effective-interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral
if. the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans: are
collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately, 1dent|fy
individual consumer and residential loans for 1mpa1rment disclosures. , . L

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are,,accounted for- as sales,” when
control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to.be
surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of, that right) to
pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3)-the Company does not;maintain, effective
control -over the transferred assets through an agreementrto repurchase them before thelr
maturity. ‘

Foreclosed Assets: Assets acquired through, or.in lieu of, loan foreclosure are initially recorded
at fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis and subsequently carried at
the lower of carrying value or fair value less selling costs. Costs relating to improvement of
property are capitalized, whereas costs relating to the holding of: property are.expensed. -,

: ' ' - ' LR . Z ' '., i e om

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock: Atlantic Coast Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB) system. Members are required to own a certain amount of FHLB stock based on
the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts: FHLB:stock is
carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment

‘based on ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are.reported as income,

o v o T R N A : : .
Land, Premises, and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Buildings and furniture, fixtures and
equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. ; Premises and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Buildings and related components have useful lives ranging from 15

+to 39 years.. Furniture, fixtures, and:equipment have useful lives ranging from 1 to 15 years.
Interest expense associated with the.construction of new facilities is capitalized-at the wmghted
average cost of funds. D Ty e Lo TP

- . N . x

-Bank Owned Life Insurance: The Company has purchased life insurancepolicies-on certain key
_executives., Bank owned life insurance is recorded at the cash value’of the underlying insurance
policy. Increases in the cash value are recorded as non-interest income. . ; e
. . e K SN IR RN

Earnmgs Per Common Share: Basic earnings per common share is computed by, dividing net
income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period,
reduced for unallocated ESOP shares. Diluted earnings per common share is computed. by
dlvxdmg net income by. the weighted-average number of-common shares outstandmg for. the
period increased for the dilutive effect of unvested stock options and stock awards. The dilutive
effect of the unvested stock options and stock. awards is calculated-under the treasury stock
method utilizing the average market value of the Company’s stock for the period. ;

L)
1
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill resulted from business acquisitions and
represents: the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable ‘intangible assets. Goodwill is assessed at least annually for
impairment and any such impairment is recognized in the period identified. Other intangible
assets consist of core deposit arising from branch acquisitions. Core deposit intangibles are
initially measured ‘at fair value and then are amortized on an accelerated method over their
estlmated useful lives, rangmg from 4 to 10 years. ' ' '

Long-Term Assets: Premises and equipment, core deposit and other intangible assets, and other
Jlong-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their carrying amount may
not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at
fair value.

Benefit Plans: Profit-sharing and 401k plan expense is the amount contributed as determined
by Board decision. Deferred compensation plan expense is allocated over years of service.

Employvee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP): The Company accounts for its ESOP in accordance
with Statement of Position 93-6. Accordingly, since the Company sponsors the ESOP with an
-employer loan, neither the ESOP's loan payable or the Company's loan receivable are reported
in the Company's consolidated balance sheet. Likewise the Company does not recognize
interest income or interest cost on the loan. Unallocated shares held by the ESOP are recorded
as-unearned ESOP shares in the consolidated statement of changes in stockholders' equity. As
shares are committed to be released for allocation, the Company recognizes compensation
expense equal to the average market price of the shares for the period. Dividends on allocated
ESOP shares reduce retained earnings; dividends on unearned ESOP shares recduce debt and
accrued interest.

Stock Compensation: The Company records compensation cost for stock or stock options
awarded to employees in return for employee service. -The cost is measured at the grant-date
fair value of the award and recognized as compensation expense over the employee service
period, which is normally the vesting period.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable
and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the
expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if
needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized...

Loss_Contingencies: - Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the
ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable
and amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there
are currently any such matters that will have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements. ‘ -
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include
off-balance sheet credit instruments including commitments to méke loans and unused lines of
credit, issued to meet customers' financing needs. The face amount for these items represents
the exposure to loss, before considéring collateral or ability to repay Such fmancxal instruments
are recorded when they are funded :

Derivatives:  All " derivative instruments ‘are recorded at their fair values. ‘If derivative
instruments are designated and qualify as hedges of fair ‘values, both the change in the fair
value of the hedge and the hedged item are included in current earnings.  Fair value
adjustments related to cash flow "hedges are recorded in other' comprehensive income and
reclassified to earnings when thé hedged transaction is reflected in earnings.: Ineffective
portions of hedges are reflected in earnings as they occur. |

Comprehensive -Income: * .Comprehensive income consists of net income and other
comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) includes the net change in
unrealized appreciation and deprec:ahon on securities available for sale, net of tax, and the fair
value of cash flow hedges, net of-tax, which are also recogmz.ed as separate components of
equity.

' |
Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using
relevant market information and other assumptions, as more fully, disclosed in a separate note.
Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding
interest rates, ‘credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad
markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions: could
significantly affect the estimates. .- : ‘ Lo '

t

Operating Segments: ‘While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the
various products and services, the identifiable segments are ‘not'material and operations are
managed and financial performance is evaluated on a company-wide basis. Accordingly, all of
the financial service operations are con51dered by’ management to be aggregated in one
reportable operating segment. :

N !
HS

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposrt with the Federal Reserve of $710,000 and $4.0
million, at year end 2006 and 2005 respectively, was required to meet regulatory reserve and
clearing requxrements These balances do not earn intevest. ;

;. ;
Dividends: Banking regulations require maintaining cértain capital levels and may limit the
dividends paid by the Bank to the'Stock Company or by the Company to shareholders. The
Mutual Company, with approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision, may waive receipt of
dividends paid by the Stock Company. Waived dividends are not charged to the Stock
Company’s retained earnings, nor restrict the amount of future dividends. During 2006 and
2005, the Mutual Company waived receipt of dividends in the amount of $3.7 million and $1.7
million, respectively. The Stock Company paid no dividends in 2004.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) -

Reclassifications: Certain items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to
conform to the current presentation. : . o

Adoption of New Accounting Standards: In.September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”), which addresses how .companies should measure fair
value when they are required to use a fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes
under generally accepted accounting principles. (“GAAP”). SFAS 157, which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, does not require new fair value measurements;
however it does establish a common definition of fair value and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The Company is presently assessing the impact FAS 157, may have on-its

financial statements, but no determination has been made at this time.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. (“SFAS 158”) This accounting standard amends SFAS No.
87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, SFAS No: 88, Employer. Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Emnployers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions, and SFAS No. 132, Revised, Employer
Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. Under SFAS 158, companies must
recognize the over funded or under funded status of single-employer funded defined benefit
plans as an asset or liability in its statement of financial condition. In addition, SFAS 158
requires changes in the funded status. be recognized as part of comprehensive income as of the
date of the company’s year-end statement of financial-condition. Relative to the.requirement to
recognize the, funded status of a benefit plan, and the related disclosure’requirements,. the
effective date of SFAS 158 is fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006 for companies with
publicly traded equity securities. The requirement for measuring plan assets and benefit
obligations as of the employers fiscal year-end statement of condition is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2008 for publicly traded companies. The adoption of SFAS 158 did
not have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. .
In September 2006, the SEC issued SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) Topic 1N, “Financial
Statements - Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 addresses how a
public company should quantify the effect of an error on the financial statements by requiring a
dual approach to, compute the amount of a misstatement. The dual approach encompasses both
a current year income statement perspective (“rollover” method) and a vear-end balance sheet
perspective (“iron curtain” method). Companies that will need to change their method of
computing the-amount of an error must adopt the dual approach for fiscal years ending after
November 15,- 2006, The adoption of SAB 108 did not.have any effect on the financial
statements of the Company. : A

I
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes - an interprefation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"), which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company has determined that the adoption of FIN 48
will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITE”) finalized Issue No. 06-4,
Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Arrangements. . This issue requires that a liability beirecorded during the service
period when a split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants’ employment or
retirement. The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit
cost for the continuing life insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the
contractual terms of the underlying agreement. This issue is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2007. The Company does not believe the adoptlon of EITF No. 06-4 will
have a material effect on the financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No. 06-5, Accoun ting for
Purchases of Life Insurance - Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4 ("EITF 06-5”). This issue requires that a policyholder consider
contractual terms of a life insurance policy in determining the amount that could be realized
under the insurance contract. It also requires that if the contract provides for a greater
surrender value if all individual policies in a group are surrendered at the same time,.that the
surrender value be determined based on the assumption that policies will be surrendered on an
individual basis. Lastly,” the issue discusses -whether ‘the cash ‘surrender value should-be
discounted when the policyholder is contractually limited in its ability to surrender a policy.
This issue is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company does not
believe the ad()ptlon of this issue will have a'material effect on'the financial statements.

I . ' S
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The fair value of securities available for sale and the related gross unrealized gains and Iosses
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

.
{Dollars in Thousands)

Gross Gross
Unrecalized Unrealized
. Fair Value I Gains Losses
December 31, 2006 )
Government-sponsored enterprises 5 16,280 S 6 $ (114)
State and municipal 1,729 - (19)
Mortgage-backed 81,222 197 (a0i)
$ ., 99,231 5 203 S (534}
Decemnber 31, 2005
Government-sponsored enterprises | 5 32,079 . - $ . (263)
State and municipal 5,361 i (39)
Mortgage-backed 34,525 M (391)
5 71,965 $ .32 0§ (693)

The sales of securities available for sale for years ended December 31 were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Proceeds $ 16,657 $ 10130  $ 3,014
Gross gains ' ' ' 2 - 8
" Gross losses . (163) (80) @7

The tax benefit related to these net realized losses was $62,000, $30,000 and $15,000,
respectively.

The fair value of debt securities segregated by contractual maturity as of December 31, 2006, is
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or property penalties.
Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown
separately.

The net loss on available for sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2006, was due to the
recognition of an impairment loss on certain FHLB debt securities held at the end of the first
quarter of 2006 for $177,000. The impairment loss was estimated based on the difference
between the original cost of the securities and their estimated fair value as March 31, 2006. The
securities were sold during the second quarter for an actual loss of $163,000 and the loss
recorded at the time the securities were identified for disposal was adjusted to the actual loss at
the time of the sale. The securities disposed of had an original purchase cost of $16.0 million and
a weighted average yield of 3.84%. They were identified for disposal in an effort to improve the
Company’s net interest margin. During the second quarter of 2006 the Company purchased a
like amount of securities with a weighted average interest rate of 5.77%.
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued) i

, 2006
(D(?llars in Thousands)

i

Due in one year or less . : % 6,735

- Due from one to five vears . T - 5,365
Due from five to ten vears s ‘ 909
Due after ten years . ) _ X 5,000
Mortgage-backed ' . : .. i 81,222
Total B s 993

Securities pledged at year-end 2006 had a carrying value of $37.8 million. $7.0 million was
pledged to secure public funds, and $30.9 million was pledged ‘as collateral for borrowings.
Securities pledged at year-end 2005 had a carrying value of $6.3 million and were pledged to
secure public funds. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were no holdings of securities of any
one issuer, other than the U. S. Government-sponsored enterprises, in an amount greater than
10% of equlty

Securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that mdw:dual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position are as follows:

- '
L}
. . (Dollars in Thousands)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More ' Total

Fair Uinrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss - . Value Loss
Government-sponsored
enterprises $ 6,379 3 14 5 2,869 S (100) S 9,248 5 (114
State and municipal 550 3) 1,179 (16} 1,729 (19)
Mortgage-backed 36,063 T e 14,455 (209) ' 50,518 (401
Total temporarily impaired 3 42,992 3 {209 S 18,503 S {325) $ 61,495 ] (534)
2005 :
Government-: qponsored
enterprises $ 19,557 -§ (118) $ 10,82t $ {145) 5 30,378 3 (263)
State and municipal ‘ 1.879 . (11 2928 (28) 4,807 {39)
Mortgage-backed 18,283 (228) 8,525 (163) 26,808 (391
Total temporarily impaired ] g 5 {357} $. - 22274 5 (536) 5 61,993 5 (693}

The Company evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment, at least on a quarterly basis,
and more frequently when economic or market concerns -warrant such evaluation. . Consideration is
given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the intent and ability of the Company to retain
its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair
value. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition, the Company may consider whether the securities
are issued by the federal government or one of its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating
agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer's financial condition.

I
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NOTE 3 - REAL ESTATE MORTGAGES HELD FOR SALE ' ‘ o

Real estate mortgages held for sale are comprised entirely of loans secured by one- to four-
family residential residences. Substantially all of the balance outstanding at December 31, 2006,
is composed of individual residential mortgage loans assigned to the Company in connection
with a mortgage broker loan agreement entered into during 2006, Under the terms of this loan
agreement, the Company provides funds to the mortgage broker for individual mortgage loan
closings. In exchange the Company accepts an assignment of the individual mortgage loan
pending its sale to various third-party investors as arranged by the mortgage broker. Upon
acceptance for purchase by the third-party investors, the loan agreement requires the Company
to reassign the loan back to the mortgage broker at par, for completion of the third-party sale.
The Company receives interest income upon the sale of these loans for the period of the
assignment. As of December 31, 2006, the weighted average number of days outstanding of real
estate mortgages held for sale was 20 days ' ‘

' . ' . O

'NOTE 4 - LOANS, NET |

k]

Loans at December 31 are summaiized as follows: = = ' R

T

As of December 31, ‘ Increase (decrease)
- % of total .. % of total . v .
2006 loans 2005 loans _ Dollars . Percentage
Real estate loans: {Dollars In Thousands)
One-to-four family $ 334,000 521% $ 324,681 559% $ 9319 2.9%
Commercial ' 60912 95% 59,074 10.2% 1,838 3.1%
Other { Land & Multifamily) - : 34,446 5.4% 20,302 35% 14,144 69.7%
Total real estate loans ' 429,358 67.0% 404,057 69.5% 25,301 6.3%
Real estate construction loans: S
Construction-one-to-four family 32,467 5.1% 24,243 . 4.2% 8,224 33.9%
Construction-commercial 2,862 - 04% 2,577 0.4% 285 11.1%
. Acquisition & Development . 2,103 0.3% - 0.0% 2,103 -
Total real estate construction loans 37,432 5.8% 26,820 4.6% 10,612 39.6%
Other loans; . . ]
Home equity 91,062 14.2% 79,016 13.6% 12,046 15.2%
Consumer  * . 63,630 L 99% .- 62,846 10.8% 784 1.2%
Commercial 19,044 3.0% 8,430 1.5% 10,614 125.9%
Total other loans 173,736 27.1% 150,292 259% - 23,444 15.6%
. Total loans X . 640,526 . 100% 581,169 100% 59,357 . 102%
Allowance for loan loéses - - (4,705)  ° S (4,587) ST (118 T 26%:
" Net deferred loan (fees) costs - 3,348 Co 3,164 AT 184 ©5.8%
Premiums on purchased loans, - MB : 695 - t (347) -49.9%
ot ' ’ ' P o, . . . : )
-Loans, net . _ ‘ $ 639,517 . $ 580441 $ 59,076 - 10.2%

' L . . . - ' b + . ! | ]
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NOTE 2 - LOANS, NET (continued) : .t

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows: o=

Years:Ended December 31,

. - (Dol|lars in Thousands) P

o 2006 . 2005 - 2004
Beginning balance . : ' $ 4,587 $ o 3,93§ T 6,593
Provision for loan losses ‘ < 475 2121 0t 297
Loans charged-off - ’ ! {1,215) (2.326) .o (6,420)
Recoveries o . 858 ' 836 ) . 808
Ending balance - ) ‘ ) 4,705 . $ - 4,587 $ 3,956

The charge-offs in 2004 include ‘a $4 million charge-off on one lénding relationship that- was
previously classified as an impaired loan. During the first quarter of 2004, the operations of the
borrower ceased when key business permits necessary for the borrower to conduct ongoing
operations were revoked by the municipality where the borrower operated.. Accordingly,
management recorded additional provision for loan losses on this lending relationship in the
first quarter of 2004 as well as the $4 million charge-off. During 2005 an additional $605,000 of
the loan relationship was charged-off, leaving a balance of $55,000.: This balance was pald off in
December 2005 and no amount -was/outstanding at December 31, 2005. :

Impaired loans as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

: . ‘ oo : S | (Dollars in Thousands):
o v . o 2006 - 2005

Year-end loans with no allocated allowa_hce for loan losses . . ) 798 .8 1,361
Year-end loans with all allocated allowance for loan losses, . ! 1,206 : 3,122

Total $ 2,004 $ 4,483

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated to ,‘l | ' . ' L
impaired loans ‘ $ 458 .8 T 994

Years Enﬁed December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands)

» 2006 ' 2005 0 2004
Average of impaired loans during the period $ 3,798 $ 5929 $ 7,018
Interest income recognized during impairment - ’ - ' -
Cash-basis interest income recognized - : - C 11

Nonperforming loans at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $3.1 million, $2.6 million and
$6.7 million, respectively. There were no loans over 90 days past-due and still accruing interest
as of the end of 2006, 2005 or 2004. Nonperforming loans include both smaller balance
homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually classified as
impaired loans. For 2006 and 2005 contractual gross interest income of $90,000 and $149,000
would have been recorded on non-performing loans if those loans had been current. Actual
interest recorded on such loans was 566,000 in 2006 and $6,000 in 2005.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS, NET (continued)

Included in nonperforming loans is a pool of small equipment and automobile leases the
Company purchased in 2001. The balance of the leases, net of the allowance for loan and lease
losses allocated, was $623,000 and $634,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. During 2005 the
Company signed a settiement agreement with the bankruptcy trustee of the seller, which led to
the receipt of $297,000 in lease paymenits that were being held by the trustee. This payment,
along with approximately $11,000 in 2006 and $9,000 in 2005, was applied to the principal
balance outstanding. The leases are backed by surety bonds and the Company has filed a claim
with the insurance company for approximately $1.7 million plus interest, which represents the
balance of the leases at the time regular payments ceased in late 2001 less amounts received in
2005 and 2006. The insurance company has denied the claim, alleging the seller of the leases
engaged in fraudulent lending activities. The Company, along with numerous ather creditors
who purchased the leases, has pursued collection of its claim by filing a lawsuit against the
insurance company. Legal costs incurred in association with-the collection of the leases were
$212,000 and, $335,000 for 2006 and 2005 and are recorded in outside professional services in the
consolidated statements of income.

The previous charge-offs on these leases and the current level of allowance for loan losses
allocation for the remaining balance of these leases are indicative of the Company's best
estimate of the probable losses incurred, based on consultation with legal counsel. Management
continues to vigorously pursue collection on the surety bonds, including the $623,000 ($773,000
remaining balance less $150,000 allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses} net
amount included in the Company's financial statements as of December 31, 2006. The Company
believes there is a possibility that no amount will be collected in the future; therefore, the
Company may incur additional losses up to the $623,000. Collection of the full $1.7 million
claim may also occur, although this is not considered likely as the Company likely will need to
settle at some lower amount, and may not collect any amount.

The Company has originated loans with directors and executive officers and their associates.
These loans totaled approximately $3.0 million and $3.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
The activity on these loans for 2006 was as follows:

{Dollars in Thousands)

Beginning balance . $ 3,190
New loans . 140
Effect of changes in related parties _ 172
Repayments (490)
Ending balance $ 3012
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NOTE 5 - ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable at December 31 is summarized as follo“;s:

- ' 1_ . {Dollars in Thousands)
' Q2006 . - 2005
Loans . $ 2,836 - b 2,214
Securities available for sale 549 f 426
FHLB stock dividend - . 114 82
" Total $ 3,499 ' $ 2,722

'NOTE6 - LAND, PREMISES, AND EQUIPMENT, NET |
Land, premises, and equipment, net at December 31 are summarized as follows:

! (Dollars in Thousands)

: 2006 -2005

Land $ b7731 $ 7,703
Buildings and leasehold improvements : 10,874 9,786
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment . o 8116 e 7,205
Building and equipment in process ‘ 2,051 181

) o 28,772 24,875
Accumulated depreciation and amortization {11,162) (10,390)

T

Land, premises and equipment, net $ + 17,610 $ 14,485

Depreciation expense was $1.2 mllllon, $1.0 million and $1.1 mllhon for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. \

NOTE 7 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS °
Goodwill ‘ !
The change in balance for goodwill during the periods ending December 31 is as follows:

]

L. 2006 . . 2005 -

f. . i
: - : . . o ., (Dollars in Thousands)
Beginning of period. - . . ..o 8. 26l $ 2661,
Increases in goodwill ' o ) o - R
End of period I , $ 2,661 $ 2661

The Company determined that goodwill was not 1mpa1red durmg the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005. . i
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NOTE 7 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

¥

Core Deposit Intangible Assets

Core deposit intangible assets included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005
: (Dollars in Thousands)
. . Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated . Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
- Amortized intangible assets:
Core deposit intangibles v 8 611 $ - (384), $ 611, § . (303) .

Aggregate, amortlzatlon expense was $81,000, $83,000 and $82,000 for the years 2006, 2005 and
2004. :

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years ending December 31:

{Daollars in Thousands)

- 2007 . $ 44
2008 38
2009 . 35
20010 34

2011, » , 32

The goodwill and intangible assets discussed above resulted from the following branch
acquisitions:

Summary of Branch Acqulsltmns

During 2003 and 2002 the Company purchased three branch ofﬁce fac111t1es and assumed the
related deposits from two separate financial institutions. Collectively, the Company acquired
approximately $36.3 million in deposits, $11.9 million in loans, $2.3 million in fixed assets,
$68,000 in other liabilities and $18.7 million in cash. In the aggregate, the transactions resulted
in amortizable intangibles and non-amortizable goodwill in the amount of $3.2 million. The
core deposit intangibles of approx1mately $611,000 are being amortized to expense over 10 years
using an accelerated method.
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NOTE 8 - DEPOSITS P P A B

Time deposits of $100,000 or more were approximately $131.7 million and $105.3 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Deposit balances over $100,000 are not federally insured.

Scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

(Dollars in Thousands)
2007 _ $ 234,036
2008 . 47,011
2000 - 27,159
010 .. . o 8767 - J
2011 3 , . 6,654,

L% 323,627

0

Brokered certificate of dep051ts were $39 4 m1]110n and $32 7 mllllon at December 31, 2006 and
2005. S N i G

Deposits from directors, executive officers. and .their associates at Décember 31, 2006-and 2005
were approx1mate1y $967,000 and 3911, 00[)

S| | S R 1

)
Interest expense on customer clep051t accounts is'summarized as follows:

(Dollare in Thousands)

v I ) * 2006 e v '-2005 © 2004
Interest bearing : : o 8 '!]_,572 S8y 1307 0 8- 254
Savings & money market - C 3,293 Y 1,675 0 - 1,313 -

Time ; 13,583 P 9186 6,617
$ 18448 $ 12,168 $ 8,184

NOTE 9 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At year-end, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta were as follows:
N C :
ST A 2006 T 2005
: (Dollars in Thousands)
Maturities March 2007 through December 2016, flxed at rates from- o

+ . 4.37% to 5.60%, averaging 5.10% - , ;- E -8 114,000 $ 104,000
Maturities February 2007 through ]anuary 2014, vanable rate at rates N )

from 3.46% to 5.87%, averaging 4.51% - . y i 30,000 25,000
Total . o . . o " S 144000  $ 129,000

-
Fixed-rate advances includes amounts which may be converted by the FHLB, at various
designated dates following issuance, from fixed-rate to variable-rate debt, or for certain
advances, adjusted to current market fixed rates. If the FHLB converts the rates the Company
has the option of pre-paying the debt, without penalty. At year-end 2006 and 2005, the amounts

of convertible advances were $99.0 million and $84.0 million.
|
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NOTE 9 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES (continued})

The advances at December 31, 2006 mature as follows:

(Do[laré in Thousands) -

2007 $ 12,000

2008 e 3,000

2009 5,000

2010 24,000

2011 10,000
Thereafter 90,000
$ 144,000

The Company has a borrowing capacity of 30% of total bank assets with the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Atlanta. The Company had mortgage and home equity loans totaling approximately
$433.4 million and $391.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005 pledged as collateral for the
FHLB advances. At December 31, 2006, the remaining borrowing capacity was $106.5 million.
At December 31, 2006 and 2005 Atlantic Coast owned $7.9 miilion and $7.1 million of FHLB
stock, which also secures debts to the FHLB.

NOTE 10 - SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase with a carrying amount of $29.0 million at
December 31, 2006 are secured by mortgage backed securities. There were no similar balances
at December 31, 2005. '

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements that mature within
ten years. At maturity, the securities underlying the agreements are returned to the Company.
Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase is summarized as
follows: ' '

2006

. - - . _ (DoMars in Thousands)
Average daily balance during the year ‘ 5 13,951
Average interest rate during the year 4.49%
Maximum month-end balance during the years . ; $ 29,000
' 4.45%

Weighted average interest rate at year-end

NOTE 11 - INTEREST RATE SWAPS

The Company utilizes interest rate swap agreements as part of.its asset liability management
strategy to help manage its interest rate risk position by mitigating the impact of significant
unexpected fluctuations in earnings caused by interest rate volatility or changes in the yield
curve. The notional amount of the interest rate swaps does not represent-amounts exchanged by
the parties. The amount exchanged is determined by reference to the notional amount and the
other terms of the individual interest rate swap agreements.
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NOTE 11 - INTEREST RATE SWAPS (continued) . : g

Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges

During 2004, the Company entered into two interest rate swaps agreements with notional
amounts totaling $10 million as of December 31, 2006, to offset the risk of changing rates
associated with two of its Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB”) advances. These interest swaps
were designated as cash flow hedges, and were determined to be fully effective during 2006,
2005 and 2004. As such, no amount of ineffectiveness has, been included in net income.
Therefore, the aggregate fair value of the swaps is recorded in other assets with changes in fair
value recorded in other comprehensive income (loss). Prospective changes in value of the
interest rate swaps would be recorded in earnings if the hedge were to no longer be considered
effective or if the hedging relationship was- de-designated. ~The amount included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) would be reclassified to current earnings
should the FHLB advance that is being hedged be repaid. "The Company expects the hedges to
remain fully effective during the remaining terms of the swaps. -

Summary information about the mterest-rate swaps designated as cash f]ow hedges as of year -
end is as follows -

v : : . 2006 ‘ ) 2005
, . ' N ‘ {Dollars in‘Thousands)
Notional amounts ’ $10,000 . $15,000
Weighted average pay rates (fixed) : ) 343% 342%
Weighted average receive rates (3 month LIBOR) 5.38% | C 4.23%
Weighted average maturity 7.3 years ' 8.1 years
Unrealized gains . i ) $ 668 . . 5702

Interest income (expense) recorded on ‘these swap transactlons totaled $193,000, $16,000 and
$(324,000) during 2006, 2005 and 2004 and is reported as a component of interest expense on
FHLB advances. i

During the second quarter of 2006, in connection with its asset liability strategies, the Company
terminated, prior to its contractual maturity, an interest rate swap agreement with'a $5.0 million
notional value. Upon termination of the interest rate swap agreement, the Company also repard
the associated FHLB advance, with no early termination fees. The corresponding $208,000 gain
on the interest rate swap was transferred from accumulated other comprehensrve income to
other noninterest income upon repayment of the FHLB advance:!

At December 31, 2006 based on current rates, the Compahy expeCted $193,000 of the unrealized
gain to be reclassified to earnings as a reduction of interest expense during 2007.

-

Other interest rate swaps . o Ceroa

During the third quarter of 2005, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements
with a combined notional amount of $10.0 million. One of these agreements having a notional
amount of $5.0 million matured in the third quarter.of 2006. The Company entered these swaps
as part of a strategy to economically hedge the variable portion of the home equity portfolio
against the possibility of declining interest rates. These interest rate swap agreements do not
qualify for hedge accounting treatment, and therefore, changes int market value are reported in
current period earnings.
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NOTE 11 - INTEREST RATE SWAPS (continued) * Lo

Summary information about these interest-rate;swaps not designated as cash flow hedges as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, is as follows:
[ T i ‘ e Tt T

UL o e . T e 2006 S ‘ 2005

PR Y

- L S , (Dellars in Thousands) .
: Nohonal amounts e ' ' R . $5,000 L $10,000
Welghted average pay rates (Prlme) 0 “82% 6.79%
Weighted average réceive rates (fixed)' R " 7.15% o c O 707% )
Weighted average maturlty S 0.7years -’ et 1.1 years ¢
- Fair Market Value ', ;. -+ i = S $(3]) - - X $(35)

The fair value of these mterest rate swap agreements 1s reﬂected in other liabilities w1th a
correspondmg credit of $24, 000 in 2006 and a charge of $55, 000 in 2005 to income recorded as a
component of other non- mterest mcome :

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined Contrlbutlon Plan: Company employees, meetmg certain age and length of service
requirements, may participate in a 401(k) plan sponsored by the Company. Plan participants
may contribute between 1% and 75% of gross income, subject to an IRS maximum of $15,000,
with a company match of up to 5% For 2006, 2005 and 2004, the total plan expense was

$306,000, $209,000 and $268,000.

Director Retirement Plan: A director retirement plan covers all non-employee members of the
Board. The plan provides monthly benefits for a perlod of ten years following retirement. For
2006, 2005 and 2004, the expense for the 'plan was $33,000,"$131,000, and $42,000. The related
plan liability was $178,000 and $146,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Deferred Director Fee Plan: A deferred director fee compensation plan covers all non-employee
directors. Under the plan directors may defer director fees. These fees are expensed as earned
and the plan accumulates the fees plus eammgs At December 31, 2(}06 and 2005, the liability
for the plan was $250, 000 and $157,000.

1 ' ! 2
Supplemental Retirement Plans:_ The_Company provides. supplemental retirement plans for

certain officers beginning after one year of service. These plans generally provide for the

payment of supplemental retirement benefits over a period of fifteen (15) to twenty (20) years
after retirement. Vesting generally occurs over a six (6) to ten (10)-year period. For 2006, 2005
and 2004, expense for the supplemental retirement plans totaled $585,000, $235,000 and
$230,000. The accrued liability for the plans totaled $1,378,000 and $793,000 at December 31,
2006 and 2005.
Split Dollar Life insurance agreémént: The Comipany éntered into a Split‘Dollar Life insurance
agreement with certain executive officers during 2006 recogmzmg an expense for the year of
$15 000. The related hablhty was $15, 000 at December 31, 2(}06 o

]
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NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE STCCK OWNERSHIPPLAN -~ "~ , =~ <

In connection with the minority stock offering, the Company established an Employee Stock
Ownership Plan ("ESOP").for the benefit of its employees with an effective date of January 1,
2004. The ESOP purchased 465,520:shares of common stock from the minority stock offering
with proceeds from a ten-year note in.the amount of $4,655,000 from the Company. The
Company's Board of Directors determines the amount of contribution to the ESOP annually but
is required to make contributions sufficient to service the ESOP's debt. Shares are released for
allocation to employees as the ESOP debt is repaid. Eligible employees receive an allocation of
released shares at the end of the calendar year on a relative compensation basis. An employee
~ becomes eligible on January1st or. July 1st immediately following the date they complete one
year of service. Company dividends on allocated shares will-be paid to employee accounts.
Dividends on unallocated shares held by the ESOP will be applied to the ESOP note payable.

Contributions 'to the ESOP were $625,000, $580;000 and $568,000 during 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Contributions include approxnmate]y $142,000 and’ $75;000 in d1v1dends on unearned shares in
2006 and 2005. = ‘ R ! '

Compensation expense for shares committed to be released under the Company's ESOP was
$755,000, $613,000 and $624,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004. Shares held by the ESOP as of
December 31 were as follows:

. = . . . . -V ‘

{Dollars in Thousands)

. 2006 2005
Allocated to eligible employees 139,656 93,104
" Unearned 325864 372,416
Total ESOP shares 465,520 465,520
o .
Fair value of unearned shares $ 5,941 $ 5,236

i
.

NOTE 14- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION =~ -

In 2005 the Company’s stockholders approved the’ estabhshment of both the Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation 2005 Recognition and Retention Plan (the ”Recogmtlon Plan”), and the
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation 2005 Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Plan”). The
compensation cost that has been charged against income for the'Recognition Plan for 2006 and
2005 was $595,000 and $289,000. The compensation cost that has been charged agamst income
for the Stock Option Plan for 2006 and 2005 was $308,000 and $110,000. The' total income tax
benefit recognized in the income statement for stock-based compensatlon for 2006 and 2005 was
$287,000 and $76,000. e IR "

b

'
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NOTE 14- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The Recognition Plan e :

The Recognition Plan permits the Company’s board of directors to award up to 285,131 shares
of its common stock to directors and key employees designated by the board. Under the terms
of the Recognition Plan, awarded shares are restricted as to transferability and may not be sold,
assigned, or transferred prior to vesting. Awarded shares vest at a rate of 20% of the initially
awarded amount per year, beginning on the first anniversary date of the award, and are
contingent upon continuous 'service by the recipient through the vesting date. Any awarded
shares which are forfeited, are returned to the Company to be re-awarded fo another recipient.
The Recognition Plan became effective on July 1, 2005 and remains in effect for the earlier of 10
years from the effective date, or the date on which all shares of common stock available for
award have vested. " :

During 2006 the- Company’s board of directors awarded 29,818 shares of common stock
available under the Recognition Plan to directors and key émployees. The restricted shares
awarded during 2006 had a grant date fair value of $523,000. A summary of the status of the
shares of the Recognition Plan at December 31, 2006, is presented below:

Wighted-Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2006 258,469 g 12.31
Granted 29,856 18.13
Vested (51,686) 12.31
Forfeited : (3.194) 12.30
Non-vested at December 31, 2006 233,445 $ 12.84

The weighted average grant-date fair value of non-vested shares was $12.84 and $12.31 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. There was $2.3 million and $2.9 million of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to non-vested shares awarded under the Recognition Plan at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. The expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 3.7 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended
December.31, 2006 was $1.7 million no shares vested during 2005.

The Stock Option Plan ,

The Stock Option Plan permits the Company’s board of directors to grant options to purchase
up to 712,827 shares of its common stock to the Company’s directors and key employees. Under
the terms of the Stock Option Plan, granted stock options have a contractual term of 10 years
from the date of grant, with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Key employees are eligible to receive incentive stock
options or non-qualified stock options, while outside directors are eligible for non-statutory
stock options only. The Stock Option Plan also permits the Company’s board of directors to
issue key employees, simultaneous with the issuance of stock options, an equal number of
Limited Stock Appreciation Rights (The Limited SAR). The Limited SAR are exercisable only
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NOTE 14- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued) -

upon a change of control and, if éxercised, reduce one-for-one the recipient’s related stock
option grants. Under the terms of the Stock Option Plan, granted stock options vest at a rate of
20% of the initially granted amount per year, beginning on the first anniversary date of the
grant, and are contingent upon continuous service by the recipient through the vesting date.
Accelerated vesting occurs if there is a change in control. The Stock Option Plan became
effective on July 28, 2005 and terminates upon the earlier of 10 years after the effective date, or
the date on which the exercise of Ophons or related rights equaling the maximum number of
- shares occurs. . : : : S
During 2006 the Company’s board of directors awarded 50,613 'incentive stock options to key
employees with a weighted-average exercise price of $17.85. The weighted-average fair value of
each stock option awarded is estimated to be $3.45 on the date of grant, and is derived by using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2006 2005

Risk-free interest rate o ‘ 4.60% to 5.10% © - 4.07% to 4.30%
Expected term of stock options (years) 6.0 6.0
Expected stock price volatility | ‘ : .21.84% to 23. 24% . 23.79%
Expected dividends 3.12% to 3.64% 2.65%

The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield available on US. Treasury zero-coupon issues
with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the stock option. Although the contractual
term of the stock options granted is 10 years, the expected term of the stock is less because
option restrictions do not permit recipients to sell or hedge their options, and therefore, we
believe this may result in exercise of the options before the end of the contractual term. The
Company does not have sufficient historical information about its own employees or directors
vesting behavior, therefore the expected term of stock options is estimated considering the
results of similar companies. Also, since the Company did not begin trading its common stock
publicly until October 5, 2004, there was limited history about the volatility of its own shares.
Therefore the expected stock price volatility is estimated by con51der1ng its own stock volatility
for the period since October 5, 2004, as well as that of a sample of similar companies over the
expected term of the stock options. Expected dividend is the estimated dividend rate over the
expected term of the stock options.
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NOTE 14- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued),: . . Tt e
A sumimary of the option activity under the Stock Option Plar\ as of December 31, 2006, and -
changes for the year then ended is presented below: T o T
i st pooats b IV N . Yas R T i
. . » ‘ ol i, Weighted- .« | Ca
. Y -Weighted- " +Average. ¢« ,. _ Apgregate.
e I it o . ., Average | Remaining - , , Intrinsic-
. o, Coi s .. Exercise | ., ; Contractual ., Value
Options Shares Price Term ~_{in thousands)

Outsrtandi.ngat‘]gnuary_],200§, cos, ., q - 534400  $ . 1372 . s

A - 1 ’

Granted - 1 2 - .-
Exercised 1 ": _ (7,462) 1373 ., - L
b [P T S ) s . e
Forfeited i (19,500) . 13.73 -
. Y] )'Ikl—._' e i b riv . . 4 PR Y]
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 558,051 $  14.09 ' 87 8 2,308
Exercisable at December 31,2006 -~ .106880 $  13.72 86 « § 482

Information related to the stock‘option plan during each year follows:

2006 . 2005 2004

Intrinsic.value of '()ptiori‘s exercised b o g 29,000 S - S
' 'Cash'received from option exercises : 102,000 - -

* . Tax benefit realized from option exercises S - L. ; -

Wexghtecl average fair va]ue of options granted: $+. 345 % 315 - - -

' S s ¥ - ' s ‘

The Company-has a policy of satlsfymg share optlon exercises by issuing shares from Treasury
Stock obtained from its stock repurchase programs. ..

A,
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NOTE 15 - INCOME TAXES . - R el TRLL D e e

} + - -
Income tax expense was as follows: i L e , B L e ,
. | .
P b ' Years Ended December 31,
. T ' (Dollars in Thousands) '
oL S , 2006 ' 2005 2004
Current , o : 8 3,083 $ 2106- ‘% T 771 !
"' Deferred n : (690) C o)t v o
i . - ] N -
L P 1y T 1 e i .
Total . . $ 2,393 $ ! 1,083 $ .+ 1755

:.' B [

' The effective tax rate differs from the statutory federal income tax rateas follows: " |
. * M

v ey, -
o : SRR Years Ended December 31,
te - {Dollars in Thousands)
' 2006 2005 - 2004
Income taxes at Current : I R
i Statutory rate of 34% : $ 2,565+ <F 1963 <G 1,682
" Increase{decrease) from - ' : o Lm":' -
' State income tax, net of Federal tax effect (24) . — 83:'“ S 149
Tax-exempt income _ : (19) o "'(47)' P M (70)
.+~ . [Increase in cash su.rrender value of BOLI - {286) | (205) L (59
- - LESOP share release - - ' 87 1. 50 ) 54
o Stock option expense - o . 26 ..o -
| =+ 3T Ohiek, net T : @) . (792) W
Income tax expense ' $ . 2,393 ! $ -1,083 5 1,755
WL e e | e e
Effective tax rate _ . - 5 31. 7:% i S ;IB:B‘:/B_ . 35'.5'%
- : PR S g R T

Other in 2005 1nc1udes a benefit of $895,000 for the reversal ofla contingency reserve for the
same amount The reserve had been estabhshed by the Company in 2000 upon becommg a
taxable entlty ‘and reflected the tax ‘effect of a fax accountmg ‘method’ utlhzed by the Company in
2000° and 2001 calendar tax’ years "The Company believed the f1]1ng posmon was supportable
based upon a reasonable mterpretatlon of federal 1ncome tax laws ‘and, the underlymg
regulatlons However due to the’ lack of prlor rulmgs on 51m11ar ‘fact patterns, it was unknown
whether‘the accountmg method would be sustamed upon audlt by elther federal or state tax
author:tles The appllcable statue of hmltatlons explred with respect to the 2001 tax year on
September 15, 2005, makmg the contmgency reserve unnecessary' ot

. ot N k
RNCCRR T | AR ST . PR PR B S R TN .. LS L VR B T R

. . i 1 v Kl . .
N S D T TR A ST IS AU P L raodllt
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NOTE 15 - INCOME TAXES (continued) S L AP D

Lo L. q
L PRI | P a -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following:

December 31,

T e {Dollars in Thousands)
R Co R 2006 . 2005 -
Deferred tax assets: R - .
Allowance for loan losses P ' $ 1,356 $ ..., 99
- Depreciation -- R - T - 483 557
Deferred compensation arrangements 906 o, 572
_Other real estate, ‘,_:'._,_ \ i A 71 bl 1
‘Organizational costs ' : 8 16
Net unrealized losses on securities ' 127 252
Interest income on non-accrual loans _ L 1B Y .10
Accrued expenses : "f“'.r" R (1 B ©t 88
Deferred loan fees _ : 26 ' -
o T ' $. 3,094 $ 2,485
-Deferred tax l1ab111ty o oo o IR, ‘
Net unrealized gain on interest rate swaps (254).5 Lo e ar (206)
Deferred loan costs . (516). .. v . . (B21)
.« Prepaid expenses S [ ¢ 1)) ' o opeb :.« (179)
Core deposit intangibles: ' . ' (203) . ' , {151)
. Other ‘ , L - e @), (18)
+ Al :'_ ] 4 | IR ‘—__'_W“ . ‘—F-W
Net deterred tax asset t $ 1927 St T 1,350
e YL, o e - o S
R S

No ‘valuation allowance was prov1ded on deferred tax assets as of December 31 2006 and 2005.

NOTE 16 - REGULATORY MATTERS

‘) | CE . '
Atlant1c Coast Bank 1s sub]ect to regulatory cap1tal requlrements admuustered by federal
bankmg agenc1es Capltal adequaq gu1dehnes and ’prompt correctlve aE’hon regulatlons :
mvolve quantltatwe measures of assets, 11ab1l1t1es, and certam off-balance-sheet 1tems calculated
under regulatory accountmg prachces Cap1tal amounts and classrflcatlons are also sub]ect to
quahtatwe ]udgments by regulators about components, l‘lSl( welghtmgs and other factors and
the regulators can lower class1f1cat1ons in certain cases. leure o meet vanous caprtal
requirements’ can’ initiate regulatory act1on that could have a d1rect mater1al effect an the
financial statements. The prompt correctwe act1on regulatlons prov1de for flve cla551f1cat1ons ‘
well capitalized, adequately cap1ta11zed undercapltahzed s1gruflcantly undercap1tal1zed "and
critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial
condition.
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NOTE 16 - REGULATORY MATTERS (continued) = e L.

|
i

' . . ' ,
Atlantic Coast Bank actual and required capital levels (in millions) and ratios were:

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action
. Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2006 i
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 818 13.9% $ 472 8.0% $590°  100%
Tier 11{core) capital (to risk welghted o -
assets) 771 131% 236 ° 4.0% 354 6.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total .o T,
assets) . 771 9.2% 334 4.0% 41.7 5.0%
L | .
As of December 31, 2005 ;
Total capital {to risk weighted assets) $ 772 15.9% 5390 - 8.0% $ 487 10.0%
Tier 1 {core) capital {to risk weighted .
assets) ) ) ' 729 15.0% 19.5 4.0% 29.2 6.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total c
assets) 729 10.0% ‘ 29.2 4.0% _ 365 5.0%
' . . ’ :

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, Atlantic Coast Bank was classified as "well
capltallzed " There are no conditions or events since December 31 2006 that management
believes have changed the classification.

The Qualified Thrift Lender test requires at least 65% of assets be maintained in housing-related
finance and other specified areas. 'If this test is not met, limits are placed on growth, branching,
new investments, FHLB advances, and dividends, or Atlantic Coast Bank must convert to a
commercial bank charter. Management believes this test is met. ,

Banking regulations limit capital distributions by savings associations. Generally,. capital
distributions are limited to undistributed net income for the current and prior two years.
During 2007, Atlantic Coast Bank could, without prior approval, declare dividends of
approximately $10.1 million, plus any 2007 net proflts retamed to the date.of the dividend
declaration. :

‘ R -
'
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended.December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 16 - REGULATORY MATTERS (continued) SR EER
The following is a reconciliation of Atlantic Coast Bank's equity under accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America to regulatory capital as of December 31, 2006
and 2005:

. {Doliars in Thousands}
: R o 2006 2005
GAAP equity T A $ 80110  § 76029
Intangible assets | . . . (2,888) (2,969)
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale _ 117 251
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges it S (414) (435)
Minarity interest in includable consolidated : ‘ o
subsidiaries including REIT = e 125 -
Tier 1 Capital 77,050 72,876
General allowance for loan and lease losses . . L. 4705 o, 4,351 '
Total capital - "% 81755 $ 77207

to 4

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Ini the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and
contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying .consolidated ‘financial
statements. ' ’
The principal commitments as of December 31 aré as follows: '

DA Ve I : S

1

" - o e oot e (DoHars in Thousands)
o 2006 2005
Undisbursed portion of loans closed $ 22,315 % 31,499

Unused lines of credit and commitrhents to fund loans - ' ' oo 77,025. « 73,344
. ol ' . p g Tyl T ! '
At December 31, 2006, the undisburséd - portion of lodns closed is'primarily unfunded
residential construction'loans with fixed and ‘variable rates-ranging-from 5.0% to 9.75%.. At
December 31, 2006, the unused lines of credit and commitments to fund loans were made up of
both fixed rate and variable rate commitments. The fixed rate commitments totaled $28.1
million and had interest rates that range from 4.5% to 18.0%; variable rate commitments totaled
$48.9 million and had interest rates that range from 4.55% to 11.5%. During 2005, the Company
entered into an agreement with a Florida mortgage broker that allows, but does not require, the
Company to purchase up to $50.0 million of residential construction loans. As of December 31,
2006 and 2005 approximately $16.3 million and $29.5 million was committed under this

agreement.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had fully secured outstanding standby letters
of credit commitments totaling $332,000 and $307,000.
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ATLANTIC-COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December,3T, 2006, 2005 and: 2004

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) *_ .4 Lo

Since certain commitments to make loans, provide lines of credit,!and. to fund: loans in process
expire without being used, the amount does not-necessarily represent future cash.commitments.
In addition, commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as-long as there
is no violation of any condition established in the contract. The exposure to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the other party to these financial insttuments is represented:-by the
contractual amount of these instruments. The Company follows the same credit policy to make
such’commitments as'is followed for those loans fécorded on the consolidited balarice sheet: -
The Company has employment agreements with its chief executive officer ("CEO") and chief
financial officer (“CFO"). Under the terms of the agreements, certam events leadmg to
separation from the Company could result in cash payments equal to, two times the CEO's
salary and one and one-haif times,the CFO's base salary. Since Rayp"_lents_ a;e coptmgqnt upon
certain events, the Company accrues for rio liability. N AP T
' 1 ' PERERE
The Company maintains lines of credit with two financial instititions that.total $22.5 million.
There was no balance outstanding with either line as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
[

NOTE 18 - EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE o\ ,.' ...,"

| .
0 LI LV PR AR L N

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic: and diluted-earnings per
commén share computatlon for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and‘ 2004 is as follows:

_— .- . B - v NN

' ‘ X 2006 2005 - F - v 2004
Basic
Net income . ) - % 5152 . 4%~ ., 4,689 . % 3,192
.Welghted average common shares outstandmg ‘ 14,036,595 14,548,723 10,127,604
Less: Average unallocated ESOP shares (372,288 (418,840) (111,801}
* Average unvested restricted stock ?wgrds N (237,283) L e(130.297), . e -
P . d " o 1. P D :.: et o Tor ."',_\".‘ . . oo e L
Average Shares | . r 13,427,024 : 13,999,586 ' 10,015,803
Basic earnings per common share : 5 0.38 5 0.34 $ 0.32
Diluted
Net Income ' % 5,152 5 4,689 % 3,192
Weighted average common shares outstanding |
per commaon share 13,427,024 13,999,586 10,015,803
Add:Dilutive effects of assumed exercise of stock options . 25,695 - -
Dilutive effects of full vesting of stock awards 105,107 20,563 -
Average shares and dilutive potential common shares 13,557,826 14,020,149 10,015,803
Diluted earnings per common share . $ 038 § 033 % 0.32
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December:31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 18 - EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (continued)

Stock options for 69,969 and 534,400 shares of common stock were not considered in computing
diluted earnings per common share for 2006 and 2005 becau se they were anti-dilutive. There

were no potentially dilutive securities in 2004.

NOTE 19 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehenswe income components and. related taxes for 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as

follows:

Unrealized holding gair{s and (lossés)

on securities available for sale ' $ 493 (559) $ (217)
Less reclassification adjustments for (gams)

losses recognized in income : " (163) 80 38
Net unrealized gains and (losses) ' 330 479 (179)
Tax effect (126) 183 68
Net-of-tax amount . 204 (296) (111)
Change in fair value of derivatives used

for cash flow hedges ' 367 538 (143)-
Less reclassification adjustments for (gains)

losses recognized in income . . {401) - {16) 324
Net unrealized gains and (losses) . (34) 522 181
Tax effect 13 {198) (69)
Net-of-tax amount . (21) 324 112

Other comprehensive income b 183 28 3

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 accumulated other comprehensive income includes $414,000
and $436,000 of net unrealized gains related to the fair value of derivatives and $(204,000) and
$(409,000) related to net unrealized (losses) on securities available for sale.
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
“Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . | . .~ st

Carrying amount and estimated fair value of financial instruments at year end were as follows:

T .
. , : {Dollars in Thousands)
; 2006 ! 2005

: Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
' Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS SRE j
Cash and cash equivalents W $ 41,057 $ 41,057 $ 37959 $ 37,959
Other interest-bearing deposits
in other financial institutions ‘ 1,200 . . 1,200 1,800 1,800
Securities available for sale , 99,231 . 9'9,23“11 g 71,965, 71,965
.Real estate mortgages held for sale” 4,365 4,365. ] 100 101
Loans, net ' . 639,517 615558 ' 580,441 562,631
Federal Home Loan Bank stock . 7,548 7,948 o 7,074 7,074
Accrued interest receivable o 3,499 " 3499 272 2,722
Interest rate swaps B o 668 668 T2 702
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES L
Deposits - SRR 573,052 572,165 516,321 515,295
Securities sold under agrer_mcnt to repurchase 29,000 29,000 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 144,000 118,590 129,000 107,983
Accrued interest payable ' . 1,058 1,058 . 795 795

Interest rate swaps . 31 S 1 Fr © .55 55
The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows:

e . S ¢ (SR
Carrying amount is the éstimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, other interest-
bearing deposit in other financial institutions, securities purchased under agreements to resell,
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, accrued interest, demand and savings deposits and variable
rate loans or deposits that re-price frequently .and fully. Security fair values are based on
market prices or dealer qliotes, and if no such inf_ofmation is available, on the rate and term of
the security and information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans.or deposits and for variable
rate loans or deposits with infrequent re-pricing or re-pricing limits, fair value is based on
discounted cash flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk.
Fair value of debt is based on current rates for similar financing, The fair value of interest rate
swaps is baséd on quotes provided by the’issuers of the interest rate swaps, who are the only
permissible re-purchasers of the contracts. The- estimated fair value of other . financial
instruments and off-balance-sheet loan commitments appr0x1mate cost and are not considered
significant to this presentation. i
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 -

NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A et - 'ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION -

) CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
- e R -7 December 31, 2006 and 2005

{Dollars in Thousands) .

. : ‘ ‘ oo 2006 . 2005
Cash and cash equivalents at subsidiary $ 327 $ ' 1,343
' y Other interest bearing deposits at subsidiary - 1,200 1,800
. Securities available for sale o 7,522 10,283
o, Investment in subsidiary . gM10 ., 76,029
e Note receivable from ESOP . 3,409 3,770
Other assets ' : ) 2,944 629
\ :
Total assets ) $ 95512 $ 93,854
Borrowed funds l $ 3,268 .8 -
Accrued employee benefit costs’ 429 302,
Other accrued expenses 728 -635
Total stockholders'equity ’ , 91,087 92,917
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 95,512 $ 93,854
') R L ! x
) i LTI PUUEEE S ST 3 R v .. T Y I
co b T ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
'” . e ' - CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME "
o ' Yéars ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
. * St . P : - ' L R - »
“ ¥ 7 " (Dollars in Thousands)
2006 S 2005 T - 2004
i 1 Netinterest incomie ’ ' : 1t -7 671 + 8 866 $. - .123
“t " .Loss onsalé of sécurities - ", ¢ T @3 8 PRI
Other 23 RIS o8 o -
Equity in net income of subsidiary © 5,262 4,690 3,208
Total income ' 5,913 5476 3331
Total expense 761 787 139
Net income $ 5152 $ 4,689 5 3,192
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL/CORPORATION
‘CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended Décember315 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY-CONDENSED FINANGIAL INFORMATION - ¥

{continued)

2

.+ ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORFORATION
. CONDENSED STATEMENTS.OF CASHIFLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

T . o " i :I'.‘

- (Dollars in Thousaﬁld.s-)-,

2006 2005 0 2004
Cash flow from operating activities ‘. S - t
Net income $ 5,152 $ 4,689 $ 3,192
Adjustments: . . 3 . ‘
Loss on sale of securities : T +:43 80 . ... -
Net change in other assets .~ @ (664) 235+ - (766)
Net change in other liabilities e 73 (241) " 765
Share-based compensation expense 903 398 -
Dividends received from sub51d1ary 2195 - -
Equity in tindistributed earnings of sub51dlary "t (5,262) " (4,690) '(3,208)
Net cash from operatmg activities i 2,440 o 471 17
Cash ﬂow from 1nvesé1ng activities : KR L
Purchase of securities available for sale (2,449) . (9,000 (20,931)
Proceeds from maturities and repayments of . .' Lo ‘ '.' )
securities available for sale 2,280 9,840 -
Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale 3,000 9,473 -
Purchase of bank owned life insurance (1,695) - -
Payments received on ESOP loan 362 370 515
Dividends on unallocated ESOP shares (151) - -
Net change in other interest bearing deposits
at subsidiary 600 701 (2,501)
Capital contribution to subsidiary - - {28,195)
Net cash from investing activities 1,947 11,384 {51,112)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net
of issuance costs - - 51,664
Advances from Atlantic Coast Bank 3,618 - -
Issuance of restricted shares 101 - -
Treasury stock purchased (6,877) (9,603) -
Repayments of advances to Atlantic Coast Bank (350) - -
Dividends paid (1,895) (1,494) -
Net cash from financing activities (5.,403) (11,097) 51,664
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,016) 758 535
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,343 585 50
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 5 327 $ 1,343 $ 585
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ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 22 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Interest - Net Interest Net Earnings per Share
Income Income Income ' - Basic_ Diluted
2006
First quarter 3 10515 §% 5279 % 1,107 $ .08 $ .08
Second quarter 11,156 5,477 1,493 A1 11
Third quarter 12,006 5,608 1,636 12 12
Fourth quarter 12,730 5493 916 ® .07 07
2005
First quarter $ 8443 $ 4965 $ 782 $ 06 '$ .06 -
Second quarter 9,219 5,097 903 068 0603
Third quarter 9,407 4,823 19153 N 14
Fourth quarter 10,185 5,211 1,089 .08 .07

) The fourth quarter of 2006 was impacted by interest margin compressnon, an increased provnsnon for loan
losses, increased compensahon expense and increased outside consulting services.

{& The third quarter of 2005 includes the tax benefit of the elimination of a tax-related contmgent liability of
$895 as discussed in Note 13.

‘o The second quarter 2005 basic and diluted earnings per share were both pre\nously reported as $.07. They
have both been restated to $.06 due to rounding differences.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure ' r

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
‘ i

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation as of a
date within 90 days of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10K, the Registrant’s principal
executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14(¢) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) ) are effective to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is

recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in’ SEC rules
and forms.

v

(b) Changes in internal controls. There were no changes in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)) that ‘occurred during the year
ended December 31, 2006, that have materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over fmanmal reportmg :

[tem 9B. Other Information

. Not applicable.
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S R AT A o, PARTIII'“ T R e . K o

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 11. Executive Compensation.
.. Information in response to -this item is incorporated, by -reference to ‘Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
, XTI B B Ciat Troe . e . .
Item 12 Securlty Ownership. of Certain. Benef1c1al Owners: and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters. : - , .
_+ Information :in . response to this item is mcorporated by reference to Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Information.in .response to this item is incorporated by reference to Atlantic Coast
Federal Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Armual Meetmg of Stockholders..

Gy . LT v

Item 14 Prmc1pal Accountant Fees and Serv1ces e, : -

Information in response to this item is 1ncorporated by reference to Atlantlc Coast
Federal Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

R
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as a part of this report
1. Consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are set forth under Item 8 of this report on
Form 10-K.

2. Financial statement schedules.
The following information is filed as part of this Form 10-K and should be read
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
contained in ltem 8:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
All other schedules have been omitted because they were not applicable or

because the required information has been included in the consolidated financial
statements or notes thereto. '
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Exhibits

3.1 . Charter of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation )

3.2 -Bylaws of Atlantic Coast Féderal Corporation ! i e .
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporatron T
10.1  Employee Stock Ownership Plan !

10.2  Employment Agreenient with Robert J. Larison, Jr.'2

10.3 . Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement with Robert J. Larison, Jr.?

104  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan1 -

10.5 'Director Retirement Plan! : :

10.6  Director Fee Deferral Plan 1 '

10.7  Atlantic Coast Federal Corporatlon 2005 Stock Option Plan3 - i

10.8 -+ - Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation 2005 Recognition and Retention Plan 3 :
10.9  Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement with Robert J. Larison, Jr. 4 - s
10.10 Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement with Carl W, Insel 4

10.11  Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement with Jon C. Parker, Sr. 4

10.12 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement with Carl W. Insel 5+ .. .0+
10.13 Supplemental Executlve Retirement Agreement with ]on C Parker Sr 5"
10.14 Employment Agreement with Jon C. Parker, S1.6

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

231  Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company LLC '

311  Certification of Chief Executive Offlcer pursuant to Sectlon 302 of the Sarbanes- -Oxley

Actof2002 . .. .« :
312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Sechon 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act .
of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Offrcer and: Chief Fmancral Ofﬁcer pursuant to Sectron
_ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 : :

+
. .
' 4 L [ [

1 Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, and
any amendments thereto, originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 25, 2004 (Registration No. 333-113923).

2 Incorporated by reference to'the registrant’s Form 8-K-Current Report, originally filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2006.

'

3 Incorporated by reference to the reglstrant s Registration' Statement on Form S-8 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2005 (Reglstratlon No. 333-
126861). .

4 Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form 8-K-Current Report, originelly filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2006.

wn

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s Form 8-K/A-Current Report, originally
. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 25, 2007.

6 Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form 8-K-Current Report, originally filed
~with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2006.
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" SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

ATLANTIC COAST FEDERAL CORPORATION
Date: March 29, 2007 . "~ By: [s/ Robert]. Larison, Jr. -
' Robert J. Larison,.Jr.
President, Chlef Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed by the following persons on behaif of the registrant and in the capacxty and on the dates
indicated. : ' . ' .

By: /s/ Robert J. Larison, Jr. .." . By /s/ lon C. Parker, Sr.

Robert ]. Larison, Jr. - . JJonC Parker, Sr. ‘
President, Chief Executive Officerand , Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and
Director " Director .
Date: March 29, 2007 ‘ * Date: March 29, 2007
By:/s/ Thomas F. Beeckler By:/s/ Frederick D. Franklin, |r.
Thomas F. Beeckler*'. . : -« . Frederick D. Franklin, |r.
Director : Director
Date: March 29, 2007 Date: March 29, 2007
By:/s/ Charles E. Martin, [r. . By:/s/ W. Eric Palmer
Charles E. Martin, Jr. ] . W. Eric Palmer
Director ' ' Director
Date: March 29, 2007 Date: March 29,2007
-By'; /s/ Robert]. Smith - - By:/s/ Forrest W. Sweat, Ir. '
Robert J. Smith o, ‘Forrest W. Sweal, Jr.
Director Director
- Date: March 29, 2007 . Date: March 29, 2007

By:/s/ H. Dennis Woods
H. Dennis Woods
Director

Date; March 29, 2007
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Exhibit 21. Subsidiaries of Registrant

Name

Atlantic Coast Bank

First Community Financial
Services, Inc.

Atlantic Coast Holdings, Inc.

Coastal Properties, Inc.

T

“

Parent Company

Atlantic Coast Federal

Corporation

Atlantic Coast Bank

. A;(lantic Coaét Bank

Atlantic Coast Hbld_ings, Inc.

f S
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State of Incorporation

Federal
Georgia

Nevada

Maryland




Exhibit 23.1 Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company LLC . -~ . C

R TR PR L S R R

P - R, R

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ey YAoorLT BT | S A

. M hl -
- ; E o

Al - .'u .
oA B PR - . CE—

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-126861 on Form
S-8 pertaining to-the Atlantic Coast Federal Corpotation 2005 Stock Option-Plan and'the 2005 "

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation Recognition and Retention Plan of our report dated March

29, 2007 on the:con%olidated financial statéments of-Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation, which--

our report is included in Form 10-K for the Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation for the year

ended December 31, 2006.
@( C%A/m/ % Ll

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Brentwood, Tennessee
March 29, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1-Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act

of 2002

I, Robert ]. Larison, Jr. certify that: v - N

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report-on Form 10-K of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation;

b
Based on my knowledge, this report does ot contain.any untrue statement of a‘material fact or
omit to state a material fact-necessary’ to make the statements made, in light-of circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading w1th respect to the penod covered by

this report; ‘

* 'Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and ‘other financial.information included in

this report, fairly present in all material respect the financial condition, results' of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as'of, and for, the periods presented in this report; - = ¢

The registrant's other certifying officer and I:are responsible’ for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in'Exchange Act Rules 13a 15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for
the registrant and have: . .
L
‘a). Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
~ and procedures- to. be designed under our supervision, to -ensure that material
"+ information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, partlcularl}r durlng the period in which this
report is being prepared; : T .

b) Evaluated the effectiveness' of the registrant's dlsclosure controls and' procedures and

', presented in'this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures, as of the end of the ‘period covered by - thls report based on such
evaluation; and ' SRR

c) Disclosed in:this report any change in the registrant's‘internal- control over financial
: -teporting that- occurred .during' the registrant's most recent- fiscal 'quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonab]y llkely to: materlally affect, theiregistrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and AT S s

The registrant’s other certifying officer and ! have disclosed, based on our most-recent evaluation
of internal.control over financial reporting, to'the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant's board of directors. (or persons performing the equivalent functions): -

a) -+  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control' over financial reporting which"are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
v registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) * any fraud,'whether or not matetial, that involves management.or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

i

T

Date: March 29, 2007

/5/Robert ]. Larison, Jr.
Robert J. Larison, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer . '
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Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of.the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 .

' I, Jon C. Parker, Sr., certify that: . .
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to-make the statements made, in light of circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report; '

3. - Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respect the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared; '

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred 'during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are- reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) . any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2007

/s/Jon C. Parker, Sr.

Jon C, Parker, Sr.

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32. Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief F:inancia] Officer of
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
: : 7
| - ! '
Robert J. Larison, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer, and-Jon C. Parker, Sr., Vice
President and Chief Financial Offlcer of Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation (the “Company”),
each certify in his capacity as an officer of the Company that he has reviewed the Annual
Report of the Company on Form 10 K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and that to the best
of his knowledge: : ‘ 1

1. the report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and L
! . .
2. the information contalned in the report fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

The purpose of this statement is solely to comply with Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the .
United States Code, as amended by Section 906 of the Sarbanes- C,)xley Act of 2002. '

A signed original of this written;statement required by Sectlon 906 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securltles and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request | !

Date: March 29, 2007 N

A A dm

: 1.. 1-4 ‘-i.: 'Ill. - :;‘ul'\'_' 4.,‘._‘;—‘ ' '.‘."' N
/s/ Robert . Larison, Jr. /s/ Ton C. Parker, Sr.
Robert J. Larison, Jr. Jon C! Parker, Sr.
President and . ) _ Senior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer ? - Chief ;Financial Officer
1
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Highlights

T

o

]

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 Change
Finende] pedifen &t Beezmbar 81, |
Total assets $ 842,825 $ 743,849 13%
Loans receivable, net 639,517 580,441 10
Total deposits 573,052 516,321 1
Total shareholders' equity 91,087 92,917 -2
Book value per share 6.61 6.57 1
forthelyear 1318
Net interest income $ 21,857 $ 20,09 9 %
Provision for loan losses 475 2121 -78
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 21,382 17,975 19
Noninterest income 7.842 - 1,413 6
Noninterest expense 21,679 19,616 11
Income before income taxes 7,545 5,772 31
income taxes 2,393 1,083 121
Net income o $ 5152 § 4689 10
A
Diluted earnings per share ° § 038 § 033 15
Total Assets (in millions) Deposits (n mllllolns)
2006 | : : ) | | 8428 2008 | ) $ 5731
2005 __ | |3 7438 2005 _ $ 5163
2004 | | [ses77 2004 | — o |5 4357
2003 — . |5 a08a 2003 —————— $ 3923
2002 |E———— | s 4477 2002 | $ 3609
Loans Receivabie, Net (i miions) \ Stockholders’ Equity (in millions)
2006 | —J | |ses 2006 | ; ) $ 911
2005 | |5 5804 2005 '—' § 929
2004 | |8 5177 2004 | — 5§ 987
2003 $ 4356 2003 . s 232
2002 2002 $ 389

.
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imple accounts for savings and checking, which help young

people take a firm first step on the road ttl) financial security, to our

Primet

ime Cluty, which packages great services and activities for

seniors looking to enjoy the fruits of a lifétime’s labor, we strive to
meet our customers' needs, no matter where they are on life's journey.

Ask for a definition of a community bank and
you'll get a lot of opinions. Some will say a
community bank must be locally owned to gain

true insight into its customers' needs, something

that the super-regional or national banks find
hard to achieve from distant headquarters.
Others will say it must have long ties to the
community it serves, a strong historical bond
that yields perspective on a community's

values and an understanding of its
cultural fabric. Some will even say it
must be small, not large, so it remains
nimble and flexible, and so decision- .
making is not needlessly filtered
through layers of management. On the
other hand, while community banks
often are thought to deliver a higher
level of service than their larger
counterparts, there is always a concern

Al

1

Thlnklng big and Small at the same ti

flexibility and open-mindedness that is uncommon and refreshing
way for a bank to show that it is not easily stereotyped by size alo
the way it responds to its customers' need

about capability.

To us, the question about what constitutes a
community bank involves more than ownership,
heritage or size. Rather, it's largely a matter of
attitude - it's about having a firm focus on
customers and how best to respond to their
needs. We're small enough to know our
customers well, understand their dreams and
visions, and be there for them at life's
important milestones with sound advice

and helpful services. After all, we've had almost meets Florida.

t

I
70 years to get acqu:ainted. At the same time,
we're large enough to compete with virtually
any bank in our areé, making it possible for us
to target most individuals, small businesses and
middle-market comﬁanies along the First Coast.
This philosophy has played a key role in our
success and, in our view, is helping us gain
visibility as one of tr;1e leading community
banks in the coastal region where Georgia

]
} <




presses a sense of
nking today. It's a
t defined more by




Our bank, Atlan

between small, hometown banksg
services to meet the needs of our]

solution




When a bank has vision, it's able to see the way a simple car loan
can empower a family's quest for mobility, a rlitual that always
seems to follow a child's sixteenth birthday. It's just as capable at
seeing the big picture, understanding and Ier}ding supporttoa
commercial project - another dream for another customer that
begins from a sketch on the back of a napkin.

\ | §% '
1 A J .
! .. X
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CoaSt Bank, occupies an attractive niche

he big, retail institutions, ready to provide a range of
ers. From simple to complex, we can tailor financial

dress virtually any situation.

When it comes to our philosophy on blanking,
our first priority is service. It's the best way we
know to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors. Yet we recognize we have to be
every bit as good as the competition ir'w terms of
products if we are going to be 5uccessful So
we offer a range of banking products that help
our customers create wealth and achieve
financial security, and we lend them our strength
to solve problems, build dreams and go in new
directions. From personal to business! from

home mortgages and lines of credit for
individuals apd families to products and
applications for small business and commercial
enterprises, we're there with financial solutions
that meet the needs of our customers.

Our success |n this regard is easily measured,
with 11% deposut growth in 2006. On the other
side of the Iedger we increased our loan
portfolio 10% during the year.

Now, having adopted a new name and identity
as Atlantic Coast Bank in 2006, we continue to
extend our plroduct line with new commercial
lending and slmall business-oriented products:
Our new name underscores the expanded
Capablhtles we offer asa fuII -service bank,
articulates our broader focus to current and
potential customers. and helps convey the vision
we have for banking along the Atlantic Coast.
Last year, as these efforts gained momentum,
we introduced several new products, including
business checking accounts and business lines of
credit. We also introduced our style of private
banking to the Jacksonville market as a way of
integrating and enhancing an array of products
and services for business owners and
professionals.| With ongoing product
enhancements like these, it's easy to see how
we are thinkilfmg big and small, at the same time.




‘bring our style of service-oriented

v
b
f

From small coastal communities to big city streets, Atlantic Coast
Bank is right at home along the First Coast. To enhance our service,
we recently reorganized our operations into state markets, appointing
market presidents to oversee our bram:hes‘I in Georgia and Florida. So
even though we have gained significant size as a bank, our structure
helps focus our growth - one customer at a time.

From our roots in Waycross, Georgia, to our
growing presence in the metropolitan
Jacksonville area, and other points along the
Atlantic Coast, we continue to think big and
small at the same time. From towns to cities
along the First Coast, and in other strategic
inland locations, we see the potential of each
market, the opportunity to extend our retail
network, build our deposit base, and

establish new relationships that expand
our loan portfolio. It's a way for us to

banking to communities of all sizes.

In 2006, we continued to press this
strategy forward with the opening of a
new branch office in St. Johns County,
midway between Jacksonville and St.

Our increasing focus onthe sacksonvite mark

in 2006 with the openin_g of our eighth location in the region, t
metropolitan area. This growth matches well against the stea
experienced in our h?metown of Waycross and Ware Couny

Augustine. Our Julington Creek
branch, the eighth location for Atlantic
Coast Bank in the greater Jacksonville area, is
conveniently located just minutes from many of
Jacksonville's newest communities. It expands
our banking footprint southward into these
fast-growing suburbs, a focal point for
residential development as Jacksonville grows
and attracts young, prosperous families that

give the area strong demographic characteristics.

To keep this momentum going, we have begun
to plan another branch in St. Johns County.

We also continue to seek new opportunities to
expand our presence: in existing markets with
additional de novo branches or appropriate
acquisitions, and extend our footprint to new
markets in the right situations. Considering the
current climate of change in banking, we expect
there will be future opportunities for both kinds
of expansion along the seaboard from
Savannah southward into Florida, which could
represent a natural f’it for our branch network.
After all, we are Atlantic Coast Bank.
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Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Board of Directors

Charles E. Martin, Jr. ?
Chairman

Retired

CSX Transportation, Inc.

Thomas E. Beeckler
Owner, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Beeckler Company

Frederick D. Franklin, Ir.
Partner
Rogers Towers, PA.

Robert J. Larison, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation

W. Eric Palmer **
Director of Patient Financial Services
Mayo Clinic

Jon C. Parker, Sr.

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation

Directors Emeritus

John M. Hinson
I. ]. McGahee
Cyril M. Meorris

Officers

Robert J. Larison, Jr.!
President and Chief Executive Officer

Jon C. Parker, Sr.!
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer.

Thomas B. Wagers, Sr.*
Chief Operating Officer

Tricia H. Echols ?
Market President — Georgia

Robert J. Smith*

Senior Vice President

Wholesale & Correspondent Lending
PHH Mortgage

Forrest W. Sweat, Jr.2
Partner

Walker & Sweat
Attorneys at Law

H. Dennis Woods "**
Retired
CSX Transportation, Inc.

Committees:

! Audit

* Compensation

* Governance/Nominating

Carl Insel
Market President — Florida

Phillip S. Hubacher *
Treasurer

Phillip Buddenbohm *
Senior Vice President,
Credit Administratior_l

t Officer of both Atlantic Coast Federal
Corporation and Atlantic Coast Bank
* Officer of Atlantic Coast Bank only
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Corporate Information

Corporate Offices
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation
505 Haines Avenue
"Waycross, Georgia 31501
(800} 342-2824

Company Website
www.AtlanticCoastBank.net

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
.Cranford, New Jersey 07016
(800) 525-7686

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Brentwood, Tennessee

Securities Counsel
Luse Gorman Pomerenk & Schick, P.C.
Washington, D.C.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at
10:00 a.m., local time, on Friday, May 18, 2007, at the
Holiday Inn Waycross, 1725 Mémorial Drive, Waycross,
Georgia.

Annual Report on Form 10-K

A capy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commlssmn will be furnished
without charge to shareholders | as of the record date for the
2006 Annual Meeting upon wrltten request to Mr. Jon C.
Parker, Sr.,; Senior Vice Pre:ndent and Chief Financial Officer,
Atlantic Coast Federal Corporation, 505 Haines Avenue,
Waycross, Georgia 31501, In addltlon the Company makes
available free of charge its annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10- Q, current reports on Form
8-K, and all amendments to those reports filed with or
furnished to the SEC. The reports are available as soon as
reasonably practical after the Company electronically files
such material with the SEC, and may be found on the
Internet at www.AtlanticCoastBank.net under the Investor
Information section.

Market and Dividend Information.

The Company s shares trade on the NASDAQ Global Market
under, the symbol ACFC. As of March 23, 2007, the
Company estimates that it had approximately 2,000
stockholders, including approx1mately 1,500 beneficial
owners holding shares in nominee or “street” name.

The followmg table sets forth the quarterly high and low
common stock prices, along with quarterly dividends
declared, for the two-year period ended December 31, 2006:

Dividends
High Low Declared
2005:
First quarter $14.00 $12.21 $0.05
Second quarter $12.65 $10.69 $0.06
Third quarter - §1455 $12.21 $0.07
Fourth quarter $14.85 $13.20 $0.08
2006:
First quarter $14.80 $14.05 $0.09
Second quarter $15.99 $14.29 $0.10
Third quarter $18.33 $14.90 $0.11
Fourth!quarter $18.40 $17.31 $0.12

Future payment of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors) including capital requirements, Atlantic Coast
Federal Corperation’s and Atlantic Coast Bank's financial
condmlon and results of operations, tax considerations,
statutory and regulatory limitations, and general economic
condmons For information regarding restrictions on the
paymem of dividends by Atlantic Coast Bank to the
Company, see Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Fmancml Condition and Results of Operation — Liquidity
and Capital Resources in the Company's 2006 Annual Report
on Form 10-K. See also Note 16, Regulatory Matters, of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in that report.
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